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DOCUMENT INDEX

FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL. | BATES NOS.
1 02/14/07 | Application for Release of Mechanic’s I JA0001-0006
Lien (Case No. CV(07-0341)
2 02/14/07 | Declaration of John Iliescu in Support of I JA0007-0013
Application for Release of Mechanic’s
Lien
3 05/03/07 | Response to Application for Release of I JA0014-0106
Mechanic’s Lien
4 05/03/07 | Transcript of Proceedings — Application I JA0107-0166
for Release of Mechanic’s Lien held on
May 3, 2007 [Transcript filed on June 29,
2007]
5 05/03/07 | Order [Scheduling discovery on I JA0167-0169
Application for Release of Mechanic’s
Lien]
6 05/04/07 | Complaint To Foreclose Mechanic’s Lien I JA0170-0175
and For Damages (Case CV07-01021)
7 05/08/07 | Original Verification of Complaint to I JA0176-0178
Foreclose Mechanic’s Lien and for
Damages
8 05/11/07 | Notice of Entry of Order I JA0179-0184
9 07/30/07 | Supplemental Response to Application I JA0185-0208
for Release of Mechanic’s Lien
10 | 08/03/07 | Substitution of Counsel I JA209-0211
11 | 08/13/07 | Notice of Association of Counsel I JA0212-0215
12 | 09/24/07 | Stipulation to Consolidate Proceedings; I JA0216-0219
Order Approving Stipulation
13 | 09/27/07 | Answer to Complaint to Foreclose Ir | JA0220-0253

Mechanic’s Lien and Third Party
Complaint (Case No. CV07-01021)




DOC.

FILE/HRG.
DATE

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

VOL.

BATES NOS.

14

03/07/08

Stipulation to Stay Proceedings Against
Defendant Hale Lane and to Dismiss
Claims Against Defendants Dennison,
Howard and Snyder without Prejudice

II

JA0254-0256

15

04/17/08

Motion [by Iliescus] for Partial Summary
Judgment on Mark B. Steppan’s Claim
for Foreclosure of Mechanic’s Lien

II
III
1AY

JA0257-0445
JA0446-0671
JA0672-0708

16

02/03/09

Opposition [by Steppan] to Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment and Cross-
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment

1AY

JA0709-0802

17

03/31/09

Reply [by Iliescus] in Support of Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment and
Opposition to [Steppan’s] Cross-Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment

1Y%

JA0803-0846

18

06/22/09

Order [Granting Partial Summary
Judgment to Steppan and Denying
Iliescus’ Motion]

IV

JA0847-0850

19

10/07/09

Answer [by Hale Lane et al.] to
[[liescus’] Third Party Complaint

1AY

JA0851-0857

20

08/18/11

Motion [filed by Iliescus] to Amend
Third Party Complaint Against Defendant
Hale Lane

JA0858-0910

21

09/01/11

Order Granting Third-Party Defendant
Hale Lane’s Motion for Summary
Judgment Regarding Third-Party Claims
by John Iliescu

JA0911-0920

22

09/06/11

Opposition [filed by Third Party
Defendant Hale Lane] to Motion to
Amend Third-Party Complaint by John
and Sonnia Iliescu

JA0921-0946

23

09/22/11

Reply in Support of Motion to Amend
Third Party Complaint

JA0947-0966

24

10/19/11

Order Denying Motion to Amend Third
Party Complaint Against Defendant Hale
Lane

JA0967-0969




FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL. | BATES NOS.

25 | 10/25/11 | Order Granting Defendants Iliescus’ vV | JA0970-0977
Motion to Dismiss

26 | 11/08/11 | Motion for Leave to file Motion for V | JA0978-1004
Reconsideration [filed by Steppan]

27 | 11/22/11 | Stipulation vV | JA1005-1007

28 | 02/07/12 | Order Certifying Intent to Grant Motion V | JA1008-1010
for Reconsideration

29 | 02/17/12 | Motion for Remand [filed by Steppan] V | JA1011-1016
(NV Sup. Ct. Case 60036)

30 | 03/01/12 | Motion for Leave to File Motion for V | JA1017-1040
Reconsideration; or, Alternatively,
Motion for Relief from Order Entered
September 1, 2011 Granting Third-Party
Defendant’s Motion for Summary
Judgment

31 | 06/07/12 | Order Certifying Intent to Grant Motion A% JA1041-1044
for Reconsideration

32 | 06/28/12 | Motion [filed by Iliescus’] to Remand V | JA1045-1059
(NV Sup. Ct. Case 60036)

33 | 08/02/12 | Order [Nevada Supreme Court] Granting V | JA1060-1062
Motions for Remand (NV Sup. Ct. Case
60036)

34 | 08/31/12 | Status Report [filed by Steppan] (NV V | JA1063-1064
Sup. Ct. Case 60036)

35 | 09/04/12 | Status Report [filed by Iliescu] (NV Sup. V | JA1065-1066
Ct. Case 60036)

36 | 09/27/12 | Order [Granting Iliescus’ and Steppan’s V | JA1067-1072
Motions for Reconsideration and
Revoking earlier Summary Judgment in
favor of Hale Lane]

37 | 11/09/12 | Stipulation to Dismiss Appeal (NV Sup. V | JA1073-1079
Ct. Case 60036)

38 | 01/02/13 | Order [Nevada Supreme Court] V | JA1080-1081

Dismissing Appeal and Remanding to the
District Court




FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL. | BATES NOS.
39 | 01/09/13 | Stipulation and Order VI | JA1082-1084
40 | 02/14/13 | Second Stipulation to Stay Proceedings VI | JA1085-1087
Against Defendant Hale Lane and Order
to Stay and to Dismiss Claims Against
Defendants Dennison, Howard and
Snyder Without Prejudice

41 | 04/09/13 | Notice of Entry of [Stipulation and] Order | VI | JA1088-1091
[to Stay Claim against Hale Lane]

42 |1 05/09/13 | Order Granting [Steppan’s] Motion for VI | JA1092-1095
Partial Summary Judgment

43 | 07/19/13 | Motion for Continuance and Motion to VI | JA1096-1104
Extend Expert Disclosure Dates

44 1 07/19/13 | Affidavit of C. Nicholas Pereos in VI | JA1105-1107
Support of Motion for Continuance and
Motion to Extend Expert Disclosure
Dates

45 | 07/19/13 | Affidavit of Gordon Cowan in Supportof | VI | JA1108-1110
Motion for Continuance and Motion to
Extend Expert Disclosure Dates

46 | 08/23/13 | Order Granting Motion to Strike or Limit | VI | JA1111-1113
Jury Demand

47 1 09/09/13 | Transcript of Proceedings of Hearing VI | JA1114-1149
regarding Motion for Continuance and to
Extend Expert Disclosures

48 | 09/18/13 | Second Supplement to Case Conference VI | JA1150-1152
Report

49 | 12/02/13 | Defendant’s Trial Statement VI | JAI153-1163

50 | 12/04/13 | Plaintiff’s Trial Statement VI | JA1164-1200

51 Selected Trial Exhibits [Listed by Exhibit | VI

Number]

1 Notice and Claim of Lien recorded
November 7, 2006

2 Amended Notice and Claim of Lien
recorded May 3, 2007

JA1201-1204

JA1205-1209




FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL. | BATES NOS.

3 Second Amended Notice and Claim VI | JA1210-1218
of Lien recorded November 8, 2013

6 Standard Form of Agreement (AIA JA1219-1237
B141)

7 Addendum No. 1 to Design Contract JA1238-1240

8 Waiver of Conflict Letter, dated JA1241-1245
12/14/05

9 Letter Proposal - Architectural Design JA1246-1265
Services, dated 10/25/05

10 Memo from Sarah Class to Calvin JA1266-1267
Baty, dated 11/14/05

11 Email memo from Sarah Class to JA1268-1269
Calvin Baty, dated 11/18/05

12 Email memo from Sarah Class to JA1270
Calvin Baty, dated 11/29/05

13 Steppan Response to Owner Issues on JA1271-1273
AIA Contract, dated 12/20/05

14 Architectural Design Services JA1274-1275
Agreement, dated 11/15/05

15 Design Services Continuation Letter, JA1276
dated 12/14/05

16 Design Services Continuation Letter, JA1277
dated 2/7/06

17 Design Services Continuation Letter, JA1278
dated 3/24/06

67 Proposal from Consolidated Pacific JA1279-1280
Development to Richard Johnson
with handwriting, dated 7/14/05

68 Land Purchase Agreement Signed by JA1281-1302
Seller, dated 7/25/05

69 Addendum No. 1 to Land Purchase JA1303-1306
Agreement, dated 8/1/05

70 Addendum No. 2 to Land Purchase VII | JA1307-01308

71

72

Agreement, dated 8/2/05
Addendum No. 3 to Land Purchase
Agreement, dated 10/9/05
Addendum No. 4 to Land Purchase
Agreement, dated 9/18/06

JA1309-1324

JA1325-1326




FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL. | BATES NOS.
76 Indemnity Agreement, dated 12/8/06 | VII | JA1327-1328
77 Waiver of Conflict Letter, dated JA1329-1333
1/17/07

52 | 05/28/14 | Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and | VII | JA1334-1346
Decision

53 | 02/26/15 | Judgment, Decree and Order for VII | JA1347-1349
Foreclosure of Mechanic’s Lien

54 | 02/27/15 | Notice of Entry of Judgment VII | JA1350-1352

55 | 03/10/15 | Motion [filed by Iliescus] for Court to VII | JA1353-1389
Alter or Amend its Judgment and Related
Prior Orders

56 | 05/27/15 | Order Denying Defendants’ Motion for VII | JA1390-1393
Court to Alter or Amend its Judgment
and Related Prior Orders

57 | 06/23/15 | Notice of Appeal filed by Iliescu VII | JA1394-1398

58 | 07/29/15 | Order [of district court Denying Motion VII | JA1399-1402
for Stay Without Bond]

59 | 10/28/15 | Order [of Nevada Supreme Court] VII | JA1403-1405
Granting Motion for Stay without Posting
Any Further Security and Order to Show
Cause

60 | 11/17/15 | Decision and Order Granting Motion VII | JA1406-1409
Seeking Clarification of Finality of
Judgment

61 | 12/16/15 | Amended Notice of Appeal [filed by VII | JA1410-1414
Iliescu]

62 | 01/26/16 | Order Dismissing Appeal in Part and VII | JA1415-1417
Reinstating Briefing

63 | 05/12/16 | Appellants’ Opening Brief (NV Sup. Ct. VII | JA1418-1484
Case 68346)

64 | 09/16/16 | Motion [filed by Iliescus] to Amend VII | JA1485-1532
Third-Party Complaint and Motion for VIII | JA1533-1693

Clarification as to Stay




FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL.| BATES NOS.

65 | 10/06/16 | Opposition [filed by Hale Lane] to VIII | JA1694-1699
Motion to Amend and for Clarification as
to Stay

66 | 10/17/16 | Reply Points and Authorities in Support VIII | JA1700-1705
of Third-Party Plaintiffs’ Motion to
Amend Third-Party Complaint and
Motion for Clarification as to Stay

67 | 12/19/16 | Order [Denying Motion to Amend Third- | VIII | JA1706-1711
Party Complaint]

68 | 02/27/17 | Notice of Entry of Order [Denying Third- | VIII | JA1712-1720
Party Plaintiff’s Motion to Amend]

69 | 05/27/17 | Nevada Supreme Court (en banc) VIII | JA1721-1732
Decision and Opinion reversing district
court Judgment, Decree and Order for
Foreclosure of Mechanic’s Lien

70 | 09/22/17 | Nevada Supreme Court Order denying VIII | JA1733-1734
rehearing

71 | 10/17/17 | Remittitur VIII | JA1735-1752

72 | 10/17/17 | Proof of Electronic Service of Remittitur | VIII | JA1753-1755

73 | 10/24/17 | Verified Memorandum of Costs [filed by IX | JA1756-1761
Iliescus]

74 | 11/03/17 | Motion for an Award of Costs and IX | JA1762-1918
Attorney’s Fees and Interest Thereon

75 | 11/14/17 | Errata to Iliescus’ Motion for an Award IX | JA1919-1922
of Costs and Attorney’s Fees and Interest
Thereon

76 | 11/17/17 | Motion [filed by Third Party Defendant X | JA1923-2050
Hale Lane] for Summary Judgment of
Third-Party Claims

77 | 12/15/17 | Errata to the Iliescus’ Verified X | JA2051-2054

Memorandum of Costs; and Errata to
[their] Motion for an Award of Costs and
Attorney’s Fees and Interest Thereon




DOC.

FILE/HRG.
DATE

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

VOL.

BATES NOS.

78

12/18/17

Opposition [filed by Iliescus] to Third-
Party Defendant Hale Lane’s Motion for
Summary Judgment Dismissal of Third-
Party Claims; and Countermotion to
Amend Third-Party Complaint and for
Further Time to Complete Discovery

XI

JA2055-2148
JA2149-2234

79

01/03/18

Judgment Upon Remand in Favor of the
[liescus Releasing Steppan’s Mechanic’s
Lien and Vacating Prior Judgment
Thereon

XI

JA2235-2239

80

01/08/18

Reply [filed by Third Party Defendant
Hale Lane] in Support of Motion for
Summary Judgment and Opposition to
Countermotion to Amend

XI

JA2240-2300

81

01/12/18

Reply Points and Authorities [filed by
Iliescus] in Support of Countermotion to
Amend Third-Party Complaint and in
Support of Countermotion for Further
Time to Complete Discovery

X1II
XIII

JA2301-2374
JA2375-2405

82

04/10/18

Order Denying [Iliescus’] Motion for an
Award of Costs and Attorney’s Fees and
Interest Thereon

XIII

JA2406-2412

83

04/10/18

Order Granting Steppan’s Motion to
Deny or Retax Costs, and Vacating the
[liescus’ Verified Memorandum of Costs

XIII

JA2413-2417

84

04/10/18

Notice of Entry of Order Denying
Defendants’ Motion for an Award of
Costs and Attorney’s Fees and Interest
Thereon

XIII

JA2418-2427

85

04/10/18

Notice of Entry of Order Granting
Steppan’s Motion to Deny or Retax Costs

XIII

JA2428-2435

86

05/25/18

Supplemental Brief [filed by Third Party
Defendant Hale Lane] re: Iliescu’s
Decision Not to Appeal Denial of Fees
and Costs

XIII

JA2436-2438




FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL.| BATES NOS.
87 | 05/25/18 | Court Directed Supplemental Brief in XIIT | JA2439-2444
Opposition to Hale Lane’s Motion for
Summary Judgment and in Support of
Countermotion to Amend and for More
Discovery
88 | 06/06/18 | Transcript of Proceedings of Third-Party | XIII | JA2445-2496
Defendant Hale Lane’s Motion For
Summary Judgment of Third-Party
Claims, filed June 21, 2018
89 | 06/12/18 | Order Granting Third-Party Defendant XIII | JA2497-2511
Hale Lane’s Motion for Summary
Judgment
90 | 06/12/18 | Notice of Entry of Order Granting Third- | XIII | JA2512-2530
Party Defendant Hale Lane’s Motion for
Summary Judgment
91 | 06/15/18 | Notice of Appeal [filed by the Iliescus] of | XIII | JA2531-2533
Summary Judgment Dismissal of Third-
Party Claims against Hale Lane
92 | 06/15/18 | Case Appeal Statement XIII | JA2534-2539
93 | 12/11/13 | Trial Transcript — Day 3, pages 811-815 XIII | JA2540-2545
ALPHABETICAL INDEX
DOC.FIIISEZIT{E G. DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL.| BATES NOS.
1 | 02/14/07 | Application for Release of Mechanic’s I JA0001-0006
Lien (Case No. CV07-0341)
44 | 07/19/13 | Affidavit of C. Nicholas Percos in VI | JA1105-1107
Support of Motion for Continuance and
Motion to Extend Expert Disclosure
Dates
45 | 07/19/13 | Affidavit of Gordon Cowan in Support of | VI | JA1108-1110

Motion for Continuance and Motion to
Extend Expert Disclosure Dates

-10-




DOC.

FILE/HRG.
DATE

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

VOL.

BATES NOS.

61

12/16/15

Amended Notice of Appeal [filed by
Iliescu]

VII

JA1410-1414

19

10/07/09

Answer [by Hale Lane et al.] to
[[liescus’] Third Party Complaint

1AY

JA0851-0857

13

09/27/07

Answer to Complaint to Foreclose
Mechanic’s Lien and Third Party
Complaint (Case No. CV07-01021)

II

JA0220-0253

63

05/12/16

Appellants’ Opening Brief (NV Sup. Ct.
Case 683406)

VII

JA1418-1484

92

06/15/18

Case Appeal Statement

XIII

JA2534-2539

05/04/07

Complaint To Foreclose Mechanic’s Lien
and For Damages (Case CV07-01021)

JAO0170-0175

87

05/25/18

Court Directed Supplemental Brief in
Opposition to Hale Lane’s Motion for
Summary Judgment and in Support of
Countermotion to Amend and for More
Discovery

XIII

JA2439-2444

60

11/17/15

Decision and Order Granting Motion
Seeking Clarification of Finality of
Judgment

VII

JA1406-1409

02/14/07

Declaration of John Iliescu in Support of
Application for Release of Mechanic’s
Lien

JA0007-0013

49

12/02/13

Defendant’s Trial Statement

VI

JA1153-1163

75

11/14/17

Errata to Iliescus’ Motion for an Award
of Costs and Attorney’s Fees and Interest
Thereon

IX

JA1919-1922

77

12/15/17

Errata to the Iliescus’ Verified
Memorandum of Costs; and Errata to
[their] Motion for an Award of Costs and
Attorney’s Fees and Interest Thereon

JA2051-2054

52

05/28/14

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and
Decision

VII

JA1334-1346

-11-




FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL. | BATES NOS.

79 | 01/03/18 | Judgment Upon Remand in Favor of the XTI | JA2235-2239
[liescus Releasing Steppan’s Mechanic’s
Lien and Vacating Prior Judgment
Thereon

53 | 02/26/15 | Judgment, Decree and Order for VII | JA1347-1349
Foreclosure of Mechanic’s Lien

15 | 04/17/08 | Motion [by Iliescus] for Partial Summary I | JA0257-0445
Judgment on Mark B. Steppan’s Claim I | JA0446-0671
for Foreclosure of Mechanic’s Lien IV | JA0672-0708

55 | 03/10/15 | Motion [filed by Iliescus] for Court to VII | JA1353-1389
Alter or Amend its Judgment and Related
Prior Orders

20 | 08/18/11 | Motion [filed by Iliescus] to Amend V | JA0858-0910
Third Party Complaint Against Defendant
Hale Lane

64 | 09/16/16 | Motion [filed by Iliescus] to Amend VII | JA1485-1532
Third-Party Complaint and Motion for VIII | JA1533-1693
Clarification as to Stay

32 | 06/28/12 | Motion [filed by Iliescus’] to Remand V | JA1045-1059
(NV Sup. Ct. Case 60036)

76 | 11/17/17 | Motion [filed by Third Party Defendant X | JA1923-2050
Hale Lane] for Summary Judgment of
Third-Party Claims

74 | 11/03/17 | Motion for an Award of Costs and IX | JA1762-1918
Attorney’s Fees and Interest Thereon

43 | 07/19/13 | Motion for Continuance and Motion to VI | JA1096-1104
Extend Expert Disclosure Dates

26 | 11/08/11 | Motion for Leave to file Motion for V | JA0978-1004
Reconsideration [filed by Steppan]

30 | 03/01/12 | Motion for Leave to File Motion for V | JA1017-1040

Reconsideration; or, Alternatively,
Motion for Relief from Order Entered
September 1, 2011 Granting Third-Party
Defendant’s Motion for Summary
Judgment

-12-




FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL. | BATES NOS.
29 | 02/17/12 | Motion for Remand [filed by Steppan] vV | JA1011-1016
(NV Sup. Ct. Case 60036)
69 | 05/27/17 | Nevada Supreme Court (en banc) VIII | JA1721-1732
Decision and Opinion reversing district
court Judgment, Decree and Order for
Foreclosure of Mechanic’s Lien
70 | 09/22/17 | Nevada Supreme Court Order denying VIII | JA1733-1734
rehearing
91 | 06/15/18 | Notice of Appeal [filed by the Iliescus] of | XIII | JA2531-2533
Summary Judgment Dismissal of Third-
Party Claims against Hale Lane
57 | 06/23/15 | Notice of Appeal filed by Iliescu VII | JA1394-1398
11 | 08/13/07 | Notice of Association of Counsel I JA0212-0215
41 | 04/09/13 | Notice of Entry of [Stipulation and] Order | VI | JA1088-1091
[to Stay Claim against Hale Lane]
54 | 02/27/15 | Notice of Entry of Judgment VII | JA1350-1352
8 | 05/11/07 | Notice of Entry of Order I JA0179-0184
68 | 02/27/17 | Notice of Entry of Order [Denying Third- | VIII | JA1712-1720
Party Plaintiff’s Motion to Amend]
84 | 04/10/18 | Notice of Entry of Order Denying XIII | JA2418-2427
Defendants” Motion for an Award of
Costs and Attorney’s Fees and Interest
Thereon
85 | 04/10/18 | Notice of Entry of Order Granting XIIT | JA2428-2435
Steppan’s Motion to Deny or Retax Costs
90 | 06/12/18 | Notice of Entry of Order Granting Third- | XIII | JA2512-2530
Party Defendant Hale Lane’s Motion for
Summary Judgment
16 | 02/03/09 | Opposition [by Steppan] to Motion for IV | JA0709-0802
Partial Summary Judgment and Cross-
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment
65 | 10/06/16 | Opposition [filed by Hale Lane] to VIII | JA1694-1699

Motion to Amend and for Clarification as
to Stay

-13-




DOC.

FILE/HRG.

DATE

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

VOL.

BATES NOS.

78

12/18/17

Opposition [filed by Iliescus] to Third-
Party Defendant Hale Lane’s Motion for
Summary Judgment Dismissal of Third-
Party Claims; and Countermotion to
Amend Third-Party Complaint and for
Further Time to Complete Discovery

XI

JA2055-2148
JA2149-2234

22

09/06/11

Opposition [filed by Third Party
Defendant Hale Lane] to Motion to
Amend Third-Party Complaint by John
and Sonnia Iliescu

JA0921-0946

67

12/19/16

Order [Denying Motion to Amend Third-
Party Complaint]

VIII

JA1706-1711

36

09/27/12

Order [Granting Iliescus’ and Steppan’s
Motions for Reconsideration and
Revoking earlier Summary Judgment in
favor of Hale Lane]

JA1067-1072

18

06/22/09

Order [Granting Partial Summary
Judgment to Steppan and Denying
Iliescus’ Motion]

1Y%

JA0847-0850

38

01/02/13

Order [Nevada Supreme Court]
Dismissing Appeal and Remanding to the
District Court

JA1080-1081

33

08/02/12

Order [Nevada Supreme Court] Granting
Motions for Remand (NV Sup. Ct. Case
60036)

JA1060-1062

58

07/29/15

Order [of district court Denying Motion
for Stay Without Bond]

VII

JA1399-1402

59

10/28/15

Order [of Nevada Supreme Court]
Granting Motion for Stay without Posting
Any Further Security and Order to Show
Cause

VII

JA1403-1405

05/03/07

Order [Scheduling discovery on
Application for Release of Mechanic’s
Lien]

JA0167-0169

28

02/07/12

Order Certifying Intent to Grant Motion
for Reconsideration

JA1008-1010

-14-




DOC.

FILE/HRG.
DATE

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

VOL.

BATES NOS.

31

06/07/12

Order Certifying Intent to Grant Motion
for Reconsideration

JA1041-1044

82

04/10/18

Order Denying [Iliescus’] Motion for an
Award of Costs and Attorney’s Fees and
Interest Thereon

XIII

JA2406-2412

56

05/27/15

Order Denying Defendants’ Motion for
Court to Alter or Amend its Judgment
and Related Prior Orders

VII

JA1390-1393

24

10/19/11

Order Denying Motion to Amend Third
Party Complaint Against Defendant Hale
Lane

JA0967-0969

62

01/26/16

Order Dismissing Appeal in Part and
Reinstating Briefing

VII

JA1415-1417

42

05/09/13

Order Granting [Steppan’s] Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment

VI

JA1092-1095

25

10/25/11

Order Granting Defendants Iliescus’
Motion to Dismiss

JA0970-0977

46

08/23/13

Order Granting Motion to Strike or Limit
Jury Demand

VI

JA1111-1113

83

04/10/18

Order Granting Steppan’s Motion to
Deny or Retax Costs, and Vacating the
Iliescus’ Verified Memorandum of Costs

XIII

JA2413-2417

21

09/01/11

Order Granting Third-Party Defendant
Hale Lane’s Motion for Summary
Judgment Regarding Third-Party Claims
by John Iliescu

JA0911-0920

89

06/12/18

Order Granting Third-Party Defendant
Hale Lane’s Motion for Summary
Judgment

XIII

JA2497-2511

05/08/07

Original Verification of Complaint to
Foreclose Mechanic’s Lien and for
Damages

JA0176-0178

50

12/04/13

Plaintiff’s Trial Statement

VI

JA1164-1200

72

10/17/17

Proof of Electronic Service of Remittitur

VIII

JA1753-1755

-15-




DOC.

FILE/HRG.
DATE

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

VOL.

BATES NOS.

71

10/17/17

Remittitur

VIII

JA1735-1752

17

03/31/09

Reply [by Iliescus] in Support of Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment and
Opposition to [Steppan’s] Cross-Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment

1A%

JA0803-0846

80

01/08/18

Reply [filed by Third Party Defendant
Hale Lane] in Support of Motion for
Summary Judgment and Opposition to
Countermotion to Amend

XI

JA2240-2300

23

09/22/11

Reply in Support of Motion to Amend
Third Party Complaint

JA0947-0966

81

01/12/18

Reply Points and Authorities [filed by
[liescus] in Support of Countermotion to
Amend Third-Party Complaint and in
Support of Countermotion for Further
Time to Complete Discovery

XII
XIII

JA2301-2374
JA2375-2405

66

10/17/16

Reply Points and Authorities in Support
of Third-Party Plaintiffs” Motion to
Amend Third-Party Complaint and
Motion for Clarification as to Stay

VIII

JA1700-1705

05/03/07

Response to Application for Release of
Mechanic’s Lien

JA0014-0106

40

02/14/13

Second Stipulation to Stay Proceedings
Against Defendant Hale Lane and Order
to Stay and to Dismiss Claims Against
Defendants Dennison, Howard and
Snyder Without Prejudice

VI

JA1085-1087

48

09/18/13

Second Supplement to Case Conference
Report

VI

JA1150-1152

51

Selected Trial Exhibits [Listed by Exhibit

Number]

1 Notice and Claim of Lien recorded
November 7, 2006

2 Amended Notice and Claim of Lien
recorded May 3, 2007

VI

JA1201-1204

JA1205-1209

-16-




FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL. | BATES NOS.

3 Second Amended Notice and Claim VI | JA1210-1218
of Lien recorded November 8, 2013

6 Standard Form of Agreement (AIA JA1219-1237
B141)

7 Addendum No. 1 to Design Contract JA1238-1240

8 Waiver of Conflict Letter, dated JA1241-1245
12/14/05

9 Letter Proposal - Architectural Design JA1246-1265
Services, dated 10/25/05

10 Memo from Sarah Class to Calvin JA1266-1267
Baty, dated 11/14/05

11 Email memo from Sarah Class to JA1268-1269
Calvin Baty, dated 11/18/05

12 Email memo from Sarah Class to JA1270
Calvin Baty, dated 11/29/05

13 Steppan Response to Owner Issues on JA1271-1273
AIA Contract, dated 12/20/05

14 Architectural Design Services JA1274-1275
Agreement, dated 11/15/05

15 Design Services Continuation Letter, JA1276
dated 12/14/05

16 Design Services Continuation Letter, JA1277
dated 2/7/06

17 Design Services Continuation Letter, JA1278
dated 3/24/06

67 Proposal from Consolidated Pacific JA1279-1280
Development to Richard Johnson
with handwriting, dated 7/14/05

68 Land Purchase Agreement Signed by JA1281-1302
Seller, dated 7/25/05

69 Addendum No. 1 to Land Purchase JA1303-1306
Agreement, dated 8/1/05

70 Addendum No. 2 to Land Purchase VII | JA1307-01308

71

72

Agreement, dated 8/2/05
Addendum No. 3 to Land Purchase
Agreement, dated 10/9/05
Addendum No. 4 to Land Purchase
Agreement, dated 9/18/06

JA1309-1324

JA1325-1326

-17-




FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL. | BATES NOS.
76 Indemnity Agreement, dated 12/8/06 | VII | JA1327-1328
77 Waiver of Conflict Letter, dated JA1329-1333
1/17/07

35 | 09/04/12 | Status Report [filed by Iliescu] (NV Sup. V | JA1065-1066
Ct. Case 60036)

34 | 08/31/12 | Status Report [filed by Steppan] (NV V | JA1063-1064
Sup. Ct. Case 60036)

27 | 11/22/11 | Stipulation V | JA1005-1007

39 | 01/09/13 | Stipulation and Order VI | JA1082-1084

12 | 09/24/07 | Stipulation to Consolidate Proceedings; I JA0216-0219
Order Approving Stipulation

37 | 11/09/12 | Stipulation to Dismiss Appeal (NV Sup. V | JA1073-1079
Ct. Case 60036)

14 | 03/07/08 | Stipulation to Stay Proceedings Against I | JA0254-0256
Defendant Hale Lane and to Dismiss
Claims Against Defendants Dennison,
Howard and Snyder without Prejudice

10 | 08/03/07 | Substitution of Counsel I JA209-0211

86 | 05/25/18 | Supplemental Brief [filed by Third Party | XIII | JA2436-2438
Defendant Hale Lane] re: Iliescu’s
Decision Not to Appeal Denial of Fees
and Costs

9 107/30/07 | Supplemental Response to Application I JA0185-0208
for Release of Mechanic’s Lien

4 | 05/03/07 | Transcript of Proceedings — Application I JA0107-0166
for Release of Mechanic’s Lien held on
May 3, 2007 [Transcript filed on June 29,
2007]

47 | 09/09/13 | Transcript of Proceedings of Hearing VI | JAI1114-1149
regarding Motion for Continuance and to
Extend Expert Disclosures

88 | 06/06/18 | Transcript of Proceedings of Third-Party | XIII | JA2445-2496

Defendant Hale Lane’s Motion For
Summary Judgment of Third-Party
Claims, filed June 21, 2018

-18-




FILE/HRG.

DOC. DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION VOL. | BATES NOS.
93 | 12/11/13 | Trial Transcript — Day 3, pages 811-815 XTI | JA2540-2545
73 | 10/24/17 | Verified Memorandum of Costs [filed by | IX | JA1756-1761

Iliescus]

-19-




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRAP 25(c), I hereby certify that I am an employee of
ALBRIGHT, STODDARD, WARNICK & ALBRIGHT, and that on this 21% day
of November, 2018, the foregoing JOINT APPENDIX TO APPELLANT’S
OPENING BRIEF, VOLUME 1V, was filed electronically with the Clerk of the

Nevada Supreme Court, and therefore electronic service was made in accordance

with the master service list as follows:

David R. Grundy, Esq.

Todd R. Alexander, Esq.,

LEMONS, GRUNDY & EISENBERG
6005 Plumas Street, Third Floor

Reno, Nevada 89519

Tel: (775) 786-6868

drg@lge.net / tra@lge.net

Attorneys for Third-Party Defendant

Hale Lane
%ﬁ -

An employee of Albright, Stoddard, Warnick & Albright
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| Tdntatwe Map & Special Use Permit Application
. I - _ | Pro]ecl Descriphon .

--;,._‘.._;,e — i

.. u.u:n:D -RC:DL':E:F:s,_
IUWI'Y'HOV'.'_'

-_—

'Pro}ecu.oeauon R 1 I
T ¢ 'Ti‘ ' ’
' The subjecl property is belween Island Dnve and Court! Street in. the Downtown Reno The prupeﬂy 5 R
- locatéd within the newly created Redevelopment Area 2 and within the S Virginia Strest Transit Comridor. .~
“The subject property Contains 1362 acres in four: (4) parcels. (APNs: 011-122-03, 06, 07.& 12) An.aenal " -

,.'based\fnclmly Map showmgmepro;ecl locahon is prowdedonpageaot this Pro;edoescnpbon
_-,_=Pro}ecIOverview L | !! : S

The ngﬁeld Towers Pro;ed is 8 puvale regdenhal ofﬁue and retail deveiq:mem oﬂenng wnmercaal B
* housing and public plaza space in the ever growing and i improving downiown core. The central location to -
*-the hean of Reno is accesshie to key transportation. comdors through the South Virg:ma Street Transit
.Gmndor adjacent 16 the Rivérwalk and overiooks the Truchee River. An appealing mix of retal and ofice -~ = . -
uses at the ground fioors and street elevations af- the building will service residents of this projsctas wellas oo
surround:ng residents and visitors. The project has bean designed with two main struchires (one 28 and
one 40 story building). Parking will be provided ertirely within a parking structure below the podium (public -
plaza) level. The public plaza area wili provide! opportunlties to tie in the buliding, residents and future
- businesses 1o the festivals-andevents that have|been so successtul in the Wingfield: Park area (suchas,
- Aiown and the HwarFesbval) “The tig andimcraaseafpo!enhalspaoe!oreven!sandexlﬁb:tsmiﬁ :
association. with the existing festivals will help 0 continie enhancing Reno's utban enviranment and-help™.~ -
- Reno-atlain infill and intensity goals and ob;echves wrthm lhe Downtown Gore, as dnven by the Tmckee I
. : : .MeadowsﬂeglonalPian o EE :

' .\5 | o ) Projecl Background nnd Community Goall

. The' Wingfield Tower pmlect helps promote mainy of’ me goals of the Truckee Meadows Regnnal Plan .
- through intensification of the regional core. Addmonalry, the ‘property. lies within the Clity of Reno Transt . -
- Corridor Overlay District. Location indicated and| mandates intensification of this and other propertiesinthe .. -
 surrounding area 50 as o (1) creale a cntoca! mass to re;wmate downiown Flem and (2) generate demand IR
,glorma&siransn A _ ; _‘ - R :

' fTﬂE Truckee Meadows Flegmnal Pian prowdes sltong encouragemeni for mtensefdense mlxed use . e

. .developments within appropriate ‘locations ol the. region. . Appropriaté locations - are _considered to'be .~
" Downtown and Regional Centers and TOD'Corridors:  ,Following’ are exoelpts fmm the 2002 Truckes:
o '_‘.Meadow FleglonaIPlan prowngti'ns enoouragernemanddrechon DR

- Regional Form and Pattern ~ : T Crla
-« The Reglonal Plan:will promote a Reglonal Fonn thal minimizes sprawl and. supports 8
© -+ higher intensity and densfty of development,wtthin designated centers and transit corridors, - 0
The plan will strongly promote mﬁll developmem within centers and: transn corndors to opbrmze.:,-_j RS
existing infrastructure.
©+ «  Intensification within the region wil he dlrected toward defined centers andTOD comidors: .-
' The Regional Plan identifies the desued distn"nuhon ol forecasted poptdahm and employmerﬁ} R
' growth within the region. Downtown Centers, Regional Centers and TOD Cormidors will .~
accommodate an increasing proporlion of the region’s populatson and employrnent growth el
overﬂnenextmyears N ] , — e

ERRNE LU T T e

. 1m9-‘

| OngnaISubmiltal February! 2005 o
i ~ILIESCU000164 "
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,   ‘_ | i W gf'n HT

. wc:cca RDDGERS ‘5'_,,"VTBr‘laﬂvaMap&SpeclaIUsePelmi!Appﬂcaﬂon Projectbuuipuon

Gentersandcomdors , e ]l ) ! ' : ' S
- = The region will plan Cenlers and: TOD Comdors thal aitfacl mcreasmg Ievalsof |nveslmenl and L
. development capital. _These Centers and TOD Corridors will grow to absorb.our increasing
- populstion through the developmem of hlgh-densdy residential developmem. Commercial -
'_andmuadﬂsedevequnerdmbecﬁrectedlooentersandtransdmdors .
e The Dowmuwncmtasoimecnyuiﬂanoand&lyoiSpaﬁ&s wlnbesugmﬁcatuecmomnceruers
" in_our fegion. ‘These regional mixed-use centers will mclude retall, high density residerrtial o
entertammem,ufﬁcebtﬂd‘ngsandpubﬁcfaulmes o L
-« Downtown Centers, Regional Centers and TOD comdo:swﬂlbemrxed-use,wwal}yamacmm S
© " will entice’ bath tocal residents and'visﬂOrstomearea day and night. These Centers and TOD -
.t Comidors wili promole multi-modal transportahm and may support a_range. of activitles -~
- _including. shopping; recreation;” d'mng and _entertainment, gaming and accommodation, . .
.. employment,” cunutal or cmnmumly events* as well as prowd'mg high densny residenhal; ‘
“opportunities. -

s To'accommodate our changing populanons needs ihe Regmnal Plan will supporl the pro\nsuon of
" more diverse market-rate and aﬂordable housing products and opportunities, such as, assisted
. car andothefeldedyhouangfauﬁh&s multlfamlly units; student housing, andmldto hlgh rise -
¢ apartments, - i ,
e . Intense development. wil be dlrectedjto the “Downtown Gmters, Heglonal Oenters and oo
: Comdors. i 4 . T '

o o “These Planning Pnnmpals arethe spnnlboard ior manyloftheGoals and Pohcles oi the Reg:onal Plan s~

: . S deartoseeﬂ:ahnlensaﬁwbmmmeumanwreareaomeF!eg:omsdes:mdanddwededmrwghmese SR
.,397 , - Principals. It is the belig! of Wood Rodgers and!hepro;ecl applicant that the proposad Wingfield Towers
e prmmtesmeseReglonalPlanPrmcnpa!sandwﬂlasmsmmeconhnuedpmgressbemmademtheReno__,
i

Reno msmcts and Specld Piaming Areas ]

Thepm;ectstte laeswrthmmeCdy ofHenaDowntownAreaOveday Dfstm!{see F:gure 1808-30!#1939110'- o
Municipal Code, updatedFebmaryQ 2005). Acopyofmzs section rsprowded in. Tab 5 of this application.
“With' the_ properly location i this Overiay Dnstncl, development on the: sile is generally- encouraged for
intensification to meet the Regional land use goals -for- the area.  Some of the specific, allowances of

- exemplions from standards City Code:-include: exemphon from Landscape Area Hequarements Shading of
padcsandres-dents andresdaﬁalad]acencystandards : : S ,

. ‘l . .

n addmon m h‘le project s:te loc;anun ‘Within :hefDowntown Area Overiay District, lhe propeny is also Iocated .
within a City-of Reno Transit Corridor: (the Snuih Vlrguma Street Transit Conidor). The Trickee: Meadows
‘Regional Plan provides direction foi developmem in the Regional. .Specific references are made io mixed -

* -use and high density residential opportumhes wsmm the Domtown Cemers, Heg:onal Gen:ers and Tfanat
Onented Development T DD) Cdeors i | e .

The pmpenv was recently added 10° me cny 01 Reno- Redevelopment District in Hedevelopmenl Dustnd 2.
As such, the mcremental tax beneﬁts from the rionstructl;m of this pro;ect will strongly benefil. lhe district.

w~ﬂw proiéct:site is NOT-within ﬂwlnx:kee&ver Coridar or Dowmawn Riverfront Spemal _rpose District.:
E - This-district has special restricions 1o-height and setbacks from the.urban core: area, ad;awm o the Hlver o
. .. | Thlsandafewomerprmemmhavebaenleﬂmdmlsﬂlsim '

S ' IUIESCU000165
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; @ : - 3 :l - : Wlng\(u:ld Towcrs
'._ uJDDD HDDGERS o TerrtatlveMap&SpeclaIUsePennltAppﬂcaﬂon ProiectDescdpﬂon

vl -SURWEYING

_ ,Su:mna:yofpmposeunew,opmm o -
R mproledsrteconsnstsoi 1364 acresoflandlomledbehveen Is!ananveandGouﬂStreetinDowntown L
 Reno, just east of Arington Avenue. “The Wingfield Towers will consist of two architecturally matching .-~~~
Wers(meofwmmandoneof.@ﬂ stonas) Theiullowmg uses are included |nmeproposedtowe|-s

;73-..'499 resndemlal (condomumum )umts : :,' - e
. '824 parking spaces, entirely contained within aparkmg stctwre - "
'_"28SDO:SFoiPubthlazaSpaceatmePodiumLevel S

40,5001 SF of Office and et Space -~ :

“A wmter garden witha ?S-foot lap poo! srtuaied on top of. the 28-story tower

- Awpyufhetentahvemapexh'brts:sprowdedmreducedsxzemTabsandmhsliazeaﬁamedtomis
- appbcahon package Architectural elevations have also been prowdw in lhls appﬁcahon o .

" MasterPlanDesmabnn _. TounstCor:'!lmermal

ProposedlotsUnts -~ 409 Condolmlmum Umts rangmg in size fmm 37& SF o .
SR o 7014:tSFandanaverageumlsaeot1,243;tsf

.’  Sefbacks & Lol Sizes - - "The CB zohe allows for O-foct setbacks on all sdes of the
SRS - e .+ 7 propeny. |The project incorporates O-foot setbacks for. the.
c ' -7 subléimanegn structiral portion of the building wntammghe '
_ Parking Garage and some retail space, which is.exposed on
 the . downhiliiver . Side of the property.  The' setbacks to_ .
- properly hne for. thetwotowers range from jusl over 20»feetioz
‘ -overBO—feet IR ,

- PedestianAccess - . ::Pedestnan"access will be prowded into. and through the f |
o T e --_propeﬂygmundsmmughapubhcpiaza L S

o Patding - Awaol 824 parking spaces are prowdedmﬂ‘ne pading .

LT e 'slructureatthebaseofthebmlding Depending . upon the.
catculabommethod -used, between 407 -and: 679 parking

- spaces are,requured fo meel the minimum Gode Standards. .

- The exoess‘padung:s intended for-use and benefit by others in

-the areas.’| Please see the Parking Section of this Project

'Descnphon ifor adu”monal details regardmgmeprowsmnoiand'

required parkmg spao&s '

Project Signage: o Project Sngrllage i proposed on both the Court St:neet and L
R _ : R istand - Drive - entrancesiaccesses o the prqed and wit -
e e e .oonfonn tothe Cﬂmndards o " Lo

|LIESCUOOO1E7
JA0675 = - .
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' ) Requwtsolmef:ﬂy

) Three requests are sought wnh this applncatmn - |

| Tentaﬂve Map M._Ig_ﬂ_( _

LT T — mswisr

o Amenitles o i !|

P“?'lﬂﬁI HelghtandArchnecture o :The pmposed Wingfield Towers area. Please elerto the

colored- buiid'ng elevations prowded in Tab’3 to- view: the

B ‘proposed ‘architectural character

. ProjectMaintenance: . - . 'CommonAreawmunfo:meMngﬁeldTowerszsproposedto,' e

7 -.be mamtamed through an assomahm o olher acoeptable

' ('l) A tentahve map Ior a 499 unit high-rise oondomlnlum developmem comamlng ) unrts of retal and L
- office space. - § S o

- (2) A special use pamit for hil!ssde development I

(3). Aspec:aluse permit for cuts and fils. - i

|

As‘noted prewously ‘the Wingfield Towers pmposas LQQ resudent:aj oondomlmum umts_ An addmon 11

' unﬂs are proposed to contain retail and ofﬁce spaoe

‘.‘
'E

' .Bu mUnﬂandNon—resdenhalAmas SRR

‘ _UnﬂorUseType._, _ Number “of Umts or _
: ) SquarEFOOtﬂge AL
Studlo Units L o Tt nits |
‘{BedroomUnits. -~ . | o 263 Units | 7
2 Bedroom Units -~ 144 Unis |
abedroanUnits o T Units:
Penthouses : o -AKnits |
‘ Total Hemdenhal Umts _ o 409 Units |

ll

‘The ameniies’ mcluded in the ngﬁeld Tuwers mdude 3 health duh o weuness centet, 754001 long |ap?"
pool and 28,300+ SF of Public Plaza area at; the: podlum level. It has yet 10-be determined whether the.

health club/wellness- center will be a commemal venture or it rt will be- open only to 1he resudents o! the}_
ngﬁeld Towersprogect oo ‘I _ e ,

Vehncuiar and Pedestmn Access L ’,' ‘ _

Access to the panung garage area will be accommodated through Court Stréet and Island Drive, Pedeshan -
access wil be serves similarly off both. of these streets through stairways and elevatofs. Access fo the

Public Plaza. at the’ podmm level of the Wingfieid Tower prqecl will be: available trom both Court Streei and.
Istand Drive. ... . _ e

] JAGG76 vonetes.

' . Wlngﬁclc! Towcrs R
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‘. wt::u::::: -ﬁr::ocsr:z:s_ Tentaﬁveﬂap&SpeclaIUsePermnAppllcaﬂon Pm]eclbescﬂpﬁon

:nnm:t:mﬂs m MARPFHG  BUMVEY NG

- Paﬂqng mllbeprovsdedlnaparkmg garagehenmthﬂle proposedtowers ‘The paﬂqng garage area willbe o
subleranean when viewed trom Court Stree:msuslommhergmwhenmmelslandnmesdeo!m

st - Access fothe gerage wilbe provided fom Gout Srestand Istand Drve.

Thetotalnumberutpadongspacepmdednﬁegarag';es&% meparhngleqmremmﬂslorﬁ'leplqect R
: rangefrom407spacestoﬁ795paces depemimgupmwhemeroodeallowedneduchonsareusedmme-} S
" project. 'I'heareamwhachﬂmeprojechsIocﬂeddoshavesomepaﬂmgtssues,wmwhsmed-mbf o
" this reasbn that the parking provided. within the proposed Wingficild Tower garage is more than ample to~ .~ .-
 meet the demand of the proposedTowersandmptandepossibleadcihonalpadongIoraqaceILdeﬁccent';_' RS
_ .uses(sumgstheParkTowerCondomzmums)miorspema!eventsatMngﬁeld Park {such as the Truckee .
- “River Festival, Arigwn, etc). . Thevanamenneqmredspaceslsbasedupmmegenemloodemm'...--
-iotoffstreetpaﬁungmtramilcomdorareas - i‘»i ‘
: nmc Sedhon 1aoa4oscc)(4)(n) allows for mﬂmgs overGSfeetm hengmtoreduce the overall pamng- o
- requirement by 40%. ReStdenualusesmaymﬂwwmeductmorprowdemespaoeperdwe!fmunﬂ,_',' c
whcheverisless. ER .
- j"‘The followmg tab[es showthevanws parkng lequuement calculatlons aliowedhyC()de. Theflrsttable R
caloulates the Standard Downtown Parking Requirement;-also showing the- TOD aliowed {40%)- reduced” s
_ '_paﬁang requirement.: The second table (Alemative 2) calwlatmsﬂweTODpaﬂung requsramrﬂﬂ parking . ...
j spaoe per uni't:sprovnded rather-than usmgtheStandard Downtown Parhng F!equnrement :

: a. - Afmauve 1~ Standard Downtown Code andTOD Reduced Parkmg Hequuements (m Fleduchan]

T Use

E l.hrlsorSF

- Multlplier

_ "Parldng Eui

. Sthlo_Units

TR T

“0.9perunit - |

F-<ER

A'perunit 1

'i"ii.‘216'E" —1

2 Bedroom Units

1447

1.5perunt

3 bedroom Units

T

T _15perunit:

~ 56 5oz

1.5 perunit

T8 Sp ares

Goest

1A0unis |

| Office

30,6001 51

1/385 SF

Retail -

none -

e

- Downtown Code Flequired Parlci

o 19,8171?’5! s ] ' .

678 Spaces_

TOD Allowed - 40% Reduction -

| ijri" 27168paces

[[TOD Reduced Parking Requirement

“wSpams |

JA06TT
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w.ngscia Towm

Tentaﬂve Map ] Speclnl Use Pen-nn Applicahon Pro]ecl Descnpﬁon

'_ : ,A!terrmive 2= TOD Parlang Requurement (1 Parlong Spaoe Per Unlt Calwlabon)

Accessible Parhm L : __::.;._:f;

: Use AR Unns orSF 'Multipller . Parklng ﬁgui ‘
[SwdoUnks . 7t | fperunh | TiSpaces | -
. [ Bedroom Unlts_— 233";&;1_.--1" | tpefunit | -~ 263Spaces - |-
-1 2 Bedroom Units - R L X 1 perunit 144 Spacns_f o
3 bedroom Units- ~ ATy ~ 1perunt- -] - 17 Spaces-
" | Penthouses . - R R __ lperunit- | - 48paces-- | . -
| Guest . o1 tiwunis . | B0Spaces. .l .
‘Office /206038t~ | - 1/385SF- -5.4<Spasesf._...
- | Retal ':.':19,81?:'_'sf-,- - none- 0 Spaoes. -
. Totnl __'!.i_ N S mspaees

Lo Parhng reduchons have been a!lowed mmedowntovm andTOD areastoencouragemsusau!aftemahve o
. transportation modes. Unfortunately, & viable, dependable mass transit system does nat currently exist in
~ Reno. While it is'applauded that appropriate planning i€ taking place. through the Regional Center and TOD
' plans.it:sforeseenmatvmble mass: transn:ssmlanwmerofyearsaway As such, theapchantts-
. proposing parking in excess of the Code. requnrements Tt should be understood that excess parking is -
- allowedaslongasillscontalnedw:ﬂ\mapaﬂungstmcmfe Section18.08.405(c)(4)(c.) states that*Parking -
“in excess of code: minimums mayonrybepmwdedmpaMngstmctumsorwiﬂnnmeenvelopeoim ‘
bullding.” - The community benefit from this excess: parking could: help to address some of the exising.
© parking issues in the-area, such as at the Pal‘x Tower Condominiums.. Appropriate agreements foruseof
o the spac&cwouldneedtobeexecmw bmntsﬂ\emtentufme applicant that, ﬂadcﬁbmalpaﬂungcanbe o
- provided that it: benefit the exlstmg area and residents’  Possible additional benefit uses o the excess

parking could be the ever-growing and successhd ‘special events held in ngﬁeld Par‘k {ﬂollln on the str o

: Cormrl Senes The Truckee River Festival and Arnovm to name a few)..

i JI
. ('

Accessible paﬂung 5 requared ata rale 01 9 spaces ior 401 500 reqmred spaces The parklng garage: o

provides 17. total accessble spaces. while only 9 spaces are requlred As such, the requnrement for ‘
,amssihleparlmgspacesusmet. : , S - -

, I
' S@lal Use Permﬂ HM ‘]:
' Hequested w;th thts appﬁcahon are two specxal use pennﬂs

ql
{1} - Hillside Development and ol
2 Cmsmexcessofzofeet. _ 'l'-
SR
Hillside Developmerrl Special Use Pennlt i E
i fi .

The SUblBGt pmperty due to ex:shng slnpes reqmres a specsal use pen'ml for HlI!Slde Development -
- Approxzmatelyzﬁ%ofmetotal s:teareauontamsdopesoveﬂﬁ% e

“Wood Flodgershas analyzed the proposed ngﬁeld Towers pro;ecITaneSpecl to the e:ustmgﬂllls:de U
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CODE 2645
GAYLE A. KERN, LTD.
GAYLE A. KERN, ESQ.

‘Nevada Bar No. 1620

5421 Kietzke Lane, Suite 200
Reno, NV 89511

(775) 324-5930

Fax (775) 324-6173

E-mail: gaylekern(@kemlid.com

Attorneys for Respondent Mark B. Sieppan

FILED
Electronically
02-03-2009:04:56:47 PM
Howard W. Conyers
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 579452

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

"IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

JOHN ILIESCU JR., SONNIA SANTEE
ILIESCU, AND JOHN ILIESCU JR. AND
SONNIA ILIESCU AS TRUSTEES OF THE
JOHNILIESCU, JR. AND SONNIA ILIESCU
1992 FAMILY TRUST,

| Appﬁéants,
Vvs.
MARK. B. STEPPAN,

Respondent.

MARK STEPPAN,
Plaintiff,

VS.

JOHN ILIESCU, JR. and SONNIA
ILIESCU, as Trustees of the JOHN
ILIESCU, JR., AND SONNIA ILIESCU
1992 FAMILY TRUST AGREEMENT;
JOHN ILIESCU, individually; DOES I-V,
inclusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS VI-
X, inclusive.

Defendants.

AND RELATED ACTIONS.

CASE NO.: CV07-00341
(Consolidated with Case No. CV(7-01021)

DEPT.NO.: 6

MARKB. STEPPAN’S OPPOSITION TO
MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY

- JUDGMENT AND CROSS-MOTION

FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY

JUDGMENT

JA0709
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Respondent/PIaintiff; Mark Steppan (“Steppan"), by and through his counsel, opposes
Applicants/Defendants’ John Iliescu, Jr. and Sonnia Iliescu as Trustee of the John Iliescu, Jr. and
Sonnia Iliescu 1992 Family Trust’s, and John Tliescu’s (“Iliescu™), individually, (collectively
“Defendants”) Motion for Partial Summary Judgment on Mark B. Steppan’s Claim for Foreclosure
of Mechanic’s Lien (hereinafter “MSJI”) and moves for partial summary judgment to foreclose on
the mechanic’s lien at 1ssue, and submits the following Meniorandum of Points and Authorities in
support of his opposition.

Dated this 22™ day of January, 2009.

GAYLE A. KERN, LTD.

GAYLBA. KERN, ESQ.
Attorneys for MARK STEPPAN

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
I. INTRODUCTION

.Asthis Court aptly stated at the hearing for Motion for Release of Mechanic’s Lien, this case
involves only one issue: “[D]id the owner have actual lmowledge of information sufficient to put
him on a duty — to impose on him reasonably a legal duty to do something, get more information
or sufficient information for the notice ofnon-responsibility.”” Exhibit “3"!' to MST at 53-54. Based
on the undisputed facts of this case, the answer to this issue must be in the affirmative.

II. STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED FACTS

Defendants own four parcels of land in downtown Reno (“the Property”). Exhibit “1" to
MSJ. Pursuant to an “Agency Relationship Confirmation,” Metzker Johnson Group (“Johnson™)
exclusively represents Defendants in the sale of the Property. 7d. at Iliescu000038. Sam Caniglia
represents Consolidated Pacific Devélopment (“CPD”). Id. at liescu000028.

On July 14, 2005, Caniglia faxed a letter to Johnson stating that he was prepared to make

an offer on the Property. See July 14, 2005 letter to Johnson from Caniglia, Exhibit *13” hereto.

!'In order to assist the Court and avoid duplication of exhibits, Steppan will refer to the
Exhibits provided in the MST and will continue with additional exhibits by numbering in sequential
order for the new exhibits attached hereto. A combined Exhibit Index is also attached.

2
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The letter set forth in detail the proposal, as well as a list of advantages to persuade Defendants to
accept the offer. /d. One ofthe advantages listed included the following: “Architects and Engineers
in place ready to start work.” /d. at [liescu000018.

On July 29, 2005, Defendants entered into a contract with CPD for the sale of the Property
(hereinafier “the Agreement”). See generally Exhibit “1" to MSJ. Iliescu fully understood that
CPD intended to construct residential condominium units (“the Project™) and fully understood
architects and-engineers would be starting work. See Exhibit “2" 4 4 to MSJ. [liescu retained the
law firm of Hale Lﬁne to represent lliescu’s interests in connection with the Property. See generally
Iliescu’s Answer and Third Party Complaint; Exhibit “14" Testimony of Richard Johnson at pages
36-43, page 87. The Agreement was contingent upon CPD obtaining certain government approvals
for the Project. See Exhibit “1" q 39(F) to MSI.

Part of the purchase price included a 3,500 square foot penthouse condominium for Iliescu
and his wife. 7d. 4 39(H). In fact, lliescu had the right to review the floor plans related to this
penthouse. fd.

CPD entered inio a contract with Steppan for architectural services. See Exhibit “4" at

Niescu000108. Prior to the final contract, the parties negotiated several of the terms. In addition,

“Iliescu’s attorney drafted and circulated a Memorandum on behalf of the Owner of the Property,

Tliescu. See Exhibit “15 », Stepp001-002.

The agreement provided that Steppan would be compensated at the rate of 5.75% of the total
construction costs estimated at $160,000,000. Exhibit “4" at Iliescu000116. CPD and Steppan
later amended the total construction costs and increased it from 516-0,000,000 to $1 £0,000,000. Id.
at Tliescu000119. |

As part of the Tentative Map & Special Use Permit Application (““Application”), Iliescu and
his wife executed “Owner Affidavits” January 17, 2006. See Exhibit “11" to MSJ. Attached to the
“Owner Affidavits” was the Tentative Map & Special Use Permit Application. See generally
Exhibit “12" to MSJ. The third page of this Application identified certain parties. fd. at

Iliescu000147. The Application identified Iliescu and his wife as the owners, CPD as the developer,

JAO711
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and Fisher Friedman Associates as the person to contact regarding the application. Id. The
Application included architectural drawings. Id. at Thescu000173-000200.,

David Snelgrove of Wood Rogers assisted in the preparation olf the Application. See Exhibit
“10" 9§ 2 to MSJ. The Application included architectural drawings for the Project and contained the
names of the project architect, Mark Steppan, and the architectural design consultant Fisher
Friedman Associates. Id. at Iliescu000173-000200. The City of Reno sent a letter and
Memorandum to John and Sonia Iliescu on February 14, 2006. Directly below the name of the
Tliescu is the name of Fisher Friedman Associates. See Exhibit “16", Stepp010-016. The attached
Memorandum identified the Residential towers showing a development of a 394 condominiuzm
subdivision. fd. at Stepp015. The architectural drawings reflect dates of April 7, 2006, May 24,
2006, and June 1, 2006. See Exhibit “10" 9 2 to MST at Iliescu000173-000200.

Mr. Snelgrove recollects that Tliescu saw these architectural drawings. See Exhibit “10"
7 to MSI. Iliescu argues that he could not have seen these drawings when he signed the Owner
Affidavit in January of 2006 because the drawings show dates of April, May and June, 2006.
Although Iliescu had the opportunity to provide an affidavit st'ating that he had never seen any of
these architectural drawings until the inception of the instant lawsuit, he failed to do so. Nothing
in his original affidavit indicates that he never viewed any of these architectural drawings until the
inception of the instant lawsuit. See generally Exhibit “2" to MSJ. The only inference that can be
drawn from Mr. Snelgrove’s and Iliescu’s affidavits is that at some point in time before the lawsuit,
Tiescu viewed the architectural drawings.

Iliescﬁ attended two public meetings where the design team presented the proposed
condominium project. See Exhibit “4" 4 7 to MSI. The very first slide of the presentation
specifically identified Mark B. Steppan as the Architect and Fisher-Friedman Associates as the
Desig-n Coﬁs-ﬁlt-a;nt. See Eﬁhibit “7" to MSJ Theré can be no doubt in [liescu’s mind at this time
that an architect and designers prepared the schematic drawings presented at this meeting. See
generally id.

In November of 2006, Steppan recorded a Notice and Claim of Lien for services provided

on the Project benefitting the Property. See Exhibit “5" to MS]. Iliescu initially moved for release

4
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of mechanic’s lien. This Court held a hearing on this motion in May of 2007 and declined to rule
on that motion at that time. This Court correctly noted it had to “discern what Dr. Iliescu’s
knowledge [regarding Steppan providing architectural services] was.” See Exhibit “3" at 59 to
MSJ.

Iliescu never recorded a Notice of Nonresponsiblity with respect to the Property.

- 7 7 III. DISCUSSION 7 )

A, Mechanic’s Lien Law Is Remedial in Nature and Should Be Liberally Construed.

The Nevada Supreme Court has consistently held that “the mechanic’s lien statutes are
remedial in character and should be liberally construed: that substantial compliance with the
statutory requirements is sufficient to perfect the lien if the property owner is not prejudiced.” Las
Vegas Plywood & Lumber, Inc. v. D&D Enterprises, 98 Nev. 378, 380, 649 P.2d 1367, 1368
(1982).

[W1hile there must be substantial compliahce with the essential requisites of the

statute, such pleadings and notices as the law requires should be liberally construed

in order that justice migiit be promoted and the desired object might be affected.

Courts will not give the statute such a narrow or technical construction as to fritter

away, impede, or destroy the right of the lien claimant. . . . [T]he statute to be

remedial [sic] must be liberally construed and that substantial compliance is

sufficient to create a valid lien. '
Peccole v. ',Ll,lFe, & Goodfellow, Inc., 66 Nev 360, _370-71, 212 P.2d 718, 723-24 (1949) ; see also
BMC West Corp. v. Horkley, 174 P.3d 399 (Idaho 2007) (materialman’s lien laws construed
liberally in favor of the person who performs labor upon or furnishes materials to be used in
construction of building); fn re Regan, 151 P.3d 1281 (Colo. 2007) (mechanic’s lien laws liberally
construed because designed to prevent unjust enrichment of property owners); Betancourt v. Storke
Housing Investors, 82 P.3d 286 (Cal. 2003) (court uniformly classified mechanic’s lien laws
remedial legisiation to be liberally construed for protection of laborers and materialmen).

When the Nevada Legislature aniended the mechanic’s lien statutes in 2005, the Assembly
Commuittee on Judiciary recognized that the purpose of the statutes 1s to “get peoPI_e paid.”
Assembly Committee on Judiciary May 13, 2005 at 23, Exhibit “18” hereto.

One of the things we have learned is that our mechanics’ lien statute is there fora

purpose. It helps to get people paid.
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In 2003 we did a major overhaul of the statute, which is there for a purpose. Itis
there to assist people who have improved real property so that they can get paid for
their efforts. That is something that has proven to work over the vears. In fact, our

~ Nevada Supreme Court has consistently held that our lien law should be liberally
construed in favor of lien claimants.

Id. (emphasis added).

Similarly, when the Nevada Legislature amended the mechanic’s lien statutes in 2003, the
primary purpose was to add additional protection to the lien claimants’ rights.

The purpose of this bill is to prohibit the prospective waiver of lien claimant’s

rights, and to confirm, clarify, and standardize the procedures and forms required

for a waiver and release upon payment.

Senate Committee on Judiciary, March 11, 2003 at 7, Exhibit “17” hereto. Included within the
2003 amendment was a statute involving disinterested owners in a lessor and lessee relationship
sitnation:

Senator Care: Section 7 is about a disinterested owner, I understand the definition,

but can you tell me what recourse a disinterested owner has? For example, I once

represented a landlord who owned a shopping center where an electrician was

recruited by a tenant and did some work. Then the tenant skipped out and never

paid the electrician. A lien was filed on the shopping center itself,

Mr. Hollway: Disinterested owners, as soon as they learn the work is being done,

should file notices as disinterested owners. The existing law and the proposed

changes would then absolve the disinterested owner’s property of any lien claims.

They need to file the notice as soon as they become aware work is being done by the

tenant.

Id. at 8.

In ruling on the issue of the validity of Steppan’s lien, this Court should be cognizant of the
fact that the primary purpose of the mechanic’s lien statutes is to provide security to individuals
such as Steppan for the services provided for improving Defendants’ Property. Steppan’s
substantial compliance with the lien statutes is sufficient to perfect the lien. This is particularly so
where lliescu had actual lnowledge that architectural services would be provided and were provided

for the benefit of the Property by as early as July of 2005,

B. Iliescu Had Actual Knowledge of the Architectural Services to Be Provided for the
Benefit of the Property.

As thoroughly discussed at the hearing before this Court, [liescu is not a disinterested party

to the transaction. From the beginning, Iliescu sought to benefit from the work performed in relation
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to the real property. Iliescu negotiated a Land Sale Agreement that included consideration for the
real property to include conveyance of a penthouse and parking in the finished project. In addition,
the approval process that resulted in entitlements to real property creates significant value in the real
property prior to any construction. This is not a situation where Iliescu entered into a contract to sell
the real property and had no knowledge what the buyer would be doing prior to the close of escrow.
To the contrary, Iliescu was intimately aware of the project and its components. Iliescu was
intimately aware of the tremendous about of work that the buyer would be doing to obtain approval
of the ambitious project. Iliescu knew, from the language of the Land Sale Agreement that the
buyer would be engaging several professionals, including architects.

The Land Sale Agreement is filled with specific language that evidences Iliescu’s full
knowledge of the condominium project, full knowledge of the work to be performed, full
knowledge rof the very services that form the basis of the mechanic’s lien and full knowledge that
mechanic’s liens may be asserted. See e.g. Ekllibit"‘l’;, Paragraphs 31, 39E, 39F, 39H(1), 39H,
39L, Addendum No. 1, Addendum No. 2,_ Addendum No. 3, 39M. The Applicant knew that prior
to escrow, the purchaser would be obtaining all necessary governmental permits to develop the
property as a condominium and commercial project; would be engaging professionals, including
architects and engineers; the property was to be developed as quickly as possible; and that the real
property could be subject to liens. /d. In fact, the Applicant negotiated that part of the purchase
price would be a 3500 square foot condominium. /. Tliescunegotiated to provide for certain action
with respect to liens. In paragraph 31, the parties agreed that if a lien were filed, the buyer would
“indemmnify, defend and hold [Iliescu] harmless from any lien, loss, claim, liability, or expense
including (without limitation) reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, arising of or in connection with
[buyer’s] activities . . . “ fd. at § 31 (emphasis added). Now, in light of buyer’s inability to
indemnify Thescu from Steppan’s lien, [liescu wants to avoid the bargain he struck regarding liens.
Iliescu prefers that the lien he anticipated may be recorded, the lien Iliescu negotiated would be
taken care of by the buyer’s indemnification, would instead just go away because [liescu failed to

record a notice of non-responsibility. It is frivolous to assert that Iliescu was unaware of the work
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of improvement that was going to occur on the property before the close of escrow and that may
result in a lien.

1. Fondren Remains Good Law and Is Direcily On Point.

Defendanfs éclmoﬁledge that F on-dren V; .K/L Complex Ltd. remains good law despite the
2005 amendments to the lien statutes. 106 Nev. 705, 800 P.2d 719 (1990). Fondren is directly on
point‘_” - | . | ,

In Fondren, Fondren leased commercial space to a tena;lt. Id. at 707, 800 P.2d at 720. The
leased space was designed to accommodate a restaurant and the tenant intended to open a new
restaurant. d., 800 P.2d at 720. The tenant began to remodel the leased space and contracted with
the lien claimants for a number of services, including development of design and layout drawings,
performance of process inspections, review of the installation of kitchen equipment, preparation of
all areas to comply with health department regulations, and custom built items. 7d., 800 P.2d at 720.

After the completion of the remodel, the tenant opened for business. Id., 800 P.2d at 720.
A fire subsequently broke out causing substantial damage to the leased premises and forced the
permanent closure of the restaurant. 7., 800 P.2d at 720.

The lien claimants executed mechanic’s liens against the premises for design, consulting
services, labor and value of goods supplied to the premises. /d., 800 P.2d at 720. The district court
ruled on summary judgment that the liens had been properly perfected and subsequently entered
judgment foreclosing the liens. 7d. at 708, 800 P.2d at 720.

Fondren appealed raising three issues, only one of which pertains to the instant case: Did
Fondren have actual notice of the construction on her property to vitiate the notice requirement of
NRS 108.2457 In response to this question, the Nevada Supreme Court held that Fondren had
actual knowledge of the work of improvement and failed to record the required notice of
nonresponsibility. Zd. at 710, 800 P.2d at 722.

Fondren knew that the tenant intended to remodel. 7d. at 708, 800 P.2d at 721. Both
Fondren and the tenant understood that substantial remodeling would be required when the lease
was negotiated. Id. at 709, 800 P.2d at 721. The tenant apprized Fondren on the progress of the
remode] and she approved specific construction activities. Jd., 800P.2d at 721. Fondren’s attorney

8
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regularly inspected the progress of the remodeling efforts. 7d., 800 P.2d at 721. The court
concluded Fondren had actual knowledge of the work being performed and this knowledge satisfied
the notice requirement of NRS 108.245. Id., 800 P.2d at 721.

[S]ubstantial compliance with the technical requirements of the lien statutes is

sufficient to create a lien on the property where, as here, the owner of the property

receives actual notice of the potential lien claim and is not prejudiced.
Id., 800 P.2d at 721 (quoting Board of Trustees v. Durable Developers, Inc., 102 Nev. 401, 410,
724 P.2d 736, 743 (1986)).

Fondren argued that she did not know the various subcontractor’s names or the extent of the
expenditures. /d., 800P.2d at 721. Inresponse, the court concluded that this argument “misses the
point: she knew that a construction project was underway on the Property.” Id., 800 P.2d at 721.
Fondren’s “knowledge that construction was underway places the burden on her to file the notice
of nonresponsibility.” 7d., 800 P.2d at 721 (emphasis added).

NRS 108.234, which existed during Fondren, provided that the owner of property could
record a notice of nonresponsibility within three days after he has obtained knowledge of the
construction, alteration or repair to avoid liability on the lien. See NRS 108.234 (1991), Exhibit “9"
to MSJ. Since Fondren, the Nevada Legislature in 2005 amended NRS 108.234 to require each
notice of nonrespensibility to include a number of specific items in order to be effective and valid.
NRS 108.234. One of the items to be included are the names and addresses of the disinterested
owner’s and the person who is causing the work of improvements to be constructed, altered or
repaired. 7d.

A comparison of NRS 108.234 as it existed during Fondren and as it exists now undeniably
shows that in order to avoid liability on the lien, the owner has a much more onerous burden now.
Prior to the 2005 amendment, all the owner had to do was give “notice that he will not be
responsible for such improvement by filing a notice in writing to that effect. . .” See Exhibit “9" to
MSJ. The current statute still requires the owner to give “notice that he will not be responsible for
the improvement by recording a notice in writing to that effect . . . “ NRS 108.234(2). In order for

the notice to be effective and valid, however, it must include certain information. NRS 108.234(3).
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The changes in NRS 108.234 in 2005 obviously show that the legislature intended to make

it more difficult for the owner to avoid lien responsibility.

Section 15 modifies the statute that pertains to the notice of nonresponsibility and

provides that an owner must give that notice to a prime contractor and a lessee. It

also provides the method for the prime contractor to give notice to the lower tier

trades. In subsection 2, we have modified the definition of “disinterested owner.”

We believe the current language that is set forth in the statute has too many

exceptions to the exception. We are trying to make certain that it is understood and

a court can easily understand what the intent of the Legislature was.

Exhibit “18™ May 13, 2005 Assembly Committee Minutes at 292,

Nothing in the revised NRS 108.234 supports a conclusion that the burden as articulated in
Fondren (“knowledge that construction was underway places the burden on her to file the notice
of nonresponsibility”), has been shifted to the lien claimants. 106 Nev. at 710, 800 P.2d at 721
(emphasis added). The burden remains on the owner to record the requisite notice of
nonresponsibility when the owner acquires knowledge that improvements are bemg made on his
property. |

2. Iliescu Had Actual Knowledge of the Fact that CPD Had to Hire Architects and
Designers.

On July 14,2005, Johnson received a facsimile letter from CPD stating that “Architects and
Engineers [were] in place ready to start work.” See Exhibit “13” at Iliescu000018. Because
Johnson exclusively represents Defendants in the sale of the Property Pursuant to an “Agency
Relationship Confirmation,” see Exhibit “1" at Tliescu000038 to MSJ, actual knowledge of the
owner’s agent will be imputed to the owner for purposes of the lien statutes. See Fondren, 106 Nev.
at 709, 800 P.2d at 721 (citing Gould v. Wise, 18 Nev. 253, 3 P. 30 (1884)). By as early as July 14,
2005, Niescu knew that CPD had hired both architects and engineers for the Project.

On July 29, 2005, Defendants entered into the Agreement with CPD for the sale of the
Property. See generally Exhibit “1" to MSJ. CPD had the exclusive right to purchase the Property

and Defendants could not solicit or accept any other offers during the term of the Agreement. Jd.

T 39(A).

*The page number of the minutes is in the top left hand corner.
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As part of the purchase price, Iliescu negotiated a 3,500 square foot penthouse
condominium. /d. § 39(H) to MSJ. In fact, lliescu had the right to review the floor plans related to
this penthouse. Id.

Under the Agreement, CPD and their retained professionals had access to the Property. /d.
9 31. The Agreement was contingent upon CPD obtaining certain governmental approvals. Jd. §
39(F). The governmental approvals to be obtained included the following: (1) variance, (2)
tentative map, (3) special use permits, zone change a.ru-:l lénd use deéignétion, and (4) architectural
and design review and approval. /d. Item (4} was specifically added to the Agreement. /4.

By the end of July of 2005, Tliescu had actual knowledge that architects and designers would
be hired to work on the Project in order to obtain the governmental approvals as required by the
Agreement. Similar to Fondren who understood that substantial remodeling would be required
when the lease was negotiated, Iliescu understood that CPD intended to develop the Project and had
to hire architects and designers in order to obtain certain governmental approvals. See Exlubit “2"
9 4 to MSJ.

On August 25, 2005, Mr. Cagnilia and Johnson met with the Mayor of Reno regarding the
Project. See September 1, 2005 Letter from Sam Cagnilia to Mayor Robert A. Cashell, Sr., Exhibit
“19” hereto.

In October and November of 2006, John Iliescu attended two public meetings involving the
presentation of the Project. /d. Although Dr. Iliescu may not have been introduced to Steppan at
any of these presentations, the very first slide of the presentation specifically identified Mark B.
Steppan as the Architect and Fisher-Friedman Associates as the Design Consultant. See Exhibit
“7" to MSI. This slide was not hidden away amongst the other slides but was the very first one of
the presentétion. Id. Nothing in Dr. Iliescu’s affidavit states that he never saw this specific slide.
See generally Exhibit “2" to MSI. The affidavit only asserts that no one introduced him to any of
the architects or designers at either of these two public meetings. 7d. § 4.

The fact that Iliescu may not have known the name of the architect in July of 2005 “misses
the point.” It is undisputed that Iliescu knew that as part of the Agreement he negotiated with the

buyer, the buyer was required to hire architects and designers to obtain architectural and design
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review and approval as a condition to closing the deal on the sale of the Property. By October of
2006, lliescu became aware of the identity of the architect. Nothing in the record supports a
contrary conclusion.

As this Court correctly stated, “[t]he more you know, the greater your responsibility is.”

* Exhibit “3" at 17 to MSJ.

But if you, as an example, are sitting in a planning meeting and an architectural firm

is making some sort of detailed presentation of the design to the planning -

authorities, I don’t know what else you need to know, or at least need to know in

order to have a duty to inquire an obligation to file your notice of non-responsibility.

Id. at 33.

Once Ilescu acquires notice or knowledge that the buyer was required to and had in place
an architect to ohtain the required architectural and design review and approval, he has a dutyto act
to avoid liability on potential liens. See Duffield Construction, Inc. v. Baldwin, 679 N'W.2d 477
(S8.D. 2004). In Duffield, lessee hired a contractor to make improvements to the land. /d. The
contractor subsequently brought an action to foreclose a mechanic’s lien. /d.

The court held that the landowners had notice and knowledge that improvements were being
made to their property and were equitably estopped from attacking the mechanic’s lien. /d. The
landowners could have filed a noticed of non-responsibility and failed to do so. Jd. The landowners
argued that they did not watch the work performed and did not know who performed the work. 7d.
at 482. The court ruled that “the validity of a lien does not depend on the owner’s knowledge of
each and every detail about the improvements being made to his property.” /d.

Even if an owner does not know all the details, once he has acquired notice or

knowledge that improvements are being made to his property, he has a duty to act

to avoid liability.

Id. at482-83; see also Thirteenth Street Corp. v. A-1 Plumbing & Heating Co., 640 P.2d 1130, 1136
(Colo. 1982) (in action to determine validity of mechanic’s and materialmen’s liens, court affirmed
trial court’s ruling “that even if the owner corporation did not have actual knowledge of all the

specific work being provided, it had information which would have led a reasonably prudent person

to investigate further; thus, knowledge of the specific facts could be presumed”).

12
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review and approval as a condition to closing the deal on the sale of the Property. By October of
2006, Niescu became aware of the identity of the architect. Nothing in the record supports a
contrary conclusion,

As this Court correctly stated, “[t]he more you know, the greater your responsibility is.”
Exhibit “3" at 17 to MSJ.

But if you, as an example, are sitting in a planning meeting and an architectural firm

is making some sort of detailed presentation of the design to the planning

authorities, I don’t know what else you kneed to know, or at least need to know in

order to have a duty to inquire an obligation to file your notice of non-responsibility.

Id. at 33. )
7 |

Once Thescu acquire;i’ notice or knowledge that the buyer was required to and had in place
an architect to obtain the required architectural and design review and approval, he has a dutyto act
to avoid liability on potential liens. See Duffield Construction, Inc. v. Baldwin, 679 N.W.2d 477
(8.D. 2004). In Duffield, lessee hired a contractor to make improvements to the land. Id. The
contractor sub-s'e-qﬁéﬁ-ﬂ-y broughtan action fo foreclose armet:hanic’s lien. Id.

The court held that the landowners had notice and knowledge that improvements were being
made to their property and were equitably estopped from attacking the mechanic’s lien. /. The
landowners could have filed a noticed of non-responsibility and failed to do so. /d. The landowners
argued that they did not watch the work performed and did not know who performed the work. d.
at 482. The court ruled that “the validity of a lien does not depend on the owner’s knowledge of
each and every detail about the improvements being made to his property.” Id.

Even if an owner does not know all the details, once he has acquired notice or

knowledge that improvements are being made to his property, he has a duty to act

to avoid liability. o '

Id. at 482-83; see also Thirteenth Street Corp. v. A-1 Plumbing & Heating Co., 640 P.2d 1130, 1136
(Colo. 1982) (in action to determme validity of mechanic’s and materialmen’s liens, court affirmed
tnal court’s ruling “that even if the owner corporation did not have actual knowledge of all the

specific work being provided, it had information which would have led a reasonably prudent person

to investigate further; thus, knowledge of the specific facts counld be presumed™).
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Iliescu had notice and knowledge that CPD had in place architects and engineers by as early
as July 14, 2005. The Agreement executed on July 29, 2005 further confirmed this notice and
Hiescu’s knowledge when it required the buyer to obtain the architect and design review and
approval as a condition to-closing the deal. By October of 2006, the architect was specifically
identified by name during a presentation to the planning commission.

Armed with this notice and knowledge, lliescu cannot remain silent, acquiesce and consent
to the making of the improvements and disclaim all liability. Iliescu had information which would
have led a reasonable person to make inquiry through which he would have learned the necessary
mformation to record the requisite notice of non-responsibility. Even after Iliescu admits to
knowledge of the architects, Iliescu failed to record a notice of non-responsibility.

NRS 108.234 places upon Iliescu the burden to record a notice of non-responsibility. Iliescu
failed to do so. Instead of recording a notice of non-responsibility, lliescu intentionally chose to
execute an “Indemnity Agreement” to have the buyers indemnify him “for any and all claims and
costs related to the Architect’s recording of the Mechanic’s Lien on the Property.” See Indemnity
% E, Exhibit “20™ hereto.

Hliescu made this decision while recognizing the need and importance of recording a notice
of non-responsibility:

The Halé Lane law firm never discussea with or adviged Iliescu at any time to record

a Notice of Non-Responsibility with the Washoe County Recorder to ensure the

Property would not be encumbered by mechanics or architect’s liens recorded by
individuals hired by CPD as contemplated by the Purchase Agreement.

The Hale Lane law firm, Dennison, Howard and Snyder were negligent because,
among other things, they failed to advise lliescu to record a Notice of Non-
Responsibility, . . .
Answer and Third Party Complamt in Case No. CV07-00341 {4 21, 59. As Iliescu’s allegations
demonstrate, the burden of notifying potential lien claimants that Iliescu’s interest will not be
subject to a mechanic’s lien is on the owner.

Iliescu cannot claim that he had no obligation to record a notice of non-responsibility

because he purportedly did not know the identity of the architect and at the same time claim that
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his attorneys were negligent in failing to advise him to recofd the notice of non-~responsibility to
ensure that “the Property would not be encumbered by mechanics or architect’s liens recorded by
individuals hired by CPD as contemplated by the Purchase Agreement.” Id. lliescu knew that the
Apgreement required CPD to hire architects and engineers. Iliescu attended a planning commission
meeting where the architect and designers were specificallyidentified. Iliescu cannot cover his eyes
and sit idly to reap unfairly the unjust enrichment bestowed upon lim by Steppan’s services.

The undisputed facts show that Iliescu had actual knowledge that CPD had hired architects
as required by the Agreement. See Fondren, 106 Nev. at 705, 800 P.2d at 719 (substantial
compliance with lien statute sufficient to perfect lien where owner received actual notice of
potential lien and not prejudiced); Board of Trustees of Vacation Trust Carpenters Local No. 1780
v. Durable Developers, Inc., 102 Nev. 401, 724 P.2d 736 (1986) (same); Las Vegas Phwood and
Lumber, Inc. v. D & D Enterprises, 98 Nev. 378, 649 P.2d 1367 (1982) (same).

According to liescu, he recognized the benefits of Steppan’s labor.

The architectural schematic drawings were necessary to obtain the land use

entitlements for the Project. The land use entitlements were approved by the City

of Reno.

Exhibit “20” 9 B. Without the benefit of Steppan’s architectural schematic drawings, no entitlement
exists to build the Project within the scope as approved. Iliescu cannot claimn any prejudice and in
fact did not argue that he has been prejudiced. Iliescu has been unjustly enriched as a result of
Steppan’s services and Steppan is entitled to foreclose his lien.

The purpose and intent behind the lien statutes is to “get people paid.” Where the
undisputed facts show that Iliescu had actual knowledge that CPD hired architects and other
professionals to obtain the necessary architectural and design review and approval from the City
of Reno as required by the Agreement, he cannot sit there and claim ignorance. Iliescu had before
him sufficient knowledge to place upon him a duty to obtain the necessary information to record
a notice of non-responsibility. liescu recognized this duty as alleged by him in his Answer and
Third Party Complaint. For this Court to hold otherwise in light of these facts would completely

eviscerate the purpose and intent of the lien statutes.

117
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3. Hale Lane’s Knowledge of the Identity of the Architectural Firm Retaiued by
BSC Should be Imputed to Iliescu.

Tliescu retained the Hale Lane law firm (hereinafter “Hale Lane™) to represent him in all
aspects of the sale transaction. Once BSC became the purchaser of the Property, it also retained
Hale Lane to represent it in all aspects of the same iransaction. It appears Hale Lane obtained
waivers from both Iliescu and BSC, 1t is clear that in December of 2005, Hale Lane agreed that if
there were any conflict between their two clients, the representation would be solely extended to
Tliescu. See Exhibit “21" at Iliescu 000134,

Documentation shows that Sarah Class, an attorney with Hale Lane reviewed a draft of the
agreement between BSC and Mark Steppan. Exhibits “15 » and “22". It is important that the
review of the Steppan contract provided all information regarding the potential claims and work of
the architect on the project. It provided all information regarding the names and addresses of the
firm. It included the consideration that would be paid for the work performed. The information that
Hale Lane obtained was not through the representation of some unrelated client in an unrelated
transaction. It was the exact transaction at issue and it involved the same parties. Sarah Class, the
attorney that reviewed the Steppan contract, communicated directly with Iliescu. Exhibit *“23".

Steppan performed according to the agreement and BSC never paid it. Steppan filed a
mechanic’s lien seeking payment from Iliescu. [liescu maintains that he did not know that BSC had
retained Steppan to provide architectural services.

In addition to the discussion above, Fondren v. K/L Complex Ltd., is instructive in light of
these facts. 106 Nev. 705, 800 P.2d 719 (1990). As noted, Fondren argued that she did not
know the various subcontractor’s names or the extent of the expenditures. Jd., 800 P.2d at 721. In
response, the court concluded that this argument “misses the point: she knew that a construction
project was underway on the Property.” Id., 800 P.2d at 721. Fondren’s “knowledge that
construction was underway places the burden on her to file the notice of nonresponsibility.” 7.,
800 P.2d at 721 (emphasis added).

When Hale Lane acquired knowledge of the identity of the architectural firm, notice of this

information to Hale Lane is notice to [liescu. See Lange v. Hickman, 92 Nev. 41, 544 P.2d 1208
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(1976) (notice to an attorney is notice to his client); Noah v. Metzker, 85 Nev. 57, 450 P.2d 141
(1969) (notice to attorney of any matter relating to business of client in which attorney engaged is
notice to client); Aldabe v. Aldabe, 84 Nev. 392, 441 P.2d 691 (1968) (same); Milner v. Dudrey,
77 Nev. 256, 362 P.2d 439 (1961) (same).

An attorney’s duty to his client is that of a fiduciary or trustee. See, e.g., Cinema 5 Ltd. v.
Cinerama, Inc., 528 F.2d 1384 (2d Cir. 1976). The attorney-client relationship is predicated on
trust and confidentiality and the client is entitled to believe the attorney who says “I am a lawyer,
I protect you, I take care of everything . . .,” Wille v. Maier, 176 N.E.2d 841, 842 (1931), or “I am
your lawyer, why not trust me . . . I would not do anything that is wrong . . .” Kornbau v. Evans,
152 P.2d 651, 653 (Cal. Ct. App. 1944). The attorney’s fiduciary duties to the client involve the
duty of undivided loyalty and the duty to preserve the client’s confidences. See, e.g., Kirksey v.
State, 112 Nev. 980, 996,923 P.2d 1102, 1112 (1996) (recognizing attorney owes paramount duty
of loyalty to client); Yorn v. Superior Ct., 153 Cal. Rptr. 295 (Cal. Ct. App. 1979).

These two fiduciary obligations form the foundation of the attorney-client relationship and
allow the client to reveal full confidences and to trust fully in the attorney’s ability to represent the
client’s interests diligently and competently. See, e.g., U.S. Ice Cream Corp. v. Bizar, 659 N.Y.S.2d
492 (N.Y. 1997). Part of these two fiduciary obligations involve the attorney’s responsibility to
inform immediately the client of any important information that may _irnpinge on the attorney’s
ability to perform those obligations. See, e.g., Day v. Rosenthal, 217 Cal. Rptr. 89 (Cal. Ct.. App.
1985); Rice v. Perl, 320 N.Y.2d 407 (Minn. 1982).

Dual or simultaneous representation in real estate transactions may pose an enhanced
potential for conflict, but do not affect the conclusion that the knowledge of lliescu’s attorneys
regarding the work performed and consideration for such work is knowledge that Iliescu is charged
with in connection with this action. See St. Paul Title Co. v. Meier, 226 Cal. Rptr. 538 (Cal. Ct.
App. 1986).

It is a matter of common experience that real estate transactions carry the potential

for conflict and litigation. The published reports of our appellate courts are filled

with disputes arising from property sales, escrows and related matters.

Id. at 540.
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As Mr. Johnson testified, Hiescu retained Hale Lane within the week of the executing the
contract with BSC to guide them as to the transactions arising out of the Property. See Exhibit “14,"
Johnson testimony, page 36. Hale Lane owed its duty of loyalty to Iliescu from that moment. The
duty of loyalty to BSC and Iliescu is not a casual one that can be turned on or off as the situation
dictates. “An attorney’s loyalty to his client is not just a casual obligation to be turned on or off
as the dictates of the moment indicate or particular employment may demand.” fn re Evans, 556
P.2d at 796.

When Hale Lane learned of the identity of the architectural firm when it reviewed the
contract between BSC and Steppan, it acquired information material to its representation of Iliescu
which it should have revealed to him, particularly where Halé Lane knew that liescu could
potentially be exposed to a multi-million dollar lien. “The attorney is under a duty to represent the
client with undivided loyalty, to preserve the client’s confidences, and to disclose any material
matters bearing upon the representation of these obligations.” Rice v. Perl, 320 N.W.2d 407, 410
(Minn. 1982).

“An attorney owes to his client the high duty to diligently, faithfully and legitimately
perform every act necessary to protect, conserve and advance the interests of his client.” Bank of
Mill Creek v. Elk Horn Coal Corp., 57 S.E.2d 736, 748 (W. Va. 1950). “No deviation from that
duty can be permitted.” /d. In this case, lliescu retained Hale Lane to represent him in all aspects
of the sale and transaction of the Property. Iliescu was the primary client and in the event of a
conflict would be represented by Hale Lane. Exhibit “20".

Whatever information Hale Lane obtained that might affect the interests of Iliescu’s with
respect to the matters entrusied to Hale Lane was information that Iliescu is charged with based on
Iiescu’s reliance and retention of Hale Lane as Tliescu’s attorneys .

The fiduciary obligations which are the premise of trust may be simply stated, The

attorney is under a duty to represent the client with undivided loyalty, to preserve

the client’s confidences, and to disclose any material matters bearing upon the

representation of these obligations.

Rice v. Perl, 320 NW.2d 407 (Minn. 1982) (quoting RL MALLEN & V. LEVIT, LEGAL

MALPRACTICE, section 121 at 208 (2™ ed. 1981) (emphasis added)); see also Estate of Spencer v.
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Gavin, 946 A.2d 1051 (N.J. Ct. App. 2008) (attorney must communicate to client information client
needs to know); Seigle v. Jasper, 867 S.W.2d 476 (Ky. Ct. App. 1993) (attorney conducting title
search respecting real property has duty to communicate to parties any information that might
reasonably constitute defect and restriction on title); Matter of Yetman, 552 A.2d 121 (N.J. 1989)
(attorney’s failure to communicate with his clients diminishes confidence that public should have
in members ofthe bar); Dixon Ticonderoga Co. v. Estate of O 'Connor, 243 F.3d 151 (3d Cir. 2001)
(attorney, upon assuming representation of client in matter, assumed duty to take any steps
necessary for proper handling of matter, to communicate with client about matter, and to advise
client about legal and strategic issues involved in representation).

It is well settled that the knowledge of an agent will generally be imputed to the principal.
See, e.g., Clarkv. Mitchell, 130 P. 674 (Nev. 1913); see also Murray v. Murray, 793 N.Y.S.2d 243
{N.Y. 2005) (knowledge acquired by agent acting within scope of his agency imputed to principal
and latter bound by such knowledge although information never actually communicated to it and
agent’s knowledge need not be acquired while he is performing services for principal and may
include information learned in prior transactions and relationships); Manley v. Ticor Title Ins. Co.
of Cal., 816 P.2d 225 (Ariz. 1991) (notice to agent is notice to principal); RESTATEMENT (SECOND)
OF AGENCY § 275.

The rationale for this rule is obvious:

The rule that notice to the agent is notice to the principal is premised on the

presumption that the agent will perform his obligation to give his principal all

knowledge relevant to the principal’s protection and interest.
Manley, 816 P.2d at 229; see also Fisher v. Heritage Nat. Ins. Co., 146 P.3d 815 (Okla. Ct. App.
2006) (same). This same presumption applies when an agent represents two parties with their
consent, in which instance he is referred to as a ‘dual agent.”” Fisher, 146 P.3d at 819,

Where a principal knows that his agent is also acting for the party adversely

interested in the transaction, and yet consents to let him act as his agent, the

principal is estopped from denying notice and knowledge which the agent has during

the negotiation. - -

Id. (quoting 3 C.I.8. Agency § 271); see also McDermott v. Burpo, 663 S.W.2d 256, 261 (Mo. Ct.

App. 1983) (in case where real estate agent acted as dual agent for both buyer and seller, court held
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knowledge of certain fact by dual agent imputed to both principals); Arizona Title Ins. & Trust Co.
v. Smith, 519 P.2d 860, 865 (Ariz. Ct. App. 1974) ( knowledge of dual agent normally imputed to
both principals); Emmons v. Ingebretson, 279 F. Supp. 558 (N.D. Towa 1968) (it is of no
consequence that agent occupies position of dual agent and rules applicable to knowledge gamed
by agent for single principal come into play as to knowledge possessed by dual agent); Carlton v.
Moultrie Banking Co., 152 S.E. 215 (Ga. 1930) (knowledge of dual agent acquired in course of
employment held as between the principals to be imputed to each of the principals even if not
actually transmitted to them).

In Foster v. Blake Heights Corp., a real estate agent represented both the buyer and seller

“1n the same transaction. 530 P.2d 8§15 (Utah 1974). The court concluded that the plaintiff was

charged with notice of the lack of necessary approval of the land sale by the corporate landowner’s
president the agent was informed by the corporation’s secretary/ treasurer of the need for the
president’s signature. /d. The court held that when a real estate agent acts as a “dual agent” with
the knowledge and consent of both the buyer and the seller, each is chargeable with notice of all
facts the agent acquired in the process of negotiations. Id.; see also St. Paul Fire & Marine Ins. Co.
v. Federal Deposit Ins. Co., 765 F. Supp. 538 (D. Ct. Minn. 1991} (notice to bank’s executive vice
president of changes in directors and officer’s insurance policy could be imputed to bank and other
bank officers, despite executive vice president’s dual role as agent for insurer and agent for bank
and other bank officers where executive vice president acted in dual agency role with consent of
insurer and bank and bank officers).

The holding im Foster should apply to the instant case. Similar to the real estate agent, Hale
Lane acted as a dual agent by simultaneously representing both the purchaser and seller with respect
to the same transaction and with their knowledge and consent. As such, both Iliescu and BSC are
chargeable with notice of all facts, which are not confidential, Hale Lane acquires in the process of
its dual representation. There was nothing confidential about the extent of the potential Steppan
claim or identity of Steppan and the design consultants.

In Skiff-Murray v. Murray, the plaintiff brought an action to set aside a series of fraudulent

transfers her former husband initiated after being ordered to pay child support in the parties’ divorce
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action. 793 N.Y.S5.2d 243 (N.Y. 2005). While embroiled in a divorce proceeding, the husband
transferred lus and the plaintiff’s former marital residence, in addition to his business, to a newly
created Nevada corporation, defendant HiTrak Corporation (“HiTrak™). /d. HiTrak subsequently
transferred the same real property to the husband’s aunt and uncle, fd. The aunt and uncle
simultaneously mortgaged the property to defendant First Pioneer Farm Credit, A.C.A. (“the
Bank™). Id.

The Bank moved for summary judgment on the grounds that it was a purchaser for fair
consideration. /d. One of the issues the court addressed was whether the Bank was a purchaser for
fair consideration without knowledge of the husband’s fraudulent transfers. /d. at 246. This issue
“turns in part upon whether information obtained by [the Bank’s] attorney, William Fitzgerald, prior
to [the Bank’s] transaction with the [aunt and uncle], can be imputed to [the Bank].” Id. Prior to
being retained by the Bank, the husband had retained the attorney to effectuate the transfer from
HiTrak to the aunt and uncle. 7d.

The court concluded that the attorney’s knowledge could be imputed to the Bank even
though it was obtained before he was retained by the Bank and denied summary judgment.

In our view, however, Fitzgerald’s knowledge did not have to be obtained after he

began working for [the Bank] on the transfers involving the [aunt and uncle], and

much of what he knew does not appear to have been privileged information.

Id. The court relied on the RESTATEMENT OF AGENCY and concluded the following:

The agent’s knowledge need not be acquired while he or she is performing services

for the principal, and may include information learned in prior transactions and

relationships. [citations omitted] As long as it was in his mind when acting on [the

Bank’s] behalf. Fitzgerald’s lmowledge can be imputed regardless of when or how

it was obtained unless it was acquired confidentially. [citations omitted] Even

though Fitzgerald may have obtained some information in confidence when

defendant was his client, there are questions of fact as to what nonconfidential
information he obtained and whether he had it im mind when acting on [the Bank’s]

behalf.

Id.; see also Floyd v. Hefizer, 556 F. Supp.2d 617, 655(5.D. Tex. 2008) (“except for knowledge
obtained confidentially, knowledge ofthe agent is the knowledge of the principal irrespective ofits
source ot time of acquisition™); In re Land, 215 B.R.. 398 (8" Cir. BAP 1997) (attorney’s knowledge
imputable to client and therefore notice of Chapter 13 debtor’s bankruptcy filing imputable to

creditor-wife based upon attorney client relationship where attorney represented both creditor-wife
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and creditor-husband and received notice of filing from creditor-husband at least 20 days before
date set for confirmation hearing); RESTATEMENT (SECOND) OF AGENCY §§ 276, 281.
Although Murrayinvolved a successive representation case rather than a dual representation

one, the fact that the court found that information an attorney acquired in a prior transaction may

-be imputed to a subsequent client so long as that information was not confidential makes the case

even stronger for a dual representation situation. There is no dispute that Iliescu will be hard
pressed to argue that the identity of the architectural firm was some how confidential. In the instant
case, Hale Lane’s dual representation of both the purchaser and seller was ongoing, arose out of the
same transaction, was simultaneous and Hale Lane knew that both were heavily involved in the
development of the Property. The imputed knowledge rule should apply in this case.

C. Iliescu Should Be Judicially Estopped from Deliberately Shifting His Position
to Steppan’s Detriment.

“Judicial estoppel is an equitable doctrine that precludes a party from gaining an advantage
by asserting one position, and then later seeking an advantage by taking a clearly inconsistent
position. *“ Hamilton v. State Farm Fire & Cas. Co., 270 F.3d 778, 782 (9" Cir. 2001); see also
Vaile v. Eighth Judicial District Court, 118 Nev. 262, 44 P.3d 506 (2002) (same).

One of the purposes is “to prevent parties from deliberately shifting their position to suit the
requirements of another case concerning the same subject matter.” Vaile, 118 Nev. at 273, 44 P.3d
at 514. Other purposes involve the “general consideration of the orderly administration of justice
and regard for the dignity of judicial prorcee.din gs,” and to “protect against a litigant playing fast and
loose with the courts.” Russell v. Rolfs, 893 F.2d 1033, 1037 (9" Cir. 1990).

This Court may consider the following factors to determine whether to apply the doctrine:
(1) a party’s later position must be inconsistent with its earlier position; (2) whether the party
succeeded in persuading a court to accept that party’s earlier position; and (3) whether the party
seeking to assert an inconsistent position would derive an unfair advantage or impose an unfair
detriment on the opposing party if not estopped. Hamilion, 270 F.3d 782-83. The application of
these factors commands a finding of judicial estoppel.

Iy
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1. Iliescu’s Position In Its Complaint Against Hale Lane Is Inconsistent With His
Earlier Position.

Tliescu initially argued to this Court in May of 2007 that he was not required to record a
notice of non-responsibility because he did not receive the requisite notice as allegedly
contemplated by NRS 108.245. See generally Exlubit “3" to MSJ]. In September of 2007 when he
filed his Answer and Third Party Complaint, he asserted an inconsistent position:

The Hale Lane law firm never discussed with or advised Tliescu at any time to record

a Notice of Non-Responsibility with the Washoe County Recorder to ensure the

Property would not be encumbered by mechanics or architect’s liens recorded by
individuals hired by CPD as contemplated by the Purchase Agreement.

The Hale Lane law firm, Denmison, Howard and Snyder were negligent because,

among other things, they failed to advise Iliescu to record a Notice of Non-

Responsibility, . . .
Answer and Third Party Complaint in Case No. CV07-00341 9 21, 59. As these allegations
demonstrate, Iliescu-claims that he clearly recognizes that he had an obligation to record such a
notice to ensure that the Property would not be encumbered by mechanic’s or architect’s liens

recorded by individuals hired by CPD as contemplated by the Agreement.

2. It Is Too Early To Determine Whether Iliescu Succeeded In Persuading This
Court to Accept His Earlier Position.

Because this Court has yet to rule on the issue of notice, it is too early to determine whether
lliescu succeeded in persuading this Court to accept his earlier position.

3. If Iliescu Succeeds In Asserting an Inconsistent Position, He Would Derive an

Unfair Advantage or Concomitantly Impose and Unfair Detriment On Steppan
If Not Estopped.

If Tliescu succeeds in asserting an inconsistent position, he would most definitely derive an
unfair advantage and concomitantly impose and unfair detriment on Steppan if not judicially
estopped from doing so. liescu would be unjustly enriched to the detriment and expense of
Steppan by claiming on the one hand that he was not obligated to record a notice of non-

responsibility while concomitantly asserting that he should have recorded such a notice to protect

the Property.
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Iliescu recognized that the architectural schematic drawings were necessary to obtain the
land use entitlements for the Project and City of Reno approved the land use entitlements. Exhibit
“20” 4 B. Without Steppan’s valuable services, no entitlement exists to build the Project within
the scope as approved. The entitlements incréase the value of the property. See Ex]ﬁbit “14"
J ohnso.n festirnony, page 71. Il'i't;SCl.‘l .51101.11(:1 not bé able to reap such valuable benefits for “free.”

D. Based on the “Participating Owner Doctrine,” CPD May Be Treated As An Agent of
Iliescu.

1. The Participating Owner Doctrine.

Although the participating owner doctrine stems from a lessor and lessee relationship, the
doctrine should be applied to the unique facts of the instant case. Based on this doctrine, a lessor
can be held liable for liens where the lessee is held to be the agent of the lessor in contracting for
the labor or materials furnished in connection with the improvements made on the leased premises.
See, e.g., Howard 5. Wright Construction Co. v. Superior Court, 106 Cal.App.4th 314, 130
Cal.Rptr.2d 641 (Cal. Ct. App. 2003); Ot Hardware Co., Inc. v. Yost, 159 P.2d 663, 666 (Cal. Ct.
App. 1945) (“[w]here the lease contains a provision requiring the lessee to make improvements, it
is generally held that the lessee is thus constituted the agent of the lessor for that purpose™).’

The use of the agency theory is based upon the following policy consideration:

It would open the door to great fraud in practice to allow the owner of property to

lease it to another, contract with the other to put on permanent improvements,

improvements that are only valuable when standing upon the premises, and then say

that the materialmen and laborers who placed these permanent improvements upon

defendant’s property have no claim against the property, and must go unrewarded

if the tenant is insolvent. It would be an invitation to short leases with permanent

structures upon the premises during the term of the lease and this without

jeopardizing any interest which the owner had in the property, while he greatly
profited from the iransaction. :

3 In California, if an owner participates through lease provisions by requiring the
lessee to make improvements to the leasehold, the owner cannot shield its property interest with
anotice of non-responsibility. Los Banos Gravel Co. v. Freeman, 130 Cal.Rptr. 180, 184 (Cal. Ct.
App. 1976). Although Nevada does not have a siimilar statute to that of California’s, the doctrine
of imputed agency should nevertheless apply to the unique facts of the instant case.
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Rowen & Blair Elec. Co. v, Flushing Operating Corp., 250N.W.2d 481, 484 (Mich. 1977) (quoting
Merithew v. Bennett, 20 N.W.2d 860, 862 (Mich. 1945) (quoting Denniston & Partridge Co. v.
Brown, 167 N.W. 190, 191 (Towa 1918)).

As a general rule, an agency is not created by a lessor and lessee relationship. Ort, 159 P.2d
at 665. In determining whether to impose an agency relationship, this Court should look at the
provisions of the sales contract. See, e.g., 14" & Heinberg, L.L.C. v. Henricksen & Co., Inc., 877
So.2d 34, 39 (Fla. Ct. App. 2004) (“It has long been established . . . that [i]n order for a lessor’s
interest to be subject to mechanic’s liens arising from improvements made on its property [by
lessee], the lease agreement must require the lessee to make certain improvements or the
improvements must constitute the pith of the lease.”).*

Similarly, as a general rule an agency is not created by a seller and buyer relationship in a
real estate situation. This Court should apply the participating owner doctrine and conclude that
the Agreement between Defendants and CPD created an agency relationship between them. See,
e.g., Ott, 159 P.2d at 664 (terms of lease provided that (1) lessee obligated to make improvements;
(2) plans and specifications be approved by lessors, (3) any improvernenté made on property not be
removed by lessee at expiration or termination of lease, (4) lessee provide lessor statement of
materials used and labor supplied as work progresses, and (5) lease remain in escrow until
improvements completed and paid in full to create agency relationship between lessor and lessee).
The Agreement supports such an application.

The Agreement was contingent upon CPD obtaining certain governmental approvals. See
Exhibit “1" q 39(F) to MSJ. Similar to a situation where the lease remains in escrow until the
improvements are completed and paid in full, the sale of the Property in this case remains in escrow
until CPD obtaiﬁs certainr governmental approval at its expense.

The Agreement required CPD to hire architects, designers, engineers and other professionals

to obtain certain governmental approval as a condition to the close of escrow. Id. Similar to a

4 In Florida and similar to Nevada, a lessor’s interest is not subject to a mechanic’s
lien if he records the necessary disclaimer.
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situation where the lessee is obligated to make the improvements, CPD in this case is obligated to
obtain architectural and design review and approval.

Part of the purchase price included a 3,500 square foot penthouse condominium for lliescu
and his wife. Jd. § 39(H). Similar to a situation where the lease provides that any improvements
made on the property not be removed by the lessee at the expiration or termination of the lease,
when escrow closes Iliescu has the right to a 3,500 square foot penthouse condominium.

Iliescu had the right to review the floor plans, prepared by Steppan, related to this penthouse.
Id. Similar to a situation where the lessor has to approve the plans and specifications, Iliescu had
the right to review the floor plans related to his penthouse.

In light of the unique facts of this case, this Court should hold that CPD may be treated as
agent of ITliescu where CPD was required by the Agreement to hire architects, engineers, and other
professionals to obtain the land use entitlements for the Project and the City of Reno approved the
land use entitlements. The current marketing includes the entitlements. Such a ruling would be
consistent with the purpose and mtent of the lien statutes.

IV. CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, this Court should rule that Iliescu had “actual knowledge of
information sufficient to put him on a duty — to tmpose on him reasonably a legal duty to do
something, get more information or sufficient information for the notice of non-responsibility.”
Exhibit “3" to MSJ at 53-54. This Court should further rule that Iliescu’s failure to exercise this
duty is fatal and Steppan is entitled to foreclose on his mechanic’s lien. Simply put, this Court
should hold that Tliescu had actual notice that CPD hired architects and other professionals to obtain
the necessary architectural and design review and approval to vitiate the notice requirement of NRS
108.245.

AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document, MARK B. STEPPAN’S

OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT AND CROSS-
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MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT , filed in the above-entitled case does not
contain the social security number of any person.
Dated this 22™ day of January, 2009.
GAYLE A. KERN, LTD.

Dl ] Yoo

GAYLE A. KERN, ESQ.
Attorneys4or MARK STEPPAN
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify under penalty of perjury that [ am an employee of the law
offices of Gayle A. Kern, Ltd.,5421 Kietzke Lane, Suite 200, Reno, NV 89511, and that on this date
I served the foregoing document(s) described as follows:

MARK B. STEPPAN’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY
JUDGMENT AND CROSS-MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT

on the party(s) set forth below by:
X Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope placed
for collection and mailing in the United States Mail, at Reno,
Nevada, postage paid, following ordinary business practices.
Personal delivery.
Facsimile (FAX).
Federal Express or other overnight delivery.

Reno/Carson Messenger Service.

addressed as follows:

Stephen C. Mollath, Esq.

Prezant & Mollath

6560 S. W. McCarran Boulevard,
Suite A

Reno, NV 89509

DATED this _‘?IZ ,.( _day of February, 2009.

sas & Hnnhacr

TERESA A, GEARHART
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Land Purchase Agreement and Addendum

Declaration of John Tliescu in Support of Application for Release
of Mechanic’s Lien dated February 13, 2007

Transcript of Proceedings, Motion for Release of Mechanic’s
Lien, May 3, 2007

AIA Contract dated October 31, 2005, between BSC Financial
and Mark Steppan

Notice and Claim of Lien dated November 7, 2006, Mark B.
Steppan, Grantee

Reno City Planning Commission October 4, 2006 Minutes
(Request for Judicial Notice Pursuant to NRS 47.130)

Power Point Presentation: Wingfield Towers, Reno, Nevada

Stipulation and Order to Dismiss Voluntary Chapter 11 Petition,
In Re: BSC Investments, LLC, filed February 20, 2008 (Request
for Judicial Notice Pursuant to NRS 47.130)

NRS 108.234 (1991) (Request for Judicial Notice Pursuant to
NRS 47.140)

Affidavit of David Snelgrove in Support of Supplemental
Response to Application for Release of Mechanic’s Lien dated
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" Exhibits 1 through 12 are listed for reference only and were originally attached Lo
Applicants/ Defendants’ Motion for Partial Summary Judgment on Mark B. Steppan’s Claim for
Foreclosure of Mechanics Lien. In order to avoid repetition of exhibits, counsel has simply
referred to the respective exhibits in the preceding Opposition.
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13 Letter dated July 14, 2005, from Consolidated Pacific 2
Development, Inc., to Dick Johnson

14 Pages 36-43, 71, and 87 of the Deposition Transcript of Richard 6
K. Johnson dated September 29, 2008

15 Hale Lane Memorandum dated November 14, 2005, to Calvin 2
Baty from Sarah Class re: AIA Contract Review - Owner’s Issues

16 Letter dated February 14, 2006, from the City of Reno to 7
Consolidated Pacific Development

17 Minutes of the Senate Committee on Judiciary dated March 11, 10
2003

18 Minutes of the Meeting of the Assembly Committee on Judiciary 15
dated May 13, 2005

19 Letter dated September 1, 2005, from Consolidated Pacific 1
Development to Mayor Robert A. Cashell, Sr.

20 Indemnity Agreement dated December 8, 2006, and E-mail dated 3
February 12, 2006 from Craig Howard of Hale Lane to Dick
Johnson

21 Letier dated December 14, 2005, from Karen D. Dennison of 2
Hale Lane to John liescu, Jr., Sonnia Santee Iliescu, Calvin Baty,
and Consolidated Pacific Development, Inc.

22 E-mail dated November 29, 2005, from Sarah Class at Hale Lane 3
to Sam Caniglia, and an E-mail dated November 18, 2005, from
Sarah Class at Hale Lane to Calvin Baty

23 Hale Lane Facsimile Transmittal Sheet dated December 15, 2005 2

from Sarah E. L. Class, Esq., to John and Sonnia Iliescu, and
Page 3 of Letter dated December 14, 2005, with
Acknowledgement of waiver of conflict signed by John Iliescu,
Jr., Sonnia Santee Tliescu, both individually, and as Trustees of
the John Tliescu Jr. And Sonnia Tliescu 1992 Family Trust
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_ H7/14/2885 15:47 .5185485154 . CONSOLIDATED PACIFIC - PAGE Bi/B?‘

932 Parker Street, Berkelay, CA 04710 .
(510) 54 (FAX) 5486164

V1A FACSIMILE 775 823-8848

July 14| 2005

Mr, Di¢k Johnson
' Johnson Group

" Reno, NV 89509

; _ In keeping with our telephone conversation of this date I am prepared 10 make an offer on
. ' Johns parcel of land between the River Walk aod Court St. As you are aware, by my
P  many phone calls, my interest in the project bas never weakened.

The following is my proposal:

1. | 1 will need a 30 day period to contact the City and make certain that they are
supportive of the project. I cannot imagine they would pot be, but with this
amount of money jnvolved 1 have to'be certain.
- 9.| At the end of 30 days One Hundred Thousand Dollars (§100,000.00) would be
- { tendered to Jotn and becomes pon-refundable. In all jostances the non-refundable

mionies are credited to the purchase price.
3.] Every 60 days an additional One Hundred Thousand Dellars ($100,000.00) will
be tendered to John with the same conditions spelled out in Jtem 2 above. This
will coptinue until the City approves the project. It is anticipated it will take 710~
_ 9 mopths for approval. _ -
4.| The sales price is to be Six Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars

‘| ($6,500,000.00) plus one penthouse. ’

These _aré: the aﬂvantages with our comparny and jis partner:
-1} Financing has already been tertatively arranged and will be in place well before

the project is approved.
2] Project to be built by an experienced developer/builder team with a proven record.

JA074O|L|ESCU000017




B7/14/2805 1

Dick,

5:47 5185486164 . CONSOLIDATED PACIFIC PAGE

Project 1o be buih by an experienced developer/builder team with a proven record.

| Architect and Engineers in place ready to start work.

Upon temative map approval sitc wark can commence using the fist track
method. ' : . _
[Building will be ready for occupancy in 30 months, plus or minus ,from today
'|depending on the approval time. We have assumed the longer period of 9 montbs.

1| have told you on repeated occasions I-would not wnﬁ to the table unless I was '

prepared to move forward. Now is the time. Please advise at your earliest converdence,
~ asay group with bankers, architects and engineers are scheduled to visit the site next
‘Wednesday July 20, 2003. _ .

‘Should you bave axy questions, please contact me immediately.

Sincertly, -

' SAC/pb

JAO741  ILIESCU000018
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Richard Johnson 9/29/2008

Page 1

SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
-000-

JOHN ILIESCU, JR., SONNIA )
SANTEE ILIESCU, AND JOHN )
ILIESCU, JR., AND SONNIA )
ILIESCU AS TRUSTEES OF THE ) Case No. CV(07-00341
JOHN ILIESCU, JR., AND SONNIA ) (Consolidated with Case No.
ILIESCU 1992 FAMILY TRUST, ) CV07-01021)
)
Plaintiffs, )
) Dept. No. 6
VS, )
MARK B. STEPPAN, )
. )
¢y Defendant. ) -
g ) o

DEPOSITION OF RICHARD K. JOHNSON
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2008

RENO, NEVADA

SUNSHINE REPORTING SERVICES
151 COUNTRY ESTATES CIRCLE, RENO, NEVADA 89511
REPORTED BY: SUSAN CULP, CCR #343

SUNSHINE REPORTING SERVICES
775-323-3411
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Page345

0 Did you speak with the lliescus?

A ldid,

0 Tell me what the substance of the conversation with
the liiescus was.

A WWe were talking about who was going to win the
glection and stufl. it wasn't about this project It was
ahout the - just our feetings on a lot of different things.

0 Did you — So you didn't have -- When you got served
with 1he Nolice of Deposition and the Subpoena, you did not
have any conversalion with respect ta the Court Sireet
properties or Mr. Steppan or Fisher Friedman with the lliescus?

A Say again. You lost me when you got to Mr. —

O After you had your Subpoena to appear today --

A Uh-huh.

0 -- did you have any conversations with the lliescus
regarding the subject matier of this lifigation?

A Oh, yes, uh-huh.

£ Tell me the substance of that conversation.

A We were trying to figure out when we had first ever
even heard of them, to be honest with you,

G " When you say ever heard ol them, who are you referring
10?

A The architects.

0O Qkay. What else did you talk ahoul? Substantively, |
don't care about the election.

A Yeah, dght

0 1 mean, | do care, but not with respect to what you
puys are saying.

A  Exactly. ‘That's roaily all that came up. There was
very little conversalion relative Lo t, other than | was being
deposed, and | — Even In my records ¥'m having a hard {Ime
figuring ouf exaclly when we ever haard the nama, to be candid
with you.

0 And did you have any conversation with them afier the
service of the Subpoena with respec! {o the mechanic lien
ilself?

A Yes.

G Tell me about thal

A There was — The First Centennial Title had notified
me that there was a lien. That's where | found out about iL
And then | believe Doclor was sorved a day later. And so we
wera tatking about what is 1, and then | belleve i was
through thers that we got a hold of the document from the Stata
saying about the requirement for pre-lien and asking i anybody
received a pre-lien notlce. You know, they havae Hale Lane
representing them, and if 1 had heard anything from them,
anybody else about . Becauso | had -

0 Had you had any conversalicn wilh the lliescus with
respect 1o a nolice of nonresponsibility? Do you know what
that is?
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Page 36

A  That's whal we were discussing on a pre-llen notlco,
and them filing the notice of nonresponsibility. They were
asklng me if | had seen or heard amything, you know, given a
pre-lien notlce or know of H coming to anybody, and | sald no,
i didn't

0 When you gol the |etter dated July 14, 2005, and there
was a reference 1hal there was going 1o be work being done by
architecls and engineers, did you have any canversalion with
your clienl abowt a mechanic lien poiential?

A No

O Did you have any conversation with ihem recommending
that they telain legal counsel so that they would undersiand
what that meant, 1hat engineers and architecls would be working
on the properly?

A Inthe contract i calls for them to reviow the
contract with legal and gel whatever recommendatons are given,
which we did with two different law firms, actually,

0 And who were they?

A Judy Otto was the first cleanup on the firsl addendum

-~ or second addondum, whichever i was. And that was followed
=-quickly, within fhu week, to Hale Lénn, who was retained
therefor io do it 1o guide them.

O #'s my understanding that Miss Olto represents Sam

-~ Ganiglia andfor his companies. Was il your understanding that

s~ Miss Ollo was representing the lliescus?

B Page 37

A It was my understanding, at that meeting, ehe was
representing all pnrﬂﬁs present, and | was presont at that
meeting whara they went through what was written and what

.. neadod to be rewritten different or cleaned up according to the
legal requirements.

Q Did anybody — To your knowledge, did the lliescus
ever execule a retainer or engagement letter with Miss Otto?

A | don't know abotrt Miss Otto. | know it was with
Hale Lane,

0 well, why did you think thal Miss Qtto was
representing the lliescus, as well?

A Because thore was the conversalion that we should meet
with an attormey to review what we had for the initial
addendum, and Sam said, "Well, I've been dealing with her.
Let's meet with her, if she can.” And that was fine with the
doctor to do thal, and so we did.

4 Do you recall when thal meeting ook place?

A 9M3/05.

0 You jus were looking at scme document. Could ! see
that, please?

A (Tho wilness complies.)

0 ‘Whalis this?

A ‘This Is a Umeline because I'm so bad with dales and
time, so if | hava a cheat sheet | won't lle to you,

C Did you prepare this from loohing al your records?

SUNSHINE

REPORTING SERVICES

775-323-3411
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Richard Johnson 9/29/2008
11 (Pages 38 to 41)
Page 38 Page 40
1 A Yes. ; t O Was it going 10 be before or alter wark was periormed
2 Q We don't need to break right now, bul 1l make a copy 2z in order ta get the project approved?
3 ol it and make il as an exhibit so we both can look at it. 3 A Well, by the Umeline, H came after, but the ane
4 A One thing 1 can tell you, | know there's a few items 4 wasn't incumbent on the othar.
5 in there where | received them a Jot later so | put them in 5 Q Explain what you mean by that
6 chronological order. So the dale there isn't necessarily when [ A To the best of my knowledge, and I'll read this again,
7 1 was aware of them. 7 but | don't belleve that the entitlements was a requirement to
B Q For example, I'm looking at "Meeting 8/13/2005, O1TO 8 be completed to buy the land, They could have bought the land
o legalreview." Is that Judy Otto you're refeming 107 - 9 without the entitlements done.
10 A Comect uh-huh. 10 0 Butwas it contenplated that the lliescus would allow
1 0 And lhis is a meeting where 1he lliescus were present 1 hem 1o proceed lc take the sieps necessary 1o get the
12 with Mr. Caniglia? 12 enfilements while the lfiescus stil owned the property?
13 A Cormrecl 113 A Yes.
14 0 And you were there? 14 O \Why was that?
15 A Comect - 15 A Because there wers cerlain things that had to be done
168 0 Anybody else? 16 on it; l.e., they were looking al the parcelling of the
17 A No. 17 property and putting i into one, and 50 know they had to
1B 0 Okay. Tell me how this deal was supposed to work. 1B sign {0 have that done as owners. You sign for thal. And
19 What was your understanding of whal Mr, Caniglia was going 1o 19 there was servicing of water, is another issue. So there were
20 do and how the deal was going to work. 20 cerlain things that the Jocal governments require the owner of
21 A _Long version or short version? - | the prbperty to sign 6ﬂ on behalf of the developer so that
22 O Long version, 22 they can move forward. '
23 A That's a iong question. 23 Q Another option tor the deal would have been that no
24 Kind of typical. lllescu - Sam Caniglia was to come ‘24 work would have been periormed. Caniglia and/for his group
25  in with the funding and wherewithal to build a condo on thal 25  would actually purchase the land and Lthen they would go off and
Page 39 .
1 project and get 1t approved and do all the thinge he needed to do the development, correct?
2z do to move forward to build that project. _ A ‘1 haven't seen any of those being done, but yeah, it
3 in return, ho was to pay Dr. and Sonnia Hiescu an could. '
4 smount of money and also provide a value of condo to be given 2 Whatdoyou mean you haven'l seen any of those being
5 to thern that would be adjusied up or down relative to the base done?
§  costof thet condo. So i was a combinatlon cash and physical A Well, usually a developer wants to move as fast as
7 property, and the two cembined would equal the sale. they can when they tie up a property, and tie up the property
a Q . Was fhat something that you came up with, that is that long enough so that they can do work on it without worrying
0 combinaticn, or is that something thal somebody else came up about If it's still going to be there when they are ready to do
10 with? o it; I.e., buylng It after the fact, or in your scenario, buying
1 A Dr. lllescu, It before the fact, which is the reverse. They want to see
12 Q Scright fram the beginning that's whal he wanted: If whal they can get before they finish.
13 somebody was going to puichase it to build 2 condominium, he G Other than the lliescus, have you discussed 1his —
14 wanled one of the condominiums within the project? - 14 the mechanic lien with any other person?
15 A As long as they were of the quality level that they 115 A The attomeys that were hired to take care of it.
16  were saying they were going to do. There is an sscape clause, 1B Q Who?
17 i you will, on it whara if for any roason he doesn't want it, L7 A Karen Dennison, 1 believe, a short conversation. And
18 I.e., the project gels going and all of a sudden we see that 18 then Howard — 1s that his name? I'm trying to remember.
19 it's golng ta ba a cheap-and-dirty-type bullding, he couid in 19 There were two other guys that were involved at her office.
20 fact colleet B certain amount of money, walk awey. 20 @ This is over at Hale Lane?
21 0 Was il inlended — Sorry. Lel me start again. 21 A Uh-huh.
22 When was il intended that escrow would close and the 22 Q Anyone else?
23 buyers would actually be purchasing the land? Before or ater 23 A No.
24 the project was built? 24 O  Youlalhed with Mr. Mollath?
25 A Dh, before it was built, H would be sold. 25 A Well, yeah, legal represent here, and the title
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Page 42 : Page 44

company. 1 supportive of he project.

Q Who at the lille company? 2 Wasn't that he purpose of the August 2005 meeting

A Maryann Infantino. 3 with tha mayor?

Q And what was your conversation with Maryann Infantina? 4 A | think that's kind of what | Just said. Politically

A What sha knew about these liens and the pre-liens and 5 talked with them and made sure they ware In agreementL
that kind of stuf. Becausa her husband actually was a B Q You say thal il was a very —
licensed contractor and | thought sha might know, and sho was 7 A There was no votes, You couldn't get ints a lot of
privy 1o this information. She's the ane that actually got — 8 stuff inlo those meetings, nor could you have a lot of the
Like ] said, she's the one | got the notice from. How she got g counciimen at a lot of the meetings because there's laws
H is beyond me, firsL ] would have thought the Tliescus 10 against that
would have got H first. iR 0 How was the project presenied by you or Mr. Caniglia?

o Whai did you understand, from yaur conversations with f92 A Oh, by Canlglia. 1didn't know the project to present
Mz, Infantino, regarding the mechanic lien? 13 3

A That people need 1o nollty you If they have — file an L 0 Bul you were there and you heard what Mr. Caniglia
tntent to lien, and give you a name and address and so forth of {15 said?
who H is before they sre allowed to file a lien so that you 16 A Comecl
have time to go in and file some kind of paper saying, "No, 'm 17 @ Okay. How did he describe it?
not responsible, that guy is responsible.” 16 A They did a fly-over, which was an aerial progrem, like

Q Bul you all knew that work was going to be done on the 19 a plane was coming through and going over the town and you
property, right? Thal wasn't a surprise, was i? 20 could see a mock-up of a bufiding as you came up to it, and

A Well, what's the work?- 1 don't know what they wore el they showed some life pictures showing different angles of the
daoing. Wa were never privy to what they were doing 22 river, and what would be seen from the diflerent zngles norih,
specifically. . 23 east, south and west.

Until we got 1o the polnt of the commission hearings 24 1 And this was 1he Augus! 2005 meeling?
and the mesting prir to that, with tha mayar and a couple of 25 A Hwes one of the meelings | attended. | don

Page 43 Page 45

tha council members, to — | attended one or two of those where ; 1 remember f It was the Augusl 2005.
they gave a Ny-ovar and that type of thing to show what they 2 We probably had four different meetings throughout the
were dolng. That's the first that wa were given any indication 3 time where they talked with City officials to get approval for
of what H ie. L the building, to get Bob Cashell to encourage the bullding

Q  Well, you metl with the mayor and Mr. Caniglia on 5  department to work diligently with them so they could move
August 25th of 2005, didr't you? B taster.

A That's what | just sald. Those were the first 7 Q You referenced some addendums when we were discussing
meelings where wa had any idea of whal was going on. 8 {he July 29th, 2005, agreement.

0 And who was present during that Augus! meeting with 9 A Uh-huh
the mayaor and Mr. Caniglia? Anyone else? ¢ 10 0O There is one tha! I've gat identified as 65 and 66

A Couple of guys that | don't know who thay were. | (i that's dated August 1, 2005, it says Addendum No. 1.
assume they were the staff. Bob Cashelf was there, a guy from 12 A Addendum No. 1 was August 1, 2005.
Wood Rodgers was there, myself, Sam. 13 Q Qkay. And did you prepare this?

0O WWhal was the subsiance of that conversation? 14 A 1—1'm trying — | did prepare it I'm trying to

A It was more shake your hand, “Here's what 1s going on. i 18 think. July, Augus! - Because there was some stuf{ 1got
We are going to be developing a big project” 16 back.

And | asked Dick, because he arked me to call and aet 17 The reason I'm hesitating, there was some stuff where
up the meeting with Cashell, | asked Dick 1o get us down here 18 an attomey would review and send it back and ! would stil)
just so we can answer any quostions. 1t was pretty broad. 1 19 write it, but it was at their request. Butl wrote this, yes.
was, "Haro, we are going to do this big projeci and Reno is 20 Q Do you recall if this Addendum No. 1 was dane al the
golng 1o be oxcited about it." H was a couriosy meeting with 21 reques! of any counsel, any atlorney?
the mayor 1o let him know what H was. 22 A 1think it was done at the request of Otio, but I'm

0 Well, in the letier daled July 14, 2005, there was a 23 not a hundred percent sure of that answer.
speciiic reference by Mr. Caniglia thal he wanled some period i 24 Q Was it Addendum —
of lime to contact he Cily and make certain they are 25 A Because it was a more defined version of what's In the
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Page 70 Page 72

A Hwas. 1 circumstances, be able 1o get an extension.

0O Excuse me. And it was ~ 2 If you got an axtension, you still fell within the

A It was an updated or revised —1cut you off. I'm 3 same entitlements that we currenily have; if you can'i, then
sQImy. 4 you lose them, So that's a question mark &t this point

O | want to make suze you finish. Was there anylhing 5 O Whal is your undersianding of what the entillements
else? B are?

A No. 7 A Enililoments are the ability 10 build a cerialn-size

0 And it was an appraisal that was commenced or B project on that property, basically confining the exterior of
commissioned by the buyers, cormect? g the buildings to go on the proporty, and then the imedor

A Comect 10 would ba the final map, which would be the resi of the detall

O Did you, cn behall of the lliescus, ever abtain an 1 that goes with iL
appraisal? 12 0 I¥'s my understanding fram your testimony thal you

A No. 13 knew that there wete architecls involved, bui that you do not

0 How did you delermine the purchase price? 14 recall when you first mel or heard the name Mark Steppan andar

A 1guess by the offer and acceptance. He offered a 15 Fisher Friedman; is that corred?
price and Doc accepled the price. P16 A You said thet | knew archilects. | don know when

O You didnl evaluale or idenlify what you wanled belore 7 they were anybudy, any architects were involved and stuff.
getting that offer? 18 But | know from a practical standpeint thal they would

A Well, you're talking two difierent things. | think {19 need architocts Invalved. Whon they got involved whatever,
this sppraisal was based on probably-it moving forward. | -.20 yeah, | don't know.
don't know. I'd have to look at & again. Bul il was hmbably “‘Ijm;21 And as far as the knowing who Mark Steppan was and .. . [T
based on the fact that there would be entlilements and moving 22 there was another nama of 3 guy out of New York, those names, |
forward, whereas our sale was hased on the land being sold 23 mean, | heard at some point later In the process but around the
irrespective of any entitlements. ' 24 time of the commission hearing-type thing.

O Sc you agree with the entitlements it's werth more 725 O Did you ever attend any of ihe neighborhood meetings?

Page 71, Page 73

than what the land was before the enlilements were cbtained? 1 A No.

A  The entiilemants would have Incroased the value of the 2 O \Were you aware they were laking place?
property, yes, as long as H was accomplished. The . 3 A The day before on the one, and | was out of town,
eniitlements go away, the land drops In value again. ;4 50...

O s it your understanding that without the plans as 5 ' Onthe one.
have been approved, the number of uniiz that can be conslrucled L] A Well, there was one that | knew. You said did | know
on the Court Street properties is less because of a zoning 7 of any of them before they were taking place, and the answer [E:]
change? . B yes, | knew of one, but i was ke the day bofore that | found

A Say that again. . out about it and § was not golng to be an avaliable.

O Are you aware that if the entitlements thal have i1 O To your recoliection, did your clients atiend any of
already been granted - b those neighborhood meelings?

A Uh-huh. P12 A Notthat | know of.

O - are notused — 13 O You never discussed them wilh them?

A Okay. 14 A No.

O - tha! the project that can be built will be 15 O And that was — Did you ever discuss the meetings with
significantly smaller because there's been a zoning change? i6 your clients?
That they weuld not be able to take advaniage of that increased L7 A No.
unit — unils? : 18 Q Did your clients go to any ol the meetings with any

A Woell, I'm aware thal there's been a change In the 19 City personnel wilh respect 1o the project?
roning. The rest of your statement may or may not be true. 20 A 1don't believe so.

And | say thal strictly as hearsay through Sam 21 Q Do you have an underslanding that your clienis were

Caniglia and so forth, which is saylng that you could possibly .22 at, at least one of the presentations to either the planning
get an extension. That even though the extanslon is running 23 commission or lhe City council?
oul, from what I'm being 1old i's November 14th, that you 24 A They were st the planning commission mecting, yes.
could possibly, because of tha bankruptcy and other mitigating : Q Were you present?

[~}
[}
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Page 86 Page 88
Gan you ook at your tab 14 and tell me what the Dates 1 A I'msomy. Sure,
stamp is. 2 O Thal's okay. What is LoopNet?
MR. MCLLATH: Bales stamp number is 133, 3 A LoopNet is a — whal should 1 say — it's like a
December 14th, '05, Hale Lane. 4 listing service for commercial properies, And there was
MS. KERN: Thank you. a anather group In town that had 1 on LoopNet, the project, and
BY MS. KERN: 3] they didn' have authority 1o, and | called them to ask them to
0 Do you recall having a2ny conversalion with the 7 cease and desist doing It
liescus with respect o this December 2005 letier regarding a 8 O QOkay. Inyour notes il says, "Was ofered by DeCal on
polential confiict of interes! or a waiver of conllict, how 5 LoopNet project for sale, 25 million.”
iI's described in your timeiine? 10 A Yeah. That's what the terms were on what they were
A Which |s the letter that you're referring to? 211 saying. They were doing it through Re/Max Realty, who they
O I'msorry. I's on your timetine +2/14/2005, waives © 12  were led In with. But again, ke | say, they didn't have
of conflict letier, and then 'm assuming this is youwr notes, 13 acknowledgment or consent of Doc to do that, which you need
*"to act as atlorneys for BSC, liescu. DeCal will act jointly; f14 both in order to put a listing out there.
however, if condlict with liescl, then Hale Lane will 15 0O You have the Snellgrove affidavit in your documents,
represen lliescu.” 16 carrect?
My gueslion is: Do you have recollaction of i7 A |don't xnow If | do or not But if t's thers, |
discussing Lhis lejler with the lliescus al or aboul the date 18 do.
ol thal letier December of 20057 19 MR. MOLLATH; 578 is the number.
A They were involved whth it, weren't they, at the . 20 MS. KERN: Thank you.
meeting? Where did you jusl read that? - s THE WITNESS: What documenis are those? -
I can't really tell you whether Doc and Sonnia were at 22 . MR. MOLLATH: This is —~
that meeting, They were at one and they weren'l at one, is the 23 BY M5. KERN:
truth of the matier, and | can't remember which is which. 24 O Well, is whal I've been informed today. ¥ had your
O My questionis — 25 file. §didn't know that's whal | had. So 'm going lo show
Page 87 Page 89
A Yeah. 1 you 578, 579, and 560. Ho thal was in your documenis.
O - did you have any conversation or communication with 2 A That's something ] think is one — something | was
the lliescus about the waives of confiict letter thal was 3 given by — I'm assuming by Sam afier the facL
prepared by Hale Lane? 4 0O  Why are you assuming thal?
A 1would have. 5 A Because there was no - if | had known that he even
O Qo you recall ihe substance of that conversalion? 3] had a deposition, | would have been wondering what it was, as
A No. 1jusl know | would have talked to them. 7  lowhatitls.
O Do you know generally what it would have been aboul? a 0O Who had a deposition?
A It would have been about we need this, and | 2] A Well, that's some kind of a legal document for what he
would have Wold them someplace here, | remmember, having : 10 said, iIsn't k7
where the call from Doug Flowers referencing the signatures LR 0O It's an affidavil.
being done. Thal was on 12/6. So there was thal kind of 12 A An alfidavil, okay. So he wrole an affidavil on this
conversation. £ 13 thing. I don"t know when § would have received that, but it
O [id you have any conversation with Lhe lliescus in 14 was -- | don't know, 1didn'tgo there. | didn’t get it.
which you said, "Hey, there's going 1o be alol of work done on i5 Somebody gave | lo me.
Lhis property and you are - you know, you're subject 1o [ O When did you prepare this timefine?
mechanic liens. You want to make sure you talk to Hale Lane 17 A 0Oh acouple of weeks ago. And then lupdated it
aboul protecting yowself." Did you ever have that 18 probably two days ago just 10 see.
conversation? 19 O were you familiar with or are you aware of the
A No. Notthe way you sald it 20 specialuse permit applicalion from January of 2006 that your
What ! had was the conversation that we need legal 21 clienls execuled?
advice throughout this kecause of the size of the project, and 22 A I'm aware thal there was a special-use permi that was
that was back when they hired Hale Lane and retained them 1o do 23 part of the entHlement process, right.
just that. D24 C Carect?
O Okay. Can | see your limeline? .25 A 'm familiar with that there was an entitiemenL
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48
TO: Calvin Baty ‘S,OC};,;% .
FROM: Sarah Class
DATE: November 14, 2005

SUBJECT: AlA Contract Review -- Owner's Issues
Our File No. 20606-0004

This memorandum identifies provisions of the AlA Contract between BSC Financial ("Ovwner") and
Mark Steppan ("Architect") which disfavor the Owner and suggesis possible_ revisions to these
provisions. -

* Sectjon 1.1: Under Section 1.1.6, the information in Ariicle 1.1 may be relied upon in
determining the Architect's compensation, and in the event that the information changes,
adjustments 1o the Architect's compensation may be made. Specifically, a change to the
information set forth in Article 1.1 will constitute a "Change in Services” entitling the
Architect to an adjustment in compensation. See Section 1.3.3.2 (stating that a change inthe
information contained in Article 1.1 js a change in service entitling the Architect {0 adjustment
In compensation).

Except for general information about the project, Article 1.1 presently either omits the /
information regarding the Project or Jeaves it to further agreement. Because a chanpe in this
information could lead 10 compensating the Architect using the method described in Exhibit

advisable at this point to include more detail as 1o the project information, so asto avoid ihe
classification of additional information as a "Change in Service," entithng the Architect 1o
(presumably) increased compensation,

scope and quality. This gives the Architect some control over budget changes; thus the
budgets should be thou ght through prior 1o signing the contraci. - ot

* Section 1.3.2: The Owner has the right to use the Architect's drawings only for purposes of -
“constructing, using and mainiaining the projeci." However, if the agreement is lerminated,

HALE LANE PEEK DENNISON AND HOWARD
LAS VEGAS OFFICE: 2300 West Sohwa Avenue | Eighth Floor | Box ] Las Vegas, Nevoda 9102 | Phone (702} 222-25003 Fax [707) 363-6940
CARSON CITY OFFICE: 777 Exist William Stree) | Suite 200 | Carson City, Nevada §9701 | Phone {775} 6B4-6000 | Fax {775) 6B4-GOO?
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the owner's right to use the drawings terminates, and it is only if the architect is "adjudged" in /
default that the owner may use the documents. Thus, in the event that the architect defaulis
(but is not adjudged in default), the Owner will not have the right 10 use the documenis 1o
complete the project. This language should be revised 1o provide that the Owner may use the
documents upon any default.by the Architect. -

. = e - - gt .‘.—-n.

preclude, for example, recovery of damages by the Owner against the Architect for items such
as loss resulting from the Architect's delay. This paragraph should be deleted.

[

Seciion 1.3.6. This prO\}ision provides for a waiver of consequential damages and would ﬂ_/_f

Section 1.3.7.1. You may want to consider having the contract governed by Nevada law. Ve L

e brmlm e T M b rer b St e e F

Sectjon 1.3.7.6. You may consider making the Architect and its consullanis hable for / 2

hazardous waste i caused by the=Architecbortheeonsuttants-- (..q__,,,./-'--

. —Seclion 1.3.7.9. 1f you anticipate assigning the agreement, we will need 1o change the
language m this section which prohibits assigmment.

Section 1.5. The terms used in the first paragraph should be defined so as to provide clarity
to third parties as to their meaning, '

Section 1.5.9. Ifthe architect's services extend beyond 32)mon1hs of the date the agreement
is signed, those services will be additional costs to the Owner (presumably not included in the
5.75 percent cost). This could significantly increase the Architect's fees.

Section 2.4.1. You may want to expand on what is meant by "normal structural, mechanical
and electrical engineering services." More specificity will Ié§sen the likelihood of litigation
over these points. ‘

Section 2.8. The Owner should ensure this accurately reflects the desired services 1o be
provided by the Archilect, as any change in these services will entitle the Architect to
additional compensation. x

As a final note, the contract incorporates by reference the A1A Document A201, which we
should also therefore review prior 1o signing the contract. See Section 1.1.5 and Section 2.6.1.1. We
have a copy of this document from the AIA website, which we will review and let you know if we

have additional suggestions.
i
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{775) 334-2435

February 14, 2006

Consolidated Pacific Development
932 Parker Street
Berkley, CA 94710

RE: LDCO06-00321 (BSC Mixed Use Residential Towers)

Dear Applicant:

Your requesled development proposal will be considered at the Planning Commission
meeling on Tuesday, April 4, 2006, which begins at 6:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers,
City Hall, 1 East First Street.

In addition, a preliminary discussicn of your prti;bosa! and commenis by reviewing-agencies'
will be held as follows:

Thursday, March-2, 2006, at 11:00 a.m.
3rd Floor Conference Room

City Hall Annex

450 Sinclair Street

Your attendance is requested at these meetings, although it is not mandatory. Lack of
representation at the Planning Commission meeting may result in the tabling or denial of
your proposal.

A copy of the Planning Commission meeting agenda and staff report on this project will be
available online at www.cityofreno.com by 4:00 p.m. on Friday, March 31, 2006.

If you should have any questions, please feel free to contact our office at 334-2576.

John B. Hester, Director
Community Development Department

XC: John and Sonia lliescu
219 Court Street
Reno, NV 85501

Fisher Friedman Associates
Nathan Ogle, AlA '
1485 Park Avenue, Suite 103
Emeryville, CA 94608

LDC06-00321 {BSC Mixed Use Residential Towers) - VAK
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Community Development Department

MEMORANDUM

February 13; 2006

Development Review Commitiee

From: Claudia Hanson, AICP, Interim Planning Manager
Subject: Development Proposals:

Planning Commission, City Council and

Site Plan Reviews ~ March and April, 2006

The projecis summarized below are scheduled for consideration by the Reno City
Planning Commission and City Council and for Site Plan Review in March and April,
2006. Please review the attached malerials and notify our office of any concerns,
comments or conditions of approval which you feel should be associated with these
projects no later than_3:00 p.m., Wednesday, March 1, 2006. Meeling dates may
change without noftice.

Stali/applicant meéiings are scheduled for Thursday, March 2, 2006, beginning at 9:00 —
a.m. a1 450 Sinclair Street, third floor, as noted below. Your participation in the process
and attendance at the meeting are greatly appreciated.

9:00 a.m. LDCO06-00301 (Vintage Poinle Annexation) - This is a request for
annexation of two parcels totaling +93.35 acres located +1,350 feet east of
Robb Drive on the south side of Interstate 80. Upon annexation the
properly will be zoned LLR1 (Large Lot Residential - 1 acre).

PLANNER: Chad Wilkinson, Associate Planner

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 1 - Norheast

CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: Weslt Truckee Meadows

APN: 039-161-10 and 20

MEETING DATE: Cily Council — March 22, 2006

9:30 a.m. LDC06-00352 (New Facilily at Penhall Company) — This is a request for a
special use permit to allow for the construction of a +10,550 square fool
industrial building adjacent 1o residentially zoned property. The +1.58 acre
sile is locaied on the south side of Parr Boulevard, +220 feel west of the
intersection of Parr Boulevard and Ferrari MclLeod Drive in ihe IC
(Industrial Commercial) zone.

PLANNER: Cheryl Ryan, Senior Planner

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 4 — Northeast

CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: None : :

APN NUMBER: 035-640-12

MEETING: Planning Commission - April 4, 2006

DRM - 02-07-06 Intake - Revised_1.dac
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Development Review Commitiee
Development Proposals — March and April, 2006
Page 2

LDCO06-00356 (Clearwire #23-Fire Station #5) — This is a request for a sile plan review
to install three (3) new aniennas, three (3) BTS equipment cabinets, one (1) GPS
anienna, two (2) microwave antennas on an existing £59'7” tall fire iraining fower and a
ground modified equipment cabinet within a 7'x7’ leased area to operate an unmanned
wireless facilily. The +1.17 acre site is located on the south side of Mayberry Drive,
+200 feet west of its intersection with Hunter Lake Drive (1500 Mayberry Drive) in the
MF14 (Multi Family — 14 du/ac) zone.

PLANNER: Kelly Sleep, Assistiant Planner

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 1 — Southwest Reno
CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: West Truckee Meadows

APN: 010-430-16

MEETING: Site Plan Review

LDCO06-00344 (Peppermill Central Plant) - This is a requesi for a site plan review to
allow for the relocation of the Peppermill Holel/Casino's Central Plant facilities. The
‘proposed 22,000 square fool facility ‘will. be located on a +2.68 acre site'on the
southeast corner of the Grove Streel and Lymbery Sireel iniersection in the CC
(Community Commercial) zone. :

PLANNER: Charles Fitzhugh, Asscciate Planner
NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 2 - Central
CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: West Truckee Meadows
APN: 019-202-23 and portion 019-202-27

MEETING DATE: Site Plan Review

DRM - 02-07-06 Intake - Revised_1.doc
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Community Development Department

MEMORANDUM

February 13, 2006

Development Review Committee

From: Claudia Hanson, AICP, Interim Planning Manager
Subject: Development Proposals:

Planning Commission on April 4, 2006

The project summarized below is scheduled for consideration by the Reno City Planning
Commission on April 4, 2006. Please review the attached maierials and notity our oflice
of any concerns, commenis or conditions of approval which you feel should be
associated with these projects no later than 3:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 21, 2006.
Meeting date may change without notice.

The staff/applicant meeting for this project only is scheduled for Wednesday,
“February 22, 20086, beginning at 11:00 a.m. al 450 Sinclair Streei,;-second floor, as -
- noted below.  Your pariicipation-in the process and attendance ai the meetmg are
- ‘greally appreciated.

11:00 a.m. LDCO6-00353 (Reno Sports Connecticn) - This is a request for a special
use permit 1o allow grading disturbance within a major drainageway to
construct a 72,000 square foot indoor sports recreation facility. The +5.0
acre site is localed on the west side of Old Virginia Road {11565 Old
Virginia Road) +450 feet south of the Old Virginia Road and Avelina Road
intersection in the CC (Community Commercial) zone.

PLANNER: Patrice Echola, Planning Consultant, DD&A

STAFF COORDINATOR: Charles Fitzhugh, Associate Planner

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 2 - South

CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: Souihwest Truckee Meadows

APN NUMBER: 160-060-19

MEETING DATE: Planning Commission — April 4, 2006

DRAM - 02-07-06 Inlake - Revised_1.doc
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Community Development Department

MEMORANDUM

February 13, 2006

Development Review Commitiee

From: Claudia Hanson, AICP, Interim Planning Manager
Subject: Development Proposa[s

Planning Commission, City Council and

Site Plan Reviews ~ March and April, 2006

The projects summarized below are scheduled for consideration by the Reno City
Planning Commission and City Council and for Site Plan Review in March and April,
2006. Please review the atlached materials and nolify our office of any concermns,
comments or conditions of approval which you feel should be associated with these
projects no later than 3:00 p.m.. Wednesday, March 1, 2006. Meeling dates may
change without nolice.

A- staﬁ/appltcani meeimg w1II n01 be scheduled unless requesied by the applicant prlor' D

lo February 27, 2006. Call Tara Moran at 333-7798 1o schedule an appoiniment.

LDC06-00349 (Verdi Market) — This is a reque51 for annexation of two parcels totaling
+2.0 acres located +130 feet north of where Interstate 80 (Exit 5) crosses over U.S.
Highway 40 (2855 U.S. nghway 40) Upon annexation the property will be zoned |
(Industrial}.. :

PLANNER: Cheryl Hyan, Senior Planner

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 5 - Norihwest
- CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: Verdi

APN NUMBER: 038-850-12 and 13

MEETEING DATE: City Council - April 12, 2006

LDC06-00351 (Northgate 19 Easement Abandonment) - This is a request for an
abandonment of 22,738 square feet of easement originally granied by Document No.
2250339 1o enable grading operalions on adjoining parcels with the development of the
Mae Anne tire station. The easement encumbers portions of lols 13-18 and parcel E of
the Northgate 19 subdivision, Tract Map No. 4258,

ENGINEER: Chris Robinson, Senior Civil Engineer
NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 2
CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: West Truckee Meadows
APN NUMBER: 208-682-01 -

MEETING DATE: City Council — April 5, 2006

DRM - D2-07-06 Intake - Revised_1.doc
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Development Review Commiitee

Development Proposals — March and April, 2006
Slafi/Applicant Meeling — Thursday, March 2, 2006
Page 2

10:00 a.m.  LDC06-00347 (The Sharlands Planning Unit 1) — This is a request for: (1)
a lenlative map 1o create a development consisting of 80 triplex buildings
containing 240 single family units; (2) a special use permit 1o allow: (a) a
project with more than 50 units; (b) culs greater than 20 feet in depth and
filis greater than 10 {eet in height; and (c) private streets (alleys); and (3) a
variance 10 reduce the required dislance belween buildings from 20 feet to
10 feet. The =21.8 acre parce! is located at 1he southeast corner of the
interseclion of Sharlands Avenue and Mae Anne Avenue in the Sharlands
PUD (Planned Unit Development) zone.

PLLANNER: Beverly Straub, Assistant Planner

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 5 — Norhwest

CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: NA

APN: 039-112-24 and 039-112-26

MEETING DATE: Planning Commission — April 4, 2006

- 10:30a.m. LDCO06-00346 (Markridge Properties LLC) — This is a requesi for a special
o -use permit for hillside development 1o allow an existing parcel to be split

into 3 parcels. The +3.92 acre site is located on the southeast corner ot
Susileen Drive and Nalalie Sireet with frontage on Markridge Drive, +950
feel northeast of its iniersection with Susileen Drive in the SF15 (Single
Family Residential - 15,000 sq.fi.) zone. .

PLANNER: Kelly Sleep, Assistant Planner

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 1 — Southwest Reno

CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: West Truckee Meadows

APN: 018-261-24

MEETING DATE: Planning Commission — April 4, 2006

11:00 a.m. LDC06-00321 (BSC Mixed Use Residential Towers) — This is a request
for: (1) a tentative map to develop a 394 unil condominium subdivision;
and (2) special use permits 1o allow for: (1) hillside developmeni: and (b)
culs of 20 feet or more. [n addilion io the condominium units, +20,519
square feet of retail space and +12,336 square feet of office space will be
located within iwo fowers which are +492 and +374 feet tall, respectively.
The +1.36 acre sile is localed on the south side of Island Avenue +200
feel east of Arlinglon Avenue and norh of Cour Sireet in the CB {Central
Business) zone.

PLANNER: Vern Kloos, Senior Planner

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 1 — Southwest Reno

CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: Weslt Truckee Meadows -

APN: 011-112-03, 06, 07 and 12

MEETING DATE: Planning Commission — April 4, 2006

DAM - 02-07-06 Intake - Revised_1.doc

JAO758 STEPPAN 0015



Developrnent Review Committee

Development Proposals — March and April, 2006
Stafi/Applicant Meeting — Thursday, March 2, 2006
Page 3

1:00 p.m.  LDCO06-00342 (Cricket Communications/Toulumne Dr) - This is a request
for a site plan review 1o allow a wireless telecormunication facility to be
installed atop an electrical distribution tower and ils associaled cabinet
equipment at the base of the iower. The +5.63 acre site is located on the
south side of Lancer Street, +190 {eet west of Tuolumne Drive in the
MF14 (Multi-Family - 14 units per acre) zone.

PLANNER: Beverly Straub, Assistant Planner

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 5 — Northwest

CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: NA

APN: 200-340-31

MEETING DATE: Site Plan Review

1:30 p.m.  LDCO06-00350 (Chris Lane Subdivision) - This is a request for: (1) a
tentative map 1o develop a seven (7) loi single family residential
subdivision; and (2) a variance to reduce the minimum lot width irom 50
- Teet 10 36 feet on Lot #5 (southwesi corner lot). The +0.70 acre site is
' located on the south side of Chris Lane, +375 feet east of its |n1ersechon
with Neil Road in the IC {Indusirial Commermal) zone. S
PLANNER: Quincy Yaley, Planning Consultant, DD&A
STAFF COORDINATOR: Kelly Steep, Assisiant Planner
NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 3 - East Reno
CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: Southeast Truckee Meadows
APN: 020-241-50
MEETING DATE: Plannlng Commissicn — April 4, 2006

2:00 p.m. LDCO06-00354 (Virginia Lake Commons) - This is a request for: (1) a
tentative map 1o develop a 184 unit single family attached townhome
subdivision; (2) special use permits for; (a} a single family attached
townhome subdivision with more than 50 units in the MF30 zone; (b)
private sireels; and (c) a cusiom streel image plan; and (2) a variance 1o
reduce the minimum building separation from 20 feet 10 10 feet. The +9.6
acre site is located south of the Easishore Drive and Lymbery Street
intersection (2490 Eastshore Drive) in the MF30 (Multi Family — 30 du/ac)
zone.

PLANNER: Quincy Yaley, Planning Consultant, DD&A

STAFF COORDINATOR: Charles Fitlzhugh, Associate Planner

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY BOARD: Ward 2 - Central

CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD: West Truckee Meadows

APN NUMBER: 019-100-04 AND 018-100-09

MEETING DATE: Planning Commission — April 4, 2006

DRM - 02-07-06 Intake - Revised_1.doc
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MINUTES OF THE
SENATE COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Seventy-second Session
March 11, 2003

The Senate Committee on Judiciary was called to order by Chairman
Mark E. Amodei, at 8:09 a.m., on Tuesday, March 11, 2003, in Room 21489 of
the Legislative Building, Carson City, Nevada. Exhibit A is the Agenda. Exhibit B
is the Attendance Roster. All exhibits are available and on file at the Research
Library of the Legisiative Counsel Bureau.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:

Senator Mark Amodei, Chairman
Senator Maurice E. Washington, Vice Chairman
Senator Mike McGinress =
Senator Dennis Nolan
Senator Valerie Wiener
Senator Terry Care

COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT: =

Senator Dina'"Titus (Excused)

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:

Nicolas Anthony, Committee Policy Analyst
Bradiey Wilkinson, Committee Counsel
Lora Nay, Committee Secretary

OTHERS PRESENT:

The Honorable Debarah A. Agosti, Chief Justice, Supreme Court

Judge Susan Deriso, Sparks Township {Department 1}, Justice of the Peace,
Washoe County

Steve G. Holloway, Lobbyist, Associated General Contractors, Framing
Contractors Association, National Association of Women in Construction

ivan R. "Renny” Ashleman, Lobbyist, Nevada Homebuilders Association,
Southern Nevada Homebuilders Association

Fred L. Hillerby, Lobbyist, American Institute of Architects-Nevada {(AlA)
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JUDGE SUSAN DERISO, SPARKS TOWNSHIP (DEPARTMENT 1), JUSTICE OF THE PEACE,
WASHOE COUNTY:

| am here on behalf of the Nevada Judges Association to testify in support of
S.B. 203. We actually asked for this bill. As you know, smali claims is the
peoples’ court. It allows procedure for the average person to come to court
inexpensively and without an attorney to collect on monies owed. This bill
addressed a weakness in the law allowing defendants to defeat the purpose of a
small claim by filing a possibly frivolous or an unrelated counterclaim that could
technically deprive the small claims court of its jurisdiction. This would force the
small claims litigants to either hire attorneys and proceed in a higher court or
dismiss their action. | do not think this is the intent of small claims. The net
result deprives the small claimants of their day in court. This bill would allow the
small claims judge to avert this problem by going forward with the small claims
matter and..severing the counterclaim. for refiling in either a formal justice “court
action or in a district court action. This, in effect, forces the counter to settle or
have it addressed in the small claims arena. In addition, this allows the small
claims litigants to have their day in court without reference to the
counterclaims. :

This bill also allows for the litigants to stipulate to the fact they would want the
case to be heard in a higher court without the judge needing to take any action.
Of course, if the counterclaim is bona fide, germane, and appropriate, the small
claims judge does not have to sever the case and could send it up to the
appropriate court. It just allows us to sever it if we feel this person is entitled to
his or her day in small claims court. There is a justice court rule allowing for
formal justice court actions to be severed if a counterclaim exceeds the justice
court amount. It can be severed and the justice court case remains in justice
court and the counterclaim would go up to district court. There already is a
justice court rule in place for justice court cases. We are hoping to have one in
the small claims arena for our small claims litigants. For the record, the
secretary has a copy of the justice court rule (Exhibit C) reflecting the ability to
sever the claim as well as the Nevada Supreme Court opinion outlining what the
court felt the Legislature intended for the people’'s court.

SENATOR AMODE!:

Is there any other testimony on S.B. 203? Seeing none, we will close the
hearing on S.B. 203 and open the hearing on S.B. 206, and refer to the mock-
up provided (Exhibit D. Original is on file in the Research Library).
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SENATE BILL 206: Makes various changes to provisions relating to mechanics’
and materialmen’s liens. {(BDR 2-755)

STEVE G. HorLLowAy, LoBBYIST, ASSOCIATED GENERAL CONTRACTORS, FRAMING
CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF WOMEN IN CONSTRUCTION:
| am the executive vice president for the Associated General Contractors in
Las Vegas. | am here on behalf of the sponsors for S.B. 206. For the record,
those sponsors are: Associated Builders and Contractors, Associated General
Contractors in Las Vegas, Associated General Contractors in Northern Nevada,
the Framing Contractors Association, the Mechanical Contractors Association of
Nevada, the National Association of Minority Contractors, the National
Association of Women in Construction, the National Electrical Contractors
Association, the Nevada Association of Mechanical Contractors, the Plumbing
..and Mechanical Contractors of :Nevada,.the Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning
" Contractors’ Nationa! Association, the Southern Nevada Air- .Conditioning
Refrigeration Service Contractors Association, and the Southern Nevada Home
Builders Association.

This bill has been 4 years in the works. It was introduced and then withdrawn
last session at the request of the development community as they felt they had

- not had sufficient input.. For-the last-2 years, we have been meeting with that
portion of the community and other interested parties to hammer out certain
refinements in this bill. We believe this bill is fair to all those it affects, the
owners, the developers, the general contractors, the subcontractors, the
equipment rental companies, and suppliers, et cetera.

This bill is an outgrowth of the Venetian, the Aladdin, and the Regent. Even
though we have been working on it 4 years, | would simply point out the
actions involving the lien law claimanis over the Venetian construction are still
in court, and those who have not gone bankrupt have settled for 30 or 40 cents
on the dollar. The purpose of this bill is to prohibit the prospective waiver of a
lien claimant’s rights, and to confirm, clarify, and standardize the procedures
and forms required for a waiver and release upon payment. The procedures for
recording notice of lien and a surety bond, to release a lien, and the proceedings
to adjudicate a lien. If you would like, Mr. Chairman, | can go through section by
section and briefly describe what each section does.

JA0763



Senate Committee on Judiciary
March 11, 2003
Page 6

SENATOR CARE:

| will disclose my law firm represents Bovis Lend Lease LMB (Lehrer McGovern
Bovis} Inc., which built phase 1 of the Venetian; although we do not represent
Bovis on matters related to the construction of the Venetian. In Section 2,
would it say a subcontractor is an agent of the owner? Will you elaborate on
how that would be?

MR. HOLLOWAY:

This is the current language in the existing statute. We debated long over
whether to continue to include subcontractor in the definition of agent of the
owner. There are times when the subcontractor can or may have contro!l of the
property, the improvement, or work of improvement. At that point in time, the
subcontractor would be considered an agent of the owner.

SENATOR CARE: : , T

Section 7 is about a disinterested owner, | understand the definition, but can
you tell me what recourse a disinterested owner has? For example, | once
represented a landlord who owned a shopping center where an electrician was
recruited by a tenant and did some work. Then the tenant skipped out and never
paid the electrician. A lien was filed on the shopping center itself.

- MR. HOLLOWAY: . ‘
Disinterested owners, as soon as they learn the work is being done, should file
notices as disinterested owners. The existing law and the proposed changes
would then absolve the disinterested owner's property of any lien claims. They
need to file the notice as soon as they become aware waork is being done by the
tenant. What the courts look at, and unfortunately there has been no Nevada
Supreme Court decision in this area, are such things as whether the owner
required the tenant to do this work or whether there usually is an allowance to
do the work. The court will accept the fact this is a disinterested owner,
although there have been one or two cases to the contrary. Now they look for
evidence the owner required the work. If it was the owner who had the contract
with the contractor, then the disinterested owner does not apply. However, if
the contract is between the tenant and the prime contractor or subcontractor,
then generally the provisions on disinterested owner would apply and the
property would be absolved of any lien.
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SENATOR CARE:

On section 21, about surety, my scribbled notes say “who is this,” and “why
not someone licensed to issue bonds in Nevada?” Section 21 subsection 1,
says: “Is included in the United States Department of the Treasury’s Listing of
Approved Sureties; and ..."

14

MR. HOLLOWAY:

Yes, this language was recommended by the surety association. We used it
because it gives a little broader reach on surety bonds, so you are not
necessarily in this hard market, stuck with having to have an A-plus surety
rating. You can drop down to what would be termed a B rating. The
U.S. Treasury keeps up with the sureties and their financial standings and posts
them much better then other standard agencies you look to to approve sureties.
This is why this language is included. The surety would also have to be licensed
in this State to do business.

SENATOR CARE: _

In section 25, there is a subsection 2 saying, “A condition, stipulation or
provision in a contract or other agreement for the improvement of property or
for the construction, alteration or repair of a work of improvement in this state
that attempts to do any of the following is void:” and then it lists several. There
is also a provision in section 26: “Any term of a contract that attempts to waive
or impair the lien rights of a contractor, subcontractor or supplier is void.” What
if somebody actually commenced an execution of the contract and work is
actually performed, then someone says this contract is void. Could this happen?

MR. HOLLOWAY: _
lt says the provision would be void.

SENATOR CARE:
Just the provision?

MR. HOLLOWAY:
Yes, not the entire contract.

SENATOR CARE:

In section 28, the last line in subsection 2: “If a contractor or a professionat is
required to be licensed pursuant the provisions of NRS [Nevada Revised
Statutes] to perform his work, the contractor or professional will only have a

JA0765



Senate Committee on Judiciary
March 11, 2003
Page 8

lien pursuant to subsection 1 if he is licensed to perform the work.” | am
wondering if there is some sort of responsibility for somebody to ascertain
whether this person has a license to begin with.

MR. HOLLOWAY:

| do not believe so, Senator. This would be a defense to an owner or a
developer or general contractor or one of his agents in a lien proceeding, if he
could point out the contractor whao filed the lien was not licensed in this State.
The lien would be invalid under this paragraph.

SENATOR CARE:

] know there have been some alterations in existing law for example, as to time
factors. On page 14, line 19, it says, "Within 40 days after the recording of a
valid notice of completion.” It used to say “timely,” and you came up with
40 days. There are a couple of other provisions in the bill where the time frame
has been altered or even established, why did you do that?

MR. HoLLOwAY:

Once a project is completed, the existing law provides a notice of lien must be
filed in 90 days. You will have already filed your notice of right to lien. If the
owner files a notice of completion, the time frame in which to file a lien is
shortened to 40 days. In this State, this has always been the law; we just
clarified it. The primary changes in the other notices are twofold. Cne, in the
notice on the right to lien, we have said in the past the law has required the lien
be filed within 31 days once work is commenced on the property. In this bill,
you can file that notice anytime prior to the completion of work. It is only good
for the 31 days prior to when you filed it for the work you did in that period and
for any work you did until the completion of the work of improvement. This
gives a littie more flexibility on the notice of right to lien.

The second notice we have required applies to residential projects onily.
Fifteen days before you file your notice of lien, you must file a notice of intent
to lien. This is intended to give the owner on residential projects time to meet
with you if your subcontractor and the general contractor failed to pay you,
even though the owner had failed to pay the general contractor, and will give
you time to clear this up before a lien is filed. As the houses are completed in a
residential project, you want to turn them over and be able to sell them. If you
have a lien on the property, and usually the lien will apply to the whole
subdivision, you need to get that cleared before you can sell houses as they are
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compieted. This is to give that owner-developer an additional advance notice
there is someone who intends to file a lien. It will give her or him a chance to
get with the general contractor, subcontractor, or supplier and get it cleared up.

SENATOR WIENER:

In section 41 on page 27 around line 14, you have added some additional
language proposed, would you explain what you are hoping to accomplish and
would you be able to give us an example of what this would address?

MR. HOLLOWAY:

There has been an ongoing and continuing problem in the courts. The law was
not ciear and the practices of the different courts varied. We made it very clear
if a lien is upheld, the lien claimant will be awarded, either on his or her lien or
against the surety bond if one is filed, the lienable amount found due-by the
court, the:cost of preparing and filing the lien including attorneys fees, and any
interest that may be due on that amount. In the paragraph you are referring to,
we also wanted to make sure if the lien was not upheld, the court could, at its
discretion, award costs and reasonable attorneys fees to the owner or other
person _defending against the claim. In our amendment we say “prevailing
party,” rather than “owner” or “person,” if the court finds the lien was not
pursued by the lien claimant with reasonable costs. '

SENATOR CARE:

In section 46, the preferential trial, after you have filed the Rule 16.1 mandatory
pre-irial conference report, the joint case conference report, then you have the
notice of demand for preferential trial setting. Looking at fine 17 on page 33, it
says, “Any supplemental discovery responses ..." | am wondering about the
discovery reguests which can be done at the case conference. | know these
things are going to move quickly. What is the overall time frame for discovery?
When do you actually make those first requests, and any supplemental requests
and when do they have to be?

MR. HoLLOWAY:

We lengthened the time for preferential trial from 30 to 60 days and gave the
court 60 days to schedule the preferential trial, as opposed to 30 days under
the existing law. This extends the time you had to do whatever discovery you
needed once you are notified of the lien and any request for a preferential date.
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SENATOR CARE:
In a matter like this, the discovery requests are immediate?

MR. HOLLOWAY:
If the court will sign a preferential date, yes.

IvaN R “RennY” ASHLEMAN, LoBBYIST, NEVADA HOMEBUILDERS ASSOCIATION,
SOUTHERN NEvADA HOMEBUILDERS ASSOCIATION:

We were participants in this 2-year process, involving not only the individuals
named by Mr. Holloway, but also representatives of the title community and
other affected members of the community. We sincerely believe this bill will
greatly improve the ability to clearly foillow the lien law of Nevada and it will be
of some assistance in trying to avoid some of the major problems with liens we
have seen. | do practice in this area personally and our present.lien law is almost
unreadable. The judges have-proven this many times and so have attorneys.
This will be easier to work with, at least for the 2-year period. It is worth trying
the compromise we have agreed to in this process. -

MR. HoLLoway: _
We have introduced a cleanup amendment. You have been given the proposed
amendments {Exhibit E and Exhibit F). Legislative Counsel Bureau (LCB) has
reviewed the cleanup amendment at Chairman Amodei's request. Most of the
changes in the amendment are just that, they are to clear up things the drafter
had missed or things we thought needed to be clarified after we read the
finished product. We have discussed the two major changes.

MR. ASHLEMAN:
In all fairness to LCB, this cleanup was mostly our afterthoughts.

FRED L. HILLERBY, LOBBYIST, AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS-NEVADA {AlA):

Woe are here to support the S.B. 2086. In fact, my client asked me to monitor this
bill and as | was sitting here today some questions arose in my mind. | would at
least like to put on the record the more | read the bill, it was less clear. Let me
give you the scenario arising in the case of an architect who is called to perform
services for someone who owns a piece of land. The architect draws a set of
plans with elevations and all that sort of thing showing how a very good
commercial project could be developed. The owner does not pay the architect
and does not do the improvement. However, the owner uses the architect’s
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plans to show 1o a potential buyer of that piece of property. This property has
been enhanced by those plans.

If you read section 9 on page 2, it does say enhancement, but then as you read
the following subsections they are just talking about buildings and mines and
drilling of holes. in the case | have just given you that does not occur. | look at
section 24, which talks about a work of improvement, and again it means the
“entire structure or scheme of improvement as a whole, including, without
limitation, all work, materials and equipment ...” | am not finding things in here
an architect would have a lien right against a piece of property no dirt had ever
been turned upon, but for which he had, in fact, provided services that did
enhance the potential value of the property to the subsequent owner. You could
look at the agent of the owner, an engineer, a land surveyor. These are aiso
_people who could provide services that would improve the value cof the land or
~enhance the value-of the land. The original owner may never do anything 1o
move a piece of dirt, but may use those plans to show and enhance the value of
property as it is sold. As you are considering these amendments, | would like .
this question on the record. | do not want to slow down the progress of this bill
because they have done a lot of work and we would like to see it passed and
the architects included.

VICE CHAIRMAN WASHINGTON:

| understand what you are saying. Even though they are listed in section 2 as
the agent of owner, conceptually you have a plan or an architect a developer
could use to serve a plot of dirt or piece of land to a perspective buyer and then
not get paid for it.

MR. HILLERBY:
| am concerned the way this new language is, he might not have a right to.

MR. ASHLEMAN:

In that regard we did not change the act. The language Mr. Hillerby is
concerned about is existing language. It does not have anything to do with our
changes. Our recollection is if you have a contract to design a building on a
piece of property, this is the type of improvement or enhancement which will
allow the filing of a lien.

VICE CHAIRMAN WASHINGTON:
So, it is current language then?

13
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MR. ASHLEMAN:
That is right.

VIiCcE CHAIRMAN WASHINGTON:
| guess the problem is solved. Is that all right Mr. Hillerby or would you still
prefer ...

MR. HILLERBY:
I am not sure the old law handled this, so let me verify and come back again.
| have no intent to delay this bill.

VIcE CHAIRMAN WASHINGTON:

If you work with Mr. Holloway and Mr. Ashleman and bring back some type of
language, | am sure the Chairman will entertain it. With no further testimony we
will close the hearmg on S.B..2086. —

CHAIRMAN AMODEL:

Returning to S.J.R. 5, the f1rst bill we heard today, proposing to amend the
constitution to allow the Legislature to establish an intermediate appellate court,
to start the procedure to do that. What is the pieasure of the committee?

SENATOR WIENER MOVED TO DO PASS SENATE JOINT
RESOLUTION b.

SENATOR CARE SECONDED THE MOTION.

THE MOTION CARRIED. {SENATOR TITUS WAS ABSENT FOR THE
VOTE.)

E o O O

CHAIRMAN AMODEI:
Moving to $.B. 203 concerning the separation and adjudication of certain small
claims actions, what is the pleasure of the committee?

SENATOR CARE MOVED TO DO PASS S.B. 203.

SENATOR WIENER SECONDED THE MOTION.

14
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[Steve Holloway, continued.l After meeting with the surety associations, we
limited the bonds for liens to the face amounts of those bonds. We also
provided that you must file against the bond within nine months of when it is
recorded. Currently, the surety associations in the industry are having a
problem, because the courts have allowed people to come in as late as six years
after a bond has been recorded and file against it. This is strange, since in
Chapter 108 of NRS, you only have six months after a project is completed to
file your liens, and then the bond is used to bond around those liens, so that the
liens then attach to the bonds rather than the surety.

A second thing we have attempted to address is confusion regarding change
work, which is always the subject of most litigation in our industry.

Finally, a bill was brought before this Committee earlier in the Session. We
“assured Chairman Anderson that we would meet with the sponsors of that bill,

which died in this Committee, and we would try to take care of their probiem.
- They wanted to lease property in Boulder City to a power company that wished
=+to build another facility. it was a $440-million-project. It didn’t seem appropriate
~to them that this particular lessee, who had the financial means, shouid either

_have to post a bond, which would have been for $660 mt[hon, or set up a
= constructlon control account.

. We have made provision for the owner, as a disinterested owner, to waive their

- rights to file a notice of non-responsibility and therefore put the lessee in the
~ place of the owner. The protection 10 the contractor in those cases is that they

_can then lien the real property, the ground itself. They do not need the benefit
~of either the surety or the construction control account.
‘Chairman Anderson: i

Are we hurting the contractors and subcontractors who depend upon this? They

could go out of business if there isn’t a bond.

Steve Holloway:

No, we are not. The way we have written S.B. 343, the land itself would
become lienable and serve as at least partial collateral, as well as any
improvements that had been made on that land.

Chairman Anderson:

Even in a place where the underilying owner is the city, such as the case in
Boulder City?
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Stave Holloway:

Yes, sir. If they filed a waiver, then they are waiving their immunity to be liened
for that property. This also applies 1o other entities such as the
Airport Authority, which is also leasing land through private developers.

Richard Peel, Legislative Advocate representing the Sheet Metal Air Conditioning
Contractors of America, the National Electrical Contractors of America,
and the Mechanical Contractors of America:

These three trade organizations have a number of union subcontractors as

members. In addition to that, | have a host of contractors and subcontractors

that our law firm represents. We have been actively invoived in getting
contractors” and subcontractors’ laborers paid for work, materials, and

equipment furnished for the improvement of projects located in the state for a

number of years. | personally have experience with respect to the Venetian, the

Aladdin, the resort of Summerlin, and most of the big projects you have heard

about in the newspapers where there has been controversy regarding payment.

One of the things we have learned is that our mechanlcs' llen statute is there

-for-a purpose. It helps to get people paid. I - s

In 2003 we did a major overhaul of the statute, which is there for a purpose. It
is there to assist pedple who have improved real property so that they can get
paid for their efforts. That is something that has proven to work over the years.
In fact, our Nevada Supreme Court has consistently held that our lien law
should be liberally construed in favor of lien claimants.

‘When the Aladdin_started having its financial woes, my firm: recorded
approximately 125 mechanics’ liens on behalf of about 30 separate contractors
and subcontractors who had not been paid. As a result of the liens that were
recorded, every one of my clients ended up getting either full payment or partial
payment through the lien process. | would like to say that the lien process does
work. Do we need to have some clarifications of the ambiguities and so forth
that currently exist? Yes. Mr. Holloway spoke of some of the problems with
surety bonds and the surety industry in general, and we do need to have some
cures to the current problems that exist.

Section 12 confirms that a lien claimant’s lien rights pertain to labor, materials,
and equipment furnished, as well as that to be furnished. That is an important
clarification in the statute, because many people go to great expense to
purchase or fabricate materials for the improvement of the land, and they should
be able to lien for that. Sections 12 and 13 confirm that a lien claimant has a
lien for additions, changes, and extras whether priced lump sum, unit price, or
tracked on a time and materials basis. This is a clarification of the

JAO774



Assembly Committee on Judiciary
May 13, 20056
Page 24

2003 legislation, when we made it clear that we did have the right to lien for
extra changes and additions.

[Richard Peel, continued.] Section 13 confirms that the 15-day notice of intent
to lien, which is applicable to residential projects and includes apartment
houses, does not pertain to commercial projects. Section 14 confirms that a lien
for closure action will not be staked pending an appeal, which allows the lien
claimant to go ahead and have his case adjudicated while the appeal on a
challenge to a lien is pending.

Section 15 requires property owners to serve the lessee and lessee’s prime
contractor with a notice of nonresponsibility that the owner may have caused to
be recorded. This allows the prime contractor to then notify other contractors
and lien claimants of the existence of the notice of nonresponsibility.
Subsections 4 and b of Section 15 allow a lessee to obtain the removal of liens
that may be recorded against tenant improvements by prospectively recording
surety bonds or by establishing a construction control fund for the security of
the lien claimant. The Chair had asked about this and asked whether this was
satisfactory security. We believe it is. We think that either the land, the
construction control funds, or a prospective surety bond would be a good way
to secure lien claimants and the right to get paid.

Section 17 modifies the definition of interest and provides that the prevailing
lien payment be paid at 4 percent over prime. Subsection 4 also allows an
owner to opt out of the requirement that a lessee provide either a prospective
surety bond or, alternatively, a construction control fund for the security of the
lien claimant. Mr. Holloway briefly touched on this, but owners both on private
property and where a public body is leasing the property for a nongovernmental
purpose would be able to opt out such as that the lessee is not required to have
that construction contral fund or the surety bond. The land itself would be the
security to lien claims.

Section 18 allows lien claimants to join an ongoing lien for closure action by
filing a statement of facts. Sections 19 and 20 confirm that a surety liability and
a surety bond are limited to the penal sum, as Mr. Holloway discussed.
Section 19 allows a principal to record a surety bond prospectively in an amount
equal to one-and-a-half times the amount of the prime contract. Section 256
confirms that a provision in a contract is against public policy and is void and
unenforceable, if the provision requires a contractor or subcontractor to waive
or release damages, delays, or impacts under certain circumstances or
conditions.
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[Richard Peel, continued.] Section 26 limits joint check payments to a lien
claimant and another joint payee in the same chain of privity. Section 26 also
modifies the four waivers and release forms that our industry currently uses for
releasing or discharging your rights to lien. [t makes certain that you are only
releasing the amount of the payment received.

Finally, Section 2 defines consequential damages in more detail. These are the
main highlights that the Chairman had asked for with respect to the bill.

Assemblyman Horne:

In Section 5 of S.B. 343, concerning construction control, it calls for a provision
that shall disburse money to lien claimants. It seems they would be obligated to
do this prior to any other litigation. f there is a dispute of payment, would they
pay this anyway?

Richard Pesl: :

The answer to your question is that the word “meritorious” in our amendment
has been replaced with the word “legitimate.” If-you look at the definition.of-the-
word legitimate in Black’s Law Dictionary or in Webster’s Dictionary, it talks
about a viable claim or a claim with merit. We believe that the word legitimate
should go in there. If the construction control believes that particular lien claim
is not legitimate, they have the right to go ahead and interplead the funds
attributable to that lien claim to the court. The construction control in later
provisions is entitled to be reimbursed for the reasonable cost in doing so. That
way they are not going to be on the hook for wrongfully paylng it, unless they
pay a nonlegitimate claim.

To answer your question: yes, the construction control would be required to pay
lien claims that may arise during the course of the project that are legitimate.

Assemblyman Horne:

If we are going to allow this construction controller the authority to make the
determination on whether a lien is legitimate or not, who are going to be the
construction controllers?

Richard Peel:

They currently exist in the industry. Almost every project of any considerable
size uses a construction control. For example, | just built a building, and my
bank required me to use Nevada Construction Services as my construction
control. They do a decent job in going through and making sure that they have
all the paperwork to protect the lender, the owner, and also to make sure that
the work has been performed out there on the job. It is a nhormal and customary
course that is currently being utilized.
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Assemblyman Horne:
In Section 17, subsection 2, where you increase the interest rate plus
4 percent, you're increasing it from 2 percent?

Richard Peel:
That is correct.

Assemblyman Horne:
Why?

Richard Peel:

Our interest rates are so low right now, it is actually cheaper for many owners
not to pay their debts and obligations, because the money that they are able to
save or realize from not paying the debts and obligations is less expensive than
it would be to borrow it out in the open market. So, we raised it in order to try
and create a disincentive for nonpayment of monies that may be owed for waork,
materials, and equipment on a project. It is not too high, in our belief. In fact,
~ we think it is.a-fair amount that will encourage owners to more promptly pay. -

.Assemblywoman Buckley:

| don’t have a lot of sympathy for some of these folks that get work done on
their property and then don't pay for it. However, NRS 108 applies also to a
single-family homeowner who may get work done on their home. by a
fly-by-night contractor who then puts a lien on their home. What | would like for
you to do is walk through the bill changes with that scenario in mind and tell me
how those types of situations would be handled. | am worried about the
1.6 times amount for a single-family homeowner. The lease situation only
applies in a commercial context, so that seems fine; but I'd like to focus on any
other provision in NRS 108 that may affect a bad contractor with a single-family
homeowner.

Richard Peel:

The sections that | think would answer your concerns are located throughout
the bill. If a single-family, natural person homeowner has a concern regarding a
lien that has been placed on their property, they have a right under
NRS 108.2275 to challenge that lien by way of what is called an "order to
show cause.” That particular statute has been around since 1995. It has
worked to the extent that the lien is not meritorious and was not timely
recorded, meaning that notice had not been properly given pursuant to the
statute. That is one of the mechanisms available. As you correctly note with
respect to the lessee aspect of it, that really doesn’t come into play, but we
reaily didn’t change the surety bond aspect as it pertains to the riddance of liens
that may be recorded against real property in the future.

JAO777



Assembly Committee on Judiciary
May 13, 2005
Page 27

[Richard Peel, continued.] We added a new provision that allowed you 1o record
surety bonds prospectively so that liens would attach to that surety bond rather
than the fand. With respect to a homeowner, they still have the right to get a
surety bond to get rid of liens against their own property. As for a natural
person, they are treated, to some extent, similar to other types of owners of
property, and knowing that, if they are going to have people work on their
property, they need to get waivers and releases. In fact, the Contractor’'s Board
does a very good job in NRS 624.600 of requiring contractors to notify natural
person homeowners of their rights and what steps they should take in order to
protect their property. It is a statutory mandate that general contractors on a
residential project have to give these notices. That is another place that they
can be educated or notified of what their rights are.

If they get their waivers and releases, make sure who is on the project, and
utilize the statutory remedies available through the Contractors Board, natural
persons have a lot more remedies than commerciai owners do, with respect to
mechanics’ liens.

Assemblywoman Buckley:
The 1.5 surety amount would apply to them, too?

Richard Peel:

The 1.5 surety amount that you are talking about has always been in the
statutes since the date that the mechanics’ lien statute enacted the right to
record a mechanic’s lien release bond. That is really what it was. That came up
over 30 years ago. We did not change or modify that surety amount with
respect to a natural person homeowner.

Assemblywoman Buckley:
With regard to the release of that amount, was that the language change?

Richard Peel:

if you are going to build a custom home and you do not want any liens to
attach to your property, you could have your general contractor obtain and
record a prospective mechanic’s lien release bond, and that bond would need to
be one-and-a-half times the amount of the prime contract. That would give you
the protection of knowing that your property would not be subject to liens, and
instead, those liens would attach to that bond.

Assemblyman Horne:

Why did you want to remove the 15-day notice requirement for commercial
construction?
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Richard Peel:

In 2003, when we were negotiating the mechanics’ lien statute revisions, the
Southern Nevada Home Builders had a concern that they would like to get
notice prior to the date that the lien is actually recorded. Through discussions
and negotiations, that language was inserted in 2003, We are not changing
anything with respect to the language. What we have modified is simply to
clarify that apartment houses are a residential project as set forth in that
particular subsection of NRS 108.226, and therefore, apartment houses would
need to also be the subject of the 15-day notice of intent to lien, because they
do pertain to residential structures. With respect to commercial projects, they
have never been required to give a 15-day notice.

Starting out with Section 2, there are a couple of changes to that particular
provision that would delete the word "or” and add a comma, and delete the
word “significant” and add the word “impact.” With respect to Section 4, which
is the section that deals with a lessee’s obligations in the event that it is leasing
real property, we have modified several of the provisions and deleted certain
language that was set forth, mainly as a result of discussions and negotiations.
Certain other groups felt that the language that was set forth in subsection 2
needed to be revised. We did that by adding a new subsection 4, which is
discussed on page 3 of the amendment (Exhibit E), and that is the main
highlight of that particular section.

With respect to Section 5, which is discussed on page 4 of the amendment, we
discuss what type of notice needs to be given by a construction control and
who it needs to be given to. We also discuss what a construction control’s
obligations are in subsection 5, on page 4. With respect to Section 12, which
modifies NRS 108.222, we made certain lien rights pertain to materials,
equipment, and work furnished, as well as that to be furnished. On page 5 of
our amendment {Exhibit E), we have also made certain that lien rights would
apply to additional, extra, or changed work, materials, or equipment. This is a
term of art in the industry, and it is very important that this language be put into
the draft in that format.

Chairman Anderson;
Would you like the bill drafter to come fairly close to your language? Is that
what you are trying to say?

Richard Peel:

Yes. In Section 13, we have cleaned up the actual form that is being used to
record a notice of lien by adding the words “additional, extra, or changed” in
subsection 1. The rest of the changes set forth are to clarify and make certain
that you have a lien for work, materials, and eguipment to be furnished. In
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subsection 7, that applies to Mr. Horne's question regarding commercial versus
residential, and we have added the words “nonresidential” versus the word
“commercial” as it is currently set forth. Section 15 modifies the statute that
pertains to the notice of nonresponsibility and provides that an owner must give
that notice to a prime contractor and a iessee. It also provides the method for
the prime contractor to give notice to the lower tier trades. In subsection 2, we
have modified the definition of “disinterested owner.” We believe the current
language that is set forth in the statute has too many exceptions to the
exception. We are trying to make certain that it is understood and a court can
easily understand what the intent of the Legislature was.

[Richard Peel, continued.] Section 16 has the same type of cleanup work with
respect to lien rights from materials, work, and equipment to be furnished. With
respect to Section 24, which is the notice of right to lien section, we are asking
that the changes that were proposed in the first reprint be restored to the -
current statutory language -as set forth in subsection 3. With respect to
Section 25, we are asking that the language that was set forth be changed to

our proposed language. This would relate to delays, acceleration, disruption, or— - -

impact-type events that may arise with respect to a project.

Section 26, subsection- 1 relates to the joint pay rule, and we are asking a
change be made of that. We added a new section on the last page of our
proposed amendment that would modify the definition of owner to include the
state or political subdivision of the state, or an incorporated city or a town, if
they lease property and it is being used for a nongovernmental purpose, and
also to clarify that if a private person owns land and leases it to a governmental
body, that particular land is also subject to mechanics’ liens. In subsection 2,
which defines what an owner is not, we have clarified that if the land being
leased is the subject of a governmental purpose, it would not be the subject of
an owner, meaning the definition of an owner.

Assemblywoman Ohrenschall:
In which section did you use the phrase “term of art”?

Richard Peel:

It was number 5 on page 5 of the amendment (Exhibit E}. The words we are
asking to have inserted are “including any additional, extra, or changed” work,
materials, or equipment.

Assembiywoman Ohrenschall:
That is a term of art in the industry?
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Richard Peel:
When you talk about additional, extra, or changed work, those are significant
phrases with respect to construction practices.

Assemblywoman Ohrenschall:
What exactly does that mean within the 1ndustry?

Richard Peel:
It is work that is outside the scope the contractor or subcontractor has
contracted for. It is in addition to the original contract.

Assemblywoman Ohrenschall:
Thank you. | just wanted to be sure | understood.

Chairman Anderson:
On page 3 of the amendment (Exhibit E}, relating to the-changes in number 4 of
your number 15—the reference to NRS 108.245—"within 10 days after the

. owner's receipt of a notice of right to lien or 10 days after the date the owner

records " s that consistent with other sections in the statutes?

Richard Peel:

Yes. This is simply providing that if an owner chooses to opt out, they would
give a copy of that notice of waiver of NRS 108.234 to any lien claimants that
may serve that owner with a notice of rlght to lien during the course of the
project. :

Chairman Anderson: :
We are not cutting down the window of opportunity for somebaody. This already
exists in current statute?

Richard Peel:
No, Mr. Chairman.

Renny Ashleman, Legislative Advocate, representing the Southern Nevada
Home Builders Association:

We wish to emphasize the importance of having the waiver be something that is
optional on behalf of the landowner, because we are bringing public bodies into
this, and we don’t want them to be automatically waiving their right to be
immune from liens. For the first time, we probably have this so that a notice of
nonresponsibility actually could work, so that an owner might have some rights
in these matters. If we make an automatic waiver of it, we have destroyed the
value of a notice of nonresponsibility.
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[Renny Ashieman, continued.] We think this more carefully balances things. It
leaves the gquestion of the waiver and which way you might have a notice of
nonresponsibility done as a matter of negotiations, and that is where we
appropriately think it should be. | am principally worried about protecting the
governments in this area, and | might add in that regard that | am on the State
Public Works Board and that | also represent the City of Henderson. Because of
the lateness of the negotiations here, | wasn't able to get official authority from
them on this issue, but | am certain that they would find, as | do, that it is
extremely important that it be a matter of a waiver and not automatic.

Karen Dennison, Legislative Advocate, representing Sempra Generation,
San Diego, California:
We represent the lessee’s point of view and are in complete agreement with
what Mr. Ashleman said regarding the fact that where you have a lease, the
owner would have the discretion to waive or not waive its rights under the
notice of nonresponsibility statute. We feel that in a commercial setting, as
these normally are, the bargaining power between the owner and the lessee
-would be sufficient, so that the owners could protect themselves in other ways -

‘by requiring the lessee to provide guarantees, bonds, or other forms of security. = -

We are in complete support of the amendment (Exhibit E} and especially with
respect to what Mr. Ashleman said.

Vicki Mayes, City Manager, City of Boulder City, Nevada:

We feel the compromises reached through the amendments here today are good
balances that protect our City’s interest, yet protecting the interests: of the
contractors and subcontractors. We fully support the amendments that “have
been presented this morning.

Chairman Anderson:

This Committee, while recognizing the unique nature of Boulder City, would still
like the City to play by the State’s rules. We want to make sure contractors,
homeowners and, particularly, subcontractors are protected. The City feels that
their needs will be met?

Vicki Mayes:
They will, and we agree completely.

Jack Jeffrey, Legislative Advocate, representing the Southern Nevada Building
and Construction Trades Council:

We support S.B. 343. It is important for the health of the industry. It is

important that our people be paid.
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Michael Newman, Legislative Advocate, representing the National Association of
Industrial and Office Properties (NAIOP} and Trammell Crow Company,
Las Vegas, Nevada:
We appreciate the work that has gone into this bill and support the bill in most
regards. There are certain provisions of the bill that cause us concern, primarily
those which require a lessee to post a surety bond and to establish a trust
account. Our concern is very specific. There are instances in which folks hold
ground leases for large parcels of land for multiple years, and our concern
relates to the fact that the term “lessee” is not clearly defined to exclude those
ground lessees.

The second issue we have a concern with is the fact that disbursements for
construction distribution accounts are defined, as Mr. Peel said, as being
payable once a legitimate claim has been made. We do not feel that the term
“legitimate” has been properly or appropriately defined, and we would like to
have a discussion on that.

Chairman Anderson: : L S
| have a letter that was addressed to Mr. Holloway and signed by Mr. Rice
{Exhibit F}. We have distributed that. Are your concerns raised in this letter?

Michael Newman:
They are generaily raised in that letter. We appreciate the chances we had to
tatk with Mr. Holloway; however, our concerns are not adequately addressed.

Chairman Anderson: T
Do you have a written document you are planning on submitting?

Michael Newman:

We posed all of those concerns in detail to Mr. Holloway. This letter does
represent those concerns. We can prepare something additional and submit it
within a couple of hours if necessary.

Robert A. Snow Jr., President, Thomas and Mack Development Group,
lLas Vegas, Nevada:
I would like to use this letter {Exhibit F) as the format over the next couple of
minutes. My first point regards ground leases. Our proposed language and the
language we have discussed with Mr. Holloway would indicate that if there is a
ground lease of 10 years or greater, the ground lessee would be termed a
noninterested or disinterested owner. The people sitting here with us and our
firm, combined, have built over ten million square feet of industrial offices,
which have a value of $1 billion or greater. We are the |lessees of ground leases
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with the Department of Aviation. We feel this particular area has not been
covered to our satisfaction.

{Robert Snow, continued.] My second point regards the distribution from
construction distribution accounts. In talking to Nevada Construction Services
this morning and to Ann Dwyer, the senior vice president, she indicated that the
word “legitimate,” in her opinion, is somewhat subjective and would make it
difficult for her to automatically distribute on a claim made by a party that has
liened the property. The language we proposed to Mr. Holloway would indicate
that the distributing service would do so upon a court decision that it is a
legitimate claim and could then be paid out of the construction services.

My third point, which deals with finance, has been met and we appreciate that
being struck. The fourth point in the letter indicates the posting of the required
surety bond or funding of a construction account automatically renders the
landlord a disinterested party. We believe if the lessee of space, whether it is
retail, office, or industrial, posts this bond or funds a construction account, the
- landlord, including the long-term lessee, should be exempt from . further
- language. A . L o

In Section 1b, the process of posting a notice of nonresponsibility is very
cumbersome. In fact, preliminary lien notices regarding the Department of
Aviation’s ground leases sometimes go to the ground lessee, being. the
Department of Aviation, and sometimes to the ground lessor, being ourselves as
the developers. We would like to see the word “or” placed under
paragraph 14(a). : :

"

Chairman Anderson:

Mr. Snow, if you wish to put this proposed amendment in, you need to put it in
writing and submit it right away. Did you raise these concerns when the bill
came out of the Senate several weeks ago? [Mr. Snow answered in the
affirmative.] Did you raise those questions during the Senate hearing on
5.B. 3437 [Mr. Snow answered in the negative.] Why not?

Robert Snow:
Because we received notice very late and could not put our thoughts together at
that point.

Chairman Anderson: -

When S.B. 343 passed from the Senate to the Assembly, did you have anyone
participating up here? On the face of the bill it states that the bill was
introduced on March 24, 2005. How come you didn't have somebody here
participating?
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Michael Newman:

When we read 5.B. 343 the first time we saw the word "“lessee,” and quite
frankly, it did not dawn on us that the word lessee was not so clearly defined as
to exclude ground lessees and ground leases. Typically, that term would refer to
someone who is leasing space in an office or a retail center and building out
tenant improvements, not building infrastructure and physical buildings and so
forth. When we realized that the term could be interpreted differently than we
had anticipated, we contacted Steve Holloway immediately. It has been about
three weeks since we began these conversations.

‘Steve Holloway:

I would iike to point out that | have been trying to work with NAIOP for the last
three weeks. They are right. They did contact me shortly after this bill passed
into the Assembly. We have tried to incorporate as many of their concerns as
we can.

Chairman Anderson:

|- think it would make the Committee feel more comfortable if their concerns -

were addressed. | don't think any of us like 1o see a bomb dropped at :the last
second, especially when everything we are dealing with needs to be out of
Committee a week from today. This is not an exempt bill.

Steve Holloway:

1"l be happy to do that,

Chairman Anderson:
We are adjourned [at 10:53 a.m.].

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
Judy Maddock Terry Horgan
Recording Attaché Transcribing Attaché

APPROVED BY:

Assemblyman Bernie Anderson, Chairman

DATE:
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EXHIBITS

Committee Name: Committee on Judiciary

Date: May 13, 2005

Time of Meeting: 8:17 a.m.

Bill | Exhibit | Witness / Agency Description

A Agenda
SB.|B Fidelity National Title Proposed Amendments to
172 S.B. 172
SB. |C Bob Faiss/Palms Casino Resort Proposed Amendments to
444 S.B. 444
SB. |D Bob Faiss/Palms Casino Resort Proposed Amendments to
444 S.B. 444
SB. |E Senator Warren B. Hardy, 11 / Proposed Amendments to
343 Associated General Contractors S.B. 343
S.B. |F Robert A. Snow/National Letter to Steve Holloway
343 Association of Industrial and Office | with issues and concerns

Properties

regarding S.B. 343
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Consolidaled Pacific Development Inc.
932 Parker Street, Berkeley, CA 94710 (510) 548-6093

SAM A. CANIGLIA
Prasident

Septémber 1, 2005

Mayor Robert A. Cashell; Sr.’

City of Reno ' '

P.0O. Box 1900 - : . '

Reno, NV 89505 .. ... . ... _ e

Dear Bvob:

T want to take this opportunity to thank you for taking time out of your -
busy day 1o meet with Dick Johnson and myself last Thursday August
25, 2005, regarding my upcoming project on Court and Island Streets.
And then again, on Monday August 29, 2005, on such short notice,

-you afforded my partner, architects and some of my staff an additional

opportunity to meet with you and John Hester, the Director of
Community Development. -With this type of support our project is
sure to be a suecess.

On a personal note, I asked Marcia after our Monday meet how your
wife was doing and she informed ine that she is domg well. That’s

-GREAT. .

Again, many thanks for your time and support for our upcommg
pro]ect

Sincerely,

Sam A. ‘Caniglia

SAC/ad

- 1JO00087
JAO788 ILIESC
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INDEMNITY

THIS INDEMNITY ("Agreement") is executed by BSC FINANCIAL, LLC, a limited
liability company ("BSC"), CALVIN BATY, individually ("Baty™), and JOHN SCHLEINING,
individually ("Schleining”) (collectively, the "Indemnifying Parties”), in favor of IOHN -
JLIESCU, IR., and SONNIA SANTEE JLIESCU, individually and-as Trustees of the JOHN
ILIESCU, JR., AND SONNIA ILTESCU- 1992 FAMILY TRUST (eo]]ectwely, "Niescu"), and is
effective as of the date set forth by the partles respective 51gnatu:es

) RECITALS:

A.. Consolidated Pacific Development, Inc., a Nevada corporation {"Consolidated"),
entered into a Land Purchase Agreement with Tliescu dated July 29, 2005, together with
Addendum No. 1 dated August 1, 2005, Addendum No. 2 dated August 2, 2005, Addendum No.
- 3 dated October 8, 2005, and Addendum No. 4 dated as of Septernber 18, 2006 (coliectively, .
"Purchase Agreement") conceming certain real property located in the City of Reno, County of
Washoe, State of Nevada, identified as APNs 011-112-05, 06, 07 and 12, and more particularly
descnbed in the Title Report attached to Addendum No. 3 ("Property“) Sam Caniglia, President
“of Consolidated, Baty and Schleining formed BSC iii‘order to proceed with the entitlement ¢f the
project on the Property.

B.. BSC entered into an AIA Arcmtectural Apreement ("AlA Contract™) W1th Mark .
Steppan, AlA ("Architect"), for architectural services for a mixed-use development inchuding
residential, retail, and parking ("Project”). The architectural schematic drawings were necessary
to obtain the land nse entitlements for the Pro_}ect The Iand use entitlements were approved by
the Cxty of Reno.

C. On November 7 2006, the Architect recorded in Washoe County, Nevada, a
Notice and Claim of Lien against the Property in the amount of $1,783,548.85 for claims of -
unpaid architectural services ("Mechamc s Lien"). These unpaid amounts are contested by BSC.
In addition, the Mechanic's Lién is an improper lien not in compliance with Nevada law because
the Archilect failed to deliver to Iliescu (i) a Notice of Right to Lien pursuant to NRS 108_245
and (ii) a Notice of Intent to Lien pursuent 10 NRS 108 226(6). : '

D. Bnty and Schle:mng are pnncxpa]s of BSC.

E. Baty, Schlelmng and BSC desire to mdemmfy Iliescu for any and all clalms and
‘costs related to the Axcl'utect s recording of the Mechanic's Lien on the Property. ' -

NOW 'IHEREFORE for valuab]e eonszderatlon Baty, Schleining and BSC hereby agree
as follows:

1. nde mnity, Baty, Schlemmg and BSC hereby, jointly and severally, agree to
indemnify, defend, protect and hold Hiescu harmless against all damages, losses, expenses, costs,
liabilities, mcludmg, without limitation, payments due or which may be due to the Architect
arising out of ser\uces performed pumuant to the AIA Contract or any change order or exhas:.‘

C\Documents and Seumgs\Calvm\Loen] Seuinp\']‘unpnmry Internel Fles\OLKll!\l-ﬂ_RNDDOCS #587327-v]- lndcmnny
_BSC_and_Consolidated_to ] llieseu!_DDC ’ C 1

-JA0790 ILIESCU000334



" related-thereto, mcludmg mterest, penaltles and attorney fees whlch may be claimed by Architect '
"~ 10 be owed by either BSC or Consohdated

| 2. Attomeys' Fées. Baty, Sch]emmg and BSC hereby jointly and severally agree 1o
- pay all attorney's fees and costs incurred 1o contest and discharge the Mechanic's Lien. In the
event-that a discharge of the Mechanic's Lien does not occur pursuant to a resolution of the -
- dispute with Architect within ten (10) _days of the date of this Indemnity, the mdemmfymg
Parties agree to initiate an action in the Washoe County District Court to contest and to discharge
the Mechanic's Lien for.(i) failing to comply with Nevada law, and (ii) the excessive amount.
The Indemnifying Parties agree to dlhgently prosccute such action in an exped:ted manner to
eliminate the Mechanic's Lien.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the lndetumfymg Parties have executed this Indemmty BS of
the date: set forth below.

BSC FINANCIAL LLC ahrmted Ilablhty
company

" Dated: Deccmber. g ., 2006

Dated: December g ,2066

CATVIN BATY. indiyfAually

!jated: December 8 , 2006 o ﬁ% o

' /L@‘HN SCHLEINING, individualw

e - CADocuments and Sdhny\Cn.hnn\Locn] Sdhngs\T:mpurnry Internet Fllcs\OLKl?l\HLRNODDCS-# 587327-vi-Indemnity_-
_BSC_and_Consolidated_to_Hliescul DOC . 2 '

o LIESCU000335
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. FW: BSC Financial and Individual Indemnities = Page1 of 1

Subj: FW: BSC Financial and Individual Indemnities:
Date: 1212/2006 2:50:59 PM Pacific Standard Time

From: choward@halelane.com
Ta: richnson@melzkerjohnson.com, rkj4702@aocl.com

—~-—Q0riginal Message—

From: Cralg Howard .

Sent: ' Tuesday, December 12, 2006 B:15 AM

To: ‘djohnson@metzkerjohnson.com'.

Cc:  Calvin Bosma (E-mail); Michele Powell (E-mail) ,
Subject:  BSC Finandal and Individuat Indemnities

Dick:

Attached below is the executed Indemnity'Agreement regarding the Architect's Mechanic's Lien. Please forward
to Dr, lliescu. ' : : . -

As you know, BSC Financial is attempting to close the purchase of Property shortly and'payoff'ther en_tire amount

- of the {ien even though some of the Schemalic Drawings are not completed.

Please call if questions regarding the Indemnity. -

Craig

Hale Lane Peek Dennison and Howard
5441 Kietzke Lane, 2nd Floor

Reno, Nevada 89511

Phone: (775) 327-3000

Fax: (775) 786-6179 .
Visit pur website at www.halelane.com

R. C__-:-:BSC Indemnity Agreement.pdf>> aig Howard, Esq.

FERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL, This message orlginales from the law firm of Hale Lane Peek Dennlson and Howard, Professiconal Corparation.
This message and any file(s) or attachmani{s) transmitted with il are confidential, intended only for the named recipient, and may contain information - -
thatls a trade secret, proprielary, prolected by the altormey work product doctrine, subject 10 the attomey-client privilege, or Is otherwise protected
against unautherized use or disclosure. This message and any file(s) or at{achment(s) transmilled with it are transmitted based on a reasonable
expectation of privacy consistent with ABA Formal Qpinion No. 93-413, Any disclosure, disiribution, copying, or use of this Information by anyone
ather than the intended recipient, regardless of address or routing, is strictly prahibited. If you receive this message in eror, please advise the sender
by immediate reply and delete the original message. Personal messages express only the view of lhe sender and are not atlibutable to Hale Lane -
Peek Dennison and Howard._IRS CIRCULAR 230 DISCLOSURE: Pursuant 1o requirements relaled to practice before the Inlemal Revenue Service,
any tax advice contained in this communication {including any altachmenis) is no! intended lo be used, and cannat be used, for purposes of {i)
avoiding penallies imposed-under Lhe United States Internal Revenue Code or {fi) promoting, marketing or recommending to another person any lex-
relaled matter addressed herein. ’ : . )

o . . ILIESCU000336
Tuesday, December 12, 2006 America Online: R ¥AO72



FILED

Electronically
02-03-2009:04:56:47 PM

Howard W. Conyers
EXHIBIT “21”

Transaction # 579452

EXHIBIT 217

JAO0793



Edwerd Everelt Hale
[1925-1503)

Sreve Lano

J. Siephen Preh

Karen D, Dennivon
R, Craiy Howsd

Siephen V, Novacek

" Riched L Elmore

Richard Benpet
Iober C. Andemson
Ales ). Flaagua
James L Kelly
Kelly Testolin

M. Pamick Flanagm
Mamhew E Woodhead
Mithclie D. Mulfins
Roger W, Jeppzon
Lance [T Bl |
Jeemy §. Motk
David A. Garcia
Elites F, Cadish
Timoihy A- Lok
Froderfck J, Schrnidi
James Newman
Tany R Sapers
Patrick J, Bailly
Sean D, Pleming
St Sehorer
Anthony L Hall
Jary M. Snydes
Brnt C. Echenaley

Frodorick R, Ralicher

Pamicla C. Halmead
Muthew J, Kreupzer
Matthcw O, Hippler
Brad M, Jotmien
Bryce K- Kumimaso
Doupins C, Flowers
hadin G Jones
Nicole M, Ve
Kimberiee Rorchy
Doma ¥V, Djiliansva
Simon Johnvon*
Smmh E - Clax
Helon £ Mandirosian

of Caypag]
Roy Farrow

- Paulnt g Lbe

Andrew Pearl

*fmicnd b e Tot
9t Yo fymmry wmly

HALE LANE

ATTORMN ns BT LA VY wwmiteraretreetipiminrie
$84| Kictzkg Lane | Scotmd Floor | Renn, Mevida 89311

Toloplonc {774} 127-30000 | Facxintbe (775) 786-6179
Srwr hilelanzcom

December 14, 2005

- John Iliescw, Jr,; an individual
Sonnie Santee lliescu, an individual
John Iliescu, Jr. and Sonnia Iliescu,
- a5 Trustees of the John [liescu, Jr and Sonnia Ihcsw 1992 Family Trust
200 Court Street .
Reno, Nevada 89501

"Calvin Baty, an individual .

- /o Consolidated Pacific Development, Ine. ¢
932 Parker Streel '
Berkeley, Califomia 94710-2524 .

Consolidated Pamﬂc Developmcnt, Inc.
932 Parker Street _ '
Berkeley, California 94710-2524

Re:  Court Street/Island Avenue _Cnnddminlqm Pruject

Lady and Gentlemen:

As you are aware, this law fion has an existing atlorney-client relationship

_with John Iliescu, Jr.; an individual, and Sonnia Santee Iliescu, an individual, and
John liiescu, Jr. and Sonnia Iliescy, as Trustees of the John lliescu, Jr. and Somia

Hiescu 1992 Family Trust (collectively "Iliescu™) the owners of property located

between Court Street and Island Avenue in Reno, Nevada (the "Property™). Our law

firm bas been requested to act as special counsel 1o the buyers of the Property in -

obtaining the necessary entitlements for a condorninium prnject to be developcd on

the Property

With your consent, we m]l represent Calvin Baty, an individual ("Baty"), and
Consolidated Pacific Development, Inc., 8 Nevada corporation ("Cunsohdated") in
assisting in obtaining the condomininm enntlements and any entity to be forrned by
them (Baty, Cunsohdated and such new cntny being cullecuvely referred 10 as

I‘IB“ycr“)

HALE LANE PEEXK DENNISON AND HOWARD

LAY VEGAS OFFICE: 1300 Westr Ssharg Avemse | Eighth Floor | Box 8] Lax Visgay, Nevada B9102 | Phene [702) 122.2500] F:ﬂlnﬂf (702) A65-E940

CARSON CITY OFFICE: 777 Bax Willism Street | Swite 200 | Carsan Giiy, Nevada B9701 | Phone (775) 684-5000 | Foczimlle mﬂ G501

"GDMA\PCDOG\HLRNDDDBHEMH\IﬂDMA\PCDEIS\HI.RNDDUGHMml

S | sC
JAT94 ILIESCUQ00133




December 14, 2005 - , HALE LANE

e - Pagel Y S T S h——

It is understood and agreed that in the event a conflict between Iliescu and Buyer should
_arige in matters involving the Property, this law firm will continue to represent lliescu in such
mater. It is also understood and agreed by Buyer that our representation of Buyer on this one
" matter will not preclude our rcprescmanon of Iliescu in matters not invelving the Property in the
event lhnt Buyer, or any of themm, is an adversary to Iliescu on such other matters.

: 1Fyou consent to our representation of Buyer as set forth i in this letter and waive any and -
all potential conflicts of interest which may exist s a result of such reprcsentation, please
executs the achowledgement of your consent which follows and return a signed copy of this
h:nar to us. .

Please call if you have any que.étiqns or if you wish to discuss this matter further.
‘Very truly yours,
.-{J‘&Lﬂu"ﬂ {4"\ I.g;,':,pl'bn;-—“__ D ,
Karen D, Dennison

KDD:csr -

. . ¢ODMAPCDOCSHLANQDOC 6024
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samcaniglia

From: "Sarah Class" <sclass@halelane.com>

To: <samcaniglia@sbcglobal.net>

Cc: "Danielle Bacus-Aragon” <dbacusaragon@halelane.com>
Sent: Tuesday, November 29, 2005 2:57 PM

Subject:  AlA Contract — Additional Language

Sam:
1 enjoyed meeting you this morning. As discussed, below is suggested

language 1o add to section 1.3.2.2 of the B141:

For purposes of this Section 1.3.2.2, Architect shail be deemed in default
if> (a) Architect shall fail to keep or perform any of the terms,

obligations covenants, agreements or conditions contained herein, and such
default continues for a period of thirty (30) days after notice by Owner or
beyond the time reasonably necessary for cure if such default is of a nature
to require in excess of thirty (30) days to remedy; (b) Architect shall
become bankrupt or insolvent or make a transfer in defraud of creditors, or
make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or be the subject of any
proceedings of any kind under any provision of the Federal Bankruptcy Act or
under any other insolvency, bankrupicy or reorganization act; or (c)a
receiver is appointed for a substantial part of the assets of Architect.

1'will call Nathan when I receive the proposed modifications to the building
code. Please et me know if you have any questions or need further

assistance.
Sarah

Sarah E.L. Class, Esq.

Hale Lane Peek Dennison and Howard

5441 Kietzke Lane, Second Floor

Reno, Nevada 89511 _
Telephone: {775) 327-3000

Facsimile: {775) 786-6179

Visit our website: www halelane.com

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL. This message originates from the law firm of
Hale Lane Peek Dennison and Howard, Professional Corporation. This message
and any file(s) or attachment(s) transmitted with it are confidential,

intended only for the named recipient, and may contain information that is a
trade secret, proprietary, protected by the attorney work product doctrine,
subject to the attomey-client privilege, or is otherwise protected against
unauthorized use or disclosure. This message and any file(s) or

attachment(s) transmitted with it are transmitted based on a reasonable
expectation of privacy consistent.with ABA Formal Opinion No. 99-413. Any
disclosure, distribution, copying, or use of this information by anyone

other than the intended recipient, regardless of address or routing, is

strictly prohibited. If you receive this message in error, please advise

the sender by immediate reply and delete the original message. Personal

JAO0797
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samcaniglia

From: "Sarah Class” <sclass@halelane.com>

To: "Calvin Baty™ <calvin@decalcustomhomes.coms

Cc: "'samcaniglia™ <samcaniglia@sbcglobal.net>; "Danielle Bacus-Aragon”
<dbacusaragon@halelane.com>; "Doug Flowers" <dflowers @halelane.com>

Sent: Friday, November 18, 2005 12:01 PM

Subject: RE: AlA Contract

Calvin-

/4!
As indicated in my last message, the AIA BES& contract that you sent us incorporates additional terms
and conditions from a separate A1A document (the A201). This is the "General Conditions" contract,
which, 1n addition to the B151 and the construction contract, forms pari of the agreement berween the
parties. My assistant Danielle will be emailing you a sample of this document for your reference. My
comments on the A20] are as follows: :

1. Paragraph 2.2.1 — You may not want to have to furnish financial information to the contractor. Also
under paragraph 14.1.1 the owner's failure to provide this information may entitle contraclor to T
terminate the contract. | o

2. Paragraph 3.2.3 - You should delete the-word knowingly from the last line of this paragraph (asjt . .70 77"
would seem to preclude recovery for the contractor's negligence).

3. Paragraph 3.3.] -- This paragraph gives the architect authority 1o direct the contractor to proceed with
work even if the contractor determines it is unsafe, but makes the owner solely responsible for any
resulting damage. This paragraph should be revised so that either the architect should be responstble for
the damage, or the owner should have the authority to direct the contractor to proceed with work.

4. Paragraph 3.10.3 -- Contractor should perform the work in accordance with the most recent approved
schedule submitted to owner and architect.

5. Paragraph 3.18.1 — The contractor’s indemnity in this paragraph should cover loss of use in addition s
to the other delineated 1tems; also, we should remove the limitation that restricts the indemnity to "
neglhigenet acts of the contractor. :

/" 6. Paragraph 4.3.10 -- This paragraph limiting the owner's recovery of consequential damages should be

deleted; you may want 1o include in your construction contract a provision for liquidated damages in the

event 1the contractor fails to perform on time and in accordance with the construction contract.

7. Paragraph 4.6.4 -- The owner should be able to join the contractor and the architect in a single action, —
The language in this paragraph precluding joinder should be deleted, and the paragraph should provide

that joinder is permitted. The same changes should be made to paragraph 1.3.5.4 of the AIA B151.

- 8. Paragraph 5.2 -- This provision should be redrafted so that the owner has the absolute right 1o approve
or disapprove_the subcontractors performing work on the project (the language referrin g to reasonable

objection should be removed).

9. Paragraph ©.2.3 - The owner is assuming responsibility for the costs incurred by the contractor for o
. - 4/
the acts of a separate contractor. This should be acceptable only if the owner can recover the cost from

11/21/2005
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the contractor that causes the loss.

10. Paragraph 10.3.3 — The owner's indemnity should not include Josses in any way caused by the
indemnified parties (the language presently only excludes owner's indemnity from losses caused by the
negligence of the mdemmﬁed parties). In paragraph 10.5 the language refemng to negligence should
aJso mclude gross neghgence or wﬂlful misconduct. :

11. Paragraph 11.4.1.1 — It may or may not be feasible for the owner to obtain the insurance coverage -/f"
required by this paragraph.

' . T e

o
Ll
I e

12. Paragraph 12.2.2.1 — This paragraph provides that if the owner does not make a claim against the —= T

contractor within the first year following substantial completion of the project, the owner waives the
rght to do so. This provision should be deleted. The reference to the i-year period in paragraph 4.2.1 — ..
should also be deleted. -

13. Paragraph 13.2.1 — 1f you want to have the flexibility to assign the contract, this provision
prohibiting assignment w1ll need to be removed '

-

14. Paragraph 14.2.1 -- I would delete the langage ' permstently and repeatedly" in subsection 1, the
word "persistently” in subsection 3, and the word "substantial” in subsection 4.

"~ 15 Paragraph 14.2.4. If the owner terminates for cause, any savings in completmo the work should not
have to be paid to the defaulting contracior.

~ Also I have an additional comment on the B151: you may want 1o require that the architect design the
project within the budget (i.e. that he redraft the plans at no additional cost if the lowest bid exceeds the
budget). This may take some negotiation with the architect if it is something that you want (since
presumably he purposely did not include this provision). As requested below I will work with Sam in
1mplementm0 any changes that you would like.

Thanks

Sarah

---—Qriginal Message--—--

From: Calvin Baty [mailto:calvin@decalcustomhomes.com]
Sent: Wednesday, November 16, 2005 5:01 PM

To: 'Sarah Class’'

Cc: 'samcaniglia’

Subject: RE: AlA Contract

Sarah,

Thank you for the noled suggestions. | will have my pariner Sam Caniglia contact you directly about
implementing your suggestions in final form.

Thanks,
Calvin

————— Original Message--——-
From: Sarah Class [mailto:sclass @halelane.com]
Sent: Monday, November 14, 2005 6:04 PM

11/21/2005
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—— ATTORHETS AT LAW
’ 100 Wes Liberry Suect | Tenth Floor | Reno, Nevada 35501
Telephone (775) 3273000 | Fexaimile (775) 7866179
Websirc: hnpz//www_halelanc,com

FACSIMILE TRANSMITTAL SHEET

FROM: _____ SarehE.L.Class, Esg. _DATE: | December 15, 2005
OURFILENO.: 20540-0002 - °  TOTALNO.OF 4
| - PAGES INCLUDING
'COVER:
RE: Court Street/Island Avenue
SEND TO (NAME/COMPANY) FACSIMILE NO. _TELEPHONENO.

Jobn and Sonmia Iliescu - 775-322-4112 ~ 775-771-6263

// o \ /o /S/&_E
( ,/ \)0?15?7

"RETURN TO: Danicllc Aragon

MESSAGE: -

Once you have both executed the arttached letter, please fo iriile to 775-786-
6179 and the original letter to us by U.5. Mail et your earliest convenience, Ifyou have any
questions, please dp not hesitate to call. Thank you and have a wonderful trip,

* HALE LANE PEEX DENNISON AND HOWARD

CONFIDENTIALITYNOTLICE: The infommationcontained in this facsimile message is intended onl¥nfor the wag ol the individunler enfity naned
above, Ifme renderof this messape i3 oot ihe inrended recipiont, or o ths cmployeeey agemrg:rimmihl:_ r delivenngil 10 the intendedreetpicnt, you
e herehy notifiedthal gy disscminstion, dismibutionos copyingof this communicarionis strictly peohibited. 1f you have recoived this messpge in Eor,
please immedimelynotify ns by elephonzund retrathe erigimimessageto us st the above address vinthe e, postalservice. We will gladly ieimburse
your 1cicphone and posiage expenses. Thank you, ’ .

=ODMARD 473044
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Deccmber 14,2005 - HALE LANE |

Page 3 e ATTORRETR A7 AW — e —

Anknuwledgcment

" The forcgomg waiver of conflict is hcmby given asg of ﬂ:u: date set forth belnw '

RS - Thescu:

| , o —
Diate: /? '—. /b"f JD
- : ' - Jobn mscu,lr..

) . ]

Daﬁ-.: S22 fr-—ﬂj_ T
. . T Inlm?scuh a5 Trustee ohnlllcscu,Jr

Date: L.i 505

D (275 05 ' ¢ 4
' ‘ -Sonnia Santes Ihescu, as Trustee of the John
Iliescu Jr. and Sonnia Tiescu 1992 Family Trust
Baty:
~ Date: .
Calvin Haty
Chnsolidated:
Consolidated Pacific Davclopment, Inc,,
- aNr.'vadu curpom.tmn
Date: L . By . '
. : ' ' Sam A. Caniglia, President
L"ODMA\P\T.ZDOG\I-IU&NDDDE'!\!F&;I#\I
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Washoe County

nas

Stephen C. Mollath . RN ,
Nevada Bar No. 922 AT Al PR 9
PREZANT & MOLLATH b s s n o A G LB
6560 SW McCarran Boulevard, Suite A , WSRO L AT

Reno, NV 89509 . S LR VERS

Telephone: (775) 786-3011
Telecopier:  (775) 786-1354

Attorneys for John lliescu, Jr. and Sonnia lliescu
and The John lliescu, Jr. and Sonnia lliescu 1992 Family Trust

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
[N AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

MARK B. STEPPAN, Case No. CV07-01021

Plaintiff, Department No. B6
V.

JOHN ILIESCU JR. and SONIA ILIESCU,
as Trustees of the JOHN ILIESCU, JR.
AND SONNIA [LIESCU 1992 FAMILY
TRUST AGREEMENT; JOHN ILIESCU,
individually; DOES I-V, inclusive; and
ROE CORPORATIONS VI-X, inclusive.

Defendants.

JOHN ILIESCU, JR. and SONIA ILIESCU,
as Trustees of the JOHN ILIESCU, JR.
AND SONNIA ILIESCU 1992 FAMILY
TRUST AGREEMENT; JOHN ILIESCU,
JR., individually; SONNIA ILIESCU,
individually,

Consolidated with:
Case No. CV07-00341

Department No. B6

Third-Party Plaintiffs,
V.

CONSOQOLIDATED PACIFIC
DEVELOPMENT, INC., a Nevada
Corporation; DECAL OREGON, INC., an
Oregon Corporation; CALVIN BATY,

JA0803
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individually; JOHN SCHLEINING,
individually; HALE LANE PEEK
DENNISON AND HOWARD
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION, a
Nevada professional corporation, dba
HALE LANE; KAREN D. DENNISON;

R. CRAIG HOWARD; JERRY M. SNYDER;
and DOES | thru X,

Third-Party Defendants.
/

PLAINTIFF’S REPLY {N SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY
JUDGMENT AND OPPQOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S CROSS-MOTION FOR
PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT

COMES NOW Piaintiffs, JOHN ILIESCU JR., SONNIA SANTEE, ILIESCU, AND JOHN
ILIESCU JR. AND SONNIA ILIESCU AS TRUSTEES OF THE JOHN ILIESCU, JR. AND
SONNIA ILIESCU 1992 FAMILY TRUST (hereinafter “ILIESCU”), by and through their
counsel, Stephen C. Mollath, Esq. of PREZANT & MOLLATH, and hereby submit the following
reply in support of their Motion for Summary Judgment and oppose the cross-motion of
defendant MARK B. STEPPAN (“STEPPAN"). This opposition is made and based on NRCP
56, NRS § 108.221 et seq., the pleadings, papers and transcripts on file herein, and the
foltowing memorandum of points and authorities.

DATED this Mday of March, 2008,

PREZA MOLLATH

By
Stephen C. Mollath, Esq.
Attorney for ILIESCU
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. INTRODUCTION

STEPPAN is asking this court to hold that his failure to serve a notice of intent to lien
falls within an exception to the statutory rule. Mechanic’s lien laws are intended to balance the
rights of owners and contractors. Even though those laws are liberally construed to secure
payment for those who improve the property of the owner, a lien claimant should at least be
compelled to provide statutory notice of his intent to lien so that the owner has a clear
opportunity to exercise his rights and understand his potential liability. The rule in most
jurisdictions require a claimant's strict compliance with the procedural requirements of
mechanic’s lien statutes before granting liberal application of the statutes’ remedial provisions.

An exception to notice was carved out to protect subcontractors who might not be able
to discover the correct name or identity of property owner. STEPPAN has not asserted that he
did not know or could not discover ILIESCU's identity. In fact, he knew of ILIESCU and his
address. Additionally, Consolidated Pacific Development (CPD), and its subsequent assignee
BSC (hereafter collectively referred to as “BSC”) were contractually required to inform
STEPPAN of the correct parties to lien, upon STEPPAN's request.1 AlA Agreement § 1.2.2.1
(Exhibit 4 to Motion for Summary Judgment). That clause requires STEPPAN to take the first
step to secure his rights under the contract. Similarly, Nevada statutes require STEPPAN to
take the first step to secure his lien rights. Under these circumstances the proper question is
not what ILIESCU knew about STEPPAN and when he knew it, but what STEPPAN knew

about ILIESCU and when he knew it.

' ILIESCU was never informed of the Assignment of the Purchase Contract from CPD to BSC until after the
Mechanic's Lien was recorded. |t was BSC who contracted with STEPPAN, not CPD.

-3-
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This case does not arise out of the same, more easily understandable, circumstances
as the lessor-lessee cases STEPPAN relies upon. Under the Agreements giving rise to the
instant vendor-vendee relationship, BSC was required to assume all the costs of development.
This allocation of risks is fair because otherwise if BSC failed to obtain approval, or failed to
obtain financing, ILIESCU not only would be deprived of his benefit of the bargain, but he
would be left with the financial burdens of a failed project that he did not initiate or control.

Unlike the lessor and lessee cases, where the lessee has a substantial, open, and in
some cases, recorded, interest in the property, BSC did not have even an equitable interest in
the property until the zoning approval condition was met (See Agreement ] 39(F)(Exhibit 2 to
Motion for Summary Judgment) and such interest would not mature until it closed escrow and
purchased the property. It cannot be assumed that ILIESCU would know that STEPPAN
would or could assert a lien for services performed before the contract became binding on the
parties, particularly when no construction had begun.

A chronology of the events in this case is helpful:

1. July 29, 2005, ILIESCU and CPD enter into the Purchase Agreement. The
Agreement provides:

31.  Access to Property:

Seller agrees to provide access to the property to Buyer, inspectors, appraisers, and all

other professionals representing Buyer. Buyer shall indemnify, defend and hold Seller

harmless from any lien, loss, claim, liability, or expense, including (without limitation)
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of or in connection with its activities

(including, without limitation, Buyer's agents and employees, and independent

contractors retained by or acting on behalf of Buyer (collectively, “Buyer's Agents”) on

the Property. . . .

39 . Additional Terms and Conditions:

JA0806
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F. This offer is conditioned upon Buyer, at Buyer’s expense, obtaining the
following governmental approvals within 270 days of acceptance of this agreement, as
may be extended pursuant to Paragraph 1.2 above:

Variance, Special Use Permit, Tentative Map, Zone change and Land Use Designations

2. January 17, 2006, ILIESCU signs owner's affidavit allowing Sam Caniglia to file
development-related applications with the City of Reno.

3. April 21, 2006, BSC and STEPPAN enter into the AtA Agreement. The AlA
Agreement provides at § 1.2.2.1:

Unless otherwise provided under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide full

information in a timely manner regarding requirements for and limitations on the

Project. The owner shall furnish the Architect, within 15 days, after receipt of a written

request, information necessary and relevant for the Architect to evaluate, give notice

of, or enforce lien rights.
AlA Agreement (Exhibit 4 to Motion for Summary Judgment).

4. QOctober 4, 2006, project approved by Reno City Council.

5. November 7, 2006, Notice and Claim of Lien recorded by STEPPAN.

6. December 8, 20086, ILIESCU and BSC enter into indemnity agreement, pursuant
to the advice of HALE LANE, ILIESCU’s and BSC'’s counsei.?

7. April 25, 2007, BSC files for bankruptcy protection; BSC claims its right to
purchase ILIESCU’s property as its main asset.

8. BSC’s bankruptcy dismissed because of its inability to obtain financing, ILIESCU

retains ownership of all equitable and legal interests in the property.

2 |LIESCU is never advised that BSC will file bankruptcy nor the essential facts surrounding the Notice of Lien and
the inherent conflicts of interest that existed when HALE LANE represented both ILIESCU and BSC. These
issues are the subject of the Third Party Complaint filed by ILIESCU against HALE LANE.

5.
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Il.  DISCUSSION OF LAW

A. The Mechanic’s Lien Statutes Should Not Be Construed To Condone A

Failure To Comply With Essential Elements Of The Statute. Mechanic's lien statutes are

enacted and construed to strike a balance between the rights of workmen and materialmen
who furnish labor and material for the improvement of real estate against the unfaimess
arising from the foreclosure of mechanics liens on property of unsuspecting owners. See

Dolder v. Griffin, 323 N.W.2d 773, 780 (Minn. 1982) (buyers were owners entitled to right to

lien notice because they had obtained an interest in the property enforceable by specific
performance):
The balance is achieved by applying the following rule:
Mechanic's lien laws are strictly construed as to the question whether a lien attaches,
but are construed liberally after the lien has been created. While the Mechanic's Lien
Act is to be liberally construed as a remedial act, yet mechanics' liens exist only by
virtue of the statute creating them, and such statutes must be strictly followed with
reference to all requirements upon which the right to a lien depends.

Id. citing Annot., 76 A.L.R.3d 605, 618 (1977). Among the many cases applying this

reasoning are: Everitt Lumber Co. v. Prudential Ins. Co., 660 P.2d 925, 926 (Colo. Ct. App.

1983) (subcontractor’s failure to file an affidavit of service of notice of intent on main contractor
fatal to his claim in spite of contractor's actual knowledge of subcontractor’s intent); Crock

Constr. Co. v. Stanley Miller Constr. Co., 613 N.E.2d 1027, 1031 (Ohio 1993) (*Failure to

submit an itemized statement in accordance with these mandatory statutory requirements

precludes relief as a matter of law on the basis of a mechanic's lien."); Tefco Constr. Co. v.

Cont'! Cmty. Bank & Trust Co., 829 N.E.2d 860, 866 (Iil. App. Ct. 1st Dist. 2005) (where

contractor failed to meet the statutory prerequisites to enforce its claim for lien the court would

not liberally construe the Act to afford contractor a remedy because its claim for lien was
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unenforceable); Tr-County Plumbing & Heating v. L.evee Restorations, inc., 720 P.2d 247,

254-255 (Mont. 1986) (contractor’s lien given priority where he had complied with all the
statutory requirements and had only made a good-faith mathematical error in the amount of
the lien).

STEPPAN relies on Fondren v. K/ Compiex, 106 Nev. 705, 800 F.2d 719(1990) to

support his argument that he has an enforceable lien even though he failed to serve either a
right to lien notice or a notice of intent to lien. In Fondren, the Supreme Court stated
“Is]ubstantial compliance with the technical requirements of the lien statutes is sufficient to
create a lien on the property where, as here, the owner of the property receives actual notice
of the potential lien claim and is not prejudiced.” /d. at 709, 800 P.2d af 721. This statement
indicates that both substantial compliance with the statute and actual notice of the potential
lien claim are required to validate a lien when a lien claimant has failed to serve a right to lien
notice on the property owner. Additionally the Supreme Court recently stated:
[T]he complete failure to meet a specific requirement was found not to constitute
substantial compliance. For exampie, in Schofield v. Copeland Lumber, [101 Nev. 83,
692 P.2d 519 (1985).] this court held that a supplier failed to substantially comply with
the mechanic's lien statute because its notice to the property owner completely failed to
include any information about the material terms of the supplier's agreement with the
contractor. This court noted the statute's purpose of securing payment to those who

furnish material, recognized the policy favoring liberal construction to effect this
purpose, and recalled that

[vlery general statements of the terms, times given and conditions of a contract have
been accepted as being in substantial compliance with the statute. However, we do not
think that a notice of ien may be so liberally construed as to condone the total
elimination of a specific requirement of the statute. Thus, typically, failure to even
attempt to comply with a statutory requirement will result in a lack of substantial
compliance.
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Las Vegas Convention & Visitors Auth. v. Miller, 124 Nev. Adv. Rep. 62,191 P.3d 1138, 1148

(2008). The Court held that to claim substantial compliance a party is required “to have at
least attempted to satisfy each element in the statute.” /d.

NRS § 108.245 is clear “that every lien claimant shall . . . deliver in person or by
certified mail to the owner of the property a notice of right to lien . . .. /d. (emphasis added).
NRS & 108.226 unequivocally states that “a notice of lien for the construction of . . . a
multifamily residence . . . may not be perfected or enforced unless the 15-day notice of
intent to lien has been given. /d. (emphasis added). In this case there is no evidence that
STEPPAN attempted to satisfy the statutory requirements of a right to lien notice or a notice of
intent to lien. Accordingly, this Court does not need to reach the issue of whether ILIESCU
had actual notice of when STEPPAN began work on the project to decide that his lien is
unenforceable because STEPPAN's lien is void as a matter of law.

B. STEPPAN Has Not Shown That ILIESCU Had Actual Knowledge STEPPAN

Had Commenced Work On The Project. A finding of actual notice requires evidence of
some obvious and unmistakable contact or communication with the person alleged to have

received such notice. See Ryan v. Grayson Serv. (In re Rincon Island Ltd. Pshp.}), 253 B.R.

880, 887 (Bankr. C.D. Cal. 2000) ("Actual notice” is defined as ‘notice given directly to, or

received personally by, a party.™); In re Smith, 119 B.R. 714, 722 (Bankr. D.N.D. 1990) (actuai

notice defined as "express information of a fact"). Where actual notice is required, imputed or

substitutionary notice is not sufficient. See, Comstock & Davis, Inc. v. G.D.S. & Assoc., 481

N.W.2d 82, 85 (Minn. Ct. App. 1992). “[Actual notice] is not to be conclusively presumed or
legally imputed to [a party] merely because of the mental condition or the knowledge of

another person, however related to him.” /d.; see also Master Asphalt Co. v. Voss Constr.
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Co., 535 N.W.2d 349, 354 (Minn. 1995) (The actual knowledge requirement of Minn. Stat. §
514.06 (1994)--in the sense of a landowner possessing sufficient information to justify the
burden of posting notice to avoid attachment of a lien-—-requires more than general awareness
on the part of the landowner that improvements to the property are contemplated by the
tenant.)

STEPPAN expects this Court to find ILIESCU had actual knowledge of his services
from “a general awareness” that BSC was intending to seek development approvals for the
property gleaned from documents and circumstances where neither STEPPAN nor his work
were the primary subject matter. The cases cited by STEPPAN in support of its argument that
ILIESCU had actual knowledge can be distinguished from the instant case because they all
involve some concrete evidence, personally observed by the owner, of work being done on the

property. In Duffield Constr., Inc. v. Baldwin, 2004 SD 51 (S.D. 2004), the landlord not only

knew that the oit tank on his property was leaking and discussed the necessary repairs with
his lessee, but he saw the replacement tank on his property, indicating that work on the

property had begun. /d. af P12. Similarly, in Thirteenth St. Corp. v. A-1 Plumbing & Heating

Co., 640 P.2d 1130 (Colo. 1982), the president of the lessor corporation was in the building
while construction was in progress, and the court found that the nature and extent of the
improvements being made were obvious. /d. af 1133. In contrast, no work had been
performed on the ILIESCU property to put ILIESCU on actual notice that STEPPAN's lien

could attach. Compare, Aladdin Heating Corp. v. Trustees of Cent. States, 93 Nev. 257, 260,

563 P.2d 82, 84 (1977) (for purposes of determining priority, lien for architectural services
could only relate back to the time when visible signs of construction appeared to inform

prospective lenders inspecting the premises that liens had attached).
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Application of the exception created by Fondren also requires a finding that the owner
was not prejudiced by the lien claimant's failure to send a right to lien notice. Id. at 709, 800
P.2d at 721. Prejudice should be presumed from such a failure. NRS § 108.234 provides an
owner with a narrow but important statutory right to protect his property from liens resulting
from work and material authorized by a third party. In the absence of clear, unequivocal
notice, whether in the form of a right to lien notice, the commencement of construction, or
direct contact and communication, the owner is deprived of his opportunity to exercise his
right. The deprivation is particularly acute in this case where a developer gambles with the
owner's property to obtain development approval and financing, with the participation of
STEPPAN, then walks away from the failed transaction and files bankruptcy, leaving the
owner with nothing.

STEPPAN's failure to serve a right to lien notice also deprives ILIESCU of a statutory
limit on an owner's responsibility. NRS § 108.245(6) provides that upon service of the right to
lien notice, a claimant has a right to a lien for work and services provided within the 31 days
prior to the date of notice is given, as well as for services rendered thereafter to completion.
Failure to give the right to lien notice gives the claimant an opportunity to assert a lien from the
first day he did work whether or not the owner had actual notice of the claimant's work at that
time. STEPPAN is claiming that he first provided services on April 21, 2006, which is the day
the AIA contract was executed. See Lien of Mark Steppan (Exhibit 5 to Motion for Summary
Judgment). In this situation, if a lien claimant is allowed to assert that an owner has actual
knowledge of the work performed, without an any proof that he attempted to comply with the
notice requirements of the statute, advantages are gained both in his ability to assert a lien

and the scope of the lien. Such constitutes an incentive to further noncompliance. This result

“10-
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is unacceptable. ILIESCU could not know when the AlA contract was executed, what work
was to be done, and the value thereof.

C. ILIESCU Cannot Be Bound By The Participating Owner Doctrine. The cases

STEPPAN relies on involve lessors and lessees, where materials and labor benefiting the
lessee’s interest generally inure to the benefit of the fee. In those cases, granting the claimant
a lien on the owner’s fee interest is justified because the benefit rendered is obvious and
permanent. For example, in Duffield, cited by STEPPAN, replacement of the leaking oil tank
and remediation of the spill were of clear and permanent benefit to the property, and the

owner wouid receive once he paid to release the lien. Id. at P10. In Thirteenth St. Corp., the

improvements were even more extensive, consisting of the addition of a large storage room
over an alley parking lot, the removal of an upstairs ceiling, installation of skylights, relocation
of doors in structural walls, the complete reconstruction of the bars and kitchen areas and the
replacement of heating, plumbing, and electrical systems. Id. at 1732, Besides involving
projects too large and involved to go unnoticed by the owner, the value these improvements
added to the owner’s property justified the imposition of a lien. STEPPAN argues that the
value of ILIESCU’s property has been enhanced by the approvals obtained through the zoning
process. Considering the current financial unlikelihood that anyone would want to éither
deveiop or finance a $160,000,000 condominium project in downtown Reno, his assertions of
added value are pure speculation.

A court must look to the agreements between the vendor and vendee to determine
whether the improvements were made for the interest or to the benefit of the owner, or
whether such improvements were required by the contract, to determine whether the

participating owner doctrine applies. See. e.q. Centerbrook, Architects & Planners v. Laurel

11-
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Nursing Services, Inc., 620 A.2d 127 131-132 (Conn. 1993); Tuttle & Associates v. Gendler,

467 N.W.2d 881, 885 (Neb. 1991). In both Centerbrook and Gendler vendees hired architects

to do planning for property under contract of sale for development, and in both cases the sales
were conditioned on the buyer’s obtaining certain approvals. In both cases the courts found
that liens did not attach because the approval requirement and other conditions of the contract
were for the benefit of the vendee, not the vendor.

The Connecticut court stated “if the permits had not been secured, it would have been
Laurel, not [the vendor], that would have had the choice of either waiving the condition and
closing on the property or terminating the contract. It was Laurel, not [the vendor] that sought
to use the property as a day-care center.” Centerbrook, 620 A.2d at 131-132. To like effect,
the Nebraska court stated:

Tuttle argues that the rezoning and PUD applications were required by Gendler, who

would enjoy the benefit of fulfillment of the condition and payment of the purchase

price. The argument is specious. The requirement for rezoning was for the benefit of

Ameracorp [the vendee]. If rezoning could not be obtained to the satisfaction of

Ameracorp, Ameracorp was not required to complete the sale.

Gendler, 467 N.W.2d at 886.

BSC was not required to complete the sale if the project was not approved. BSC
wanted the property for a condominium development. BSC assumed all the responsibility, and
significantly, all the cost, of due diligence, obtaining approvals and financing for the project
(See Agreement at Y] 8 A-D, 8 6.21, 28, 29, 31, 39 E-F). Nothing in the Agreement indicates
that ILIESCU ever consented to pay any cost of the project, and nothing in the Agreements
indicates that ILIESCU had any control over BSC such that an agency relationship would

arise. See Hamm v. Arrowcreek Homeowners' Ass'n, 183 P.3d 895, 902 (Nev. 2008) (“An

agency relationship results when one person possesses the contractual right to control

12-
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another's manner of performing the duties for which he or she was hired.”). Gendler, 467
N.W.2d at 885. Even the contract provision promising one of the penthouse apartments to
ILIESCU as consideration for the sale inured to the benefit of BSC. Such provision allowed
BSC to divert $2.2 million in cash from the sales price to other expenses at the beginning of
the project. In essence, it was a “pre-sale” of a unit to ILIESCU.

NRS § 108.226 provides:

1. To perfect his lien, a lien claimant must record his notice of lien in the office of
the county recorder of the county where the property or some part thereof is located in
the form provided in subsection 5:
(a) Within 90 days after the date on which the latest of the following occurs:

(1)} The completion of the work of improvement;

(2) The last delivery of material or furnishing of equipment by the lien claimant for
the work of improvement; or '

(3) The last performance of work by the lien claimant for the work of improvement;
It appears from the date of STEPPAN’s lien, November 7, 2006, STEPPAN was using
October 4, 2006, the date the City Council approved BSC's project, as the date of his last
performance of work for the purposes of NRS § 108.226. It is also evident that in order to
have plans to submit to the City for approval, STEPPAN must have done the bulk of his work
prior to October 4, 2006. October 4, 2066, was also the date on which the first condition of
approval for the formation of the purchase contract was fulfilled. STEPPAN had completed
the bulk of his work before ILIESCU knew BSC was involved and before BSC had acquired

any equitable interest in the property,r.3

* This chronology presents a situation in which it benefits STEPPAN to ignore the right to lien statute and assert a
lien based on ILIESCU’s alieged actual knowledge because he could not claim a lien for work performed more
than 31 days prior to his filing of the right to lien notice. Attached hereto and marked Exhibits 1, 2 and 3 are
excerpts from the Depositions of David Snellgrove, Mark Steppan and Richard Johnson indicating no guestion
exists that [LIESCU had no knowledge of the architect’s contract or work.

-13-
JA0815




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

' . .

Some courts hold that “a lien is invalid unless the party requesting the work is the owner

of the property or has an equitable interest in that property.” New Eng. Sav. Bank v. Meadow

Lakes Realty Co., 706 A.2d 465, 473 (Conn. 1998). There is also Nevada authority an

equitable conversion occurs only when a contract for the sale of real property becomes
binding upon the parties. The purchase contract only became binding upon the date the City

Council approved the zoning for the condominiums. Herndon v. Grifz, 112 Nev. 873, 877, 920

P.2d 998, 1001(1996).

D. Any Knowleddge Acquired By Hale-Lane In Its Representation Of CPD or

BSC Should Not Be Imputed To ILIESCU. If it were not for ILIESCU'’s claims against HALE
LANE, the memorandum and similar communications from Sara Class to BSC regarding the
AlA contract and similar communications would certainly be protected by the attorney-client
privilege. See Memorandum dated November 14, 2005 (Exhibit 15 to Opposition to Motion for
Summary Judgment} and e-mail dated November 29, 2005 (Exhibit 22 to Opposition to Motion
for Summary Judgment). Information contained in confidential communications from one
client in the course of representation cannot be freely shared with another client, especially
where, as here, the attorneys and the parties were already aware of a potential conflict of
interest. See Letter dated December 14, 2005 (Exhibit 21 to Opposition to Motion for
Summary Judgment).
It would have been unethical and grossly improper for counsel engaged in the trial or
defense of a case to have imparted to third persons information as to the cause
entrusted to them which might be caiculated to lead such third persons to step in and
claim such property for themselves and so add another difficulty to the cause or
persons they were representing before the Court. Such is not the duty of counsel
employed to represent his client with single purpose and undeviating loyalty to the

interests of his client alone. There was not only no duty upon such counsel to disclose
to the library, even if they were aware of it, the fact that the library might have an

14-
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adverse interest to the interests they were representing, but it was their duty not to
disclose it before the termination of the museum cause.

Charleston Library Soc. v. Citizens & Southern Nat! Bank, 23 S.E.2d 362 (S.C. 1942).

There is an obvious conflict of interest between a third party contracting for services
and a disinterested owner, especially where the project may be abandoned or the third party
may declare bankruptcy. In such an event, the lien claimant will then look to his lien rights
rather than pursue his contract claim or a claim in bankruptcy. ILIESCU has already been
injured by HALE LANE’s dual representation. HALE LANE did not warn ILIESCU that he was
not fully protected from third-party attempts to enforce liens, whether valid or not, or by the
indemnity provisions of the Agreement, as long has he was the record owner of the property.
It would be a miscarriage of justice for this Court to impute HALE LANE's dual representation
and conflict of interest knowledge of the details of the AlA contract to ILIESCU for purposes of
enforcing the lien against ILIESCU.

There are further limitations on HALE LANE’s knowledge of STEPPAN's identity (which
still must be distinguished from knowledge that he intended to assert a lien against ILIESCU's
property, which is the knowledge that give rise to the owner’s obligation to file a notice of

nonresponsibility). The rule articulated in Skiff-Murray v. Murray, 793 N.Y.S5.2d 243 (N.Y. App.

Div. 3d Dep't 2005), cited by STEPPAN, states that the information acquired by the agent can
only be imputed to the principal if it was in the agent’s mind when he or she was acting on the
principal's behalf. /d. at 246.

It is a question of fact whether HALE LANE had information in mind about STEPPAN
when it acted on ILIESCU’s behalf, and thus this issue cannot be decided on summary

judgment.

15-
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E. ILIESCU’s Positions Are Not Inconsistent And There Are No Grounds For

Judicial Estoppel. There is nothing inconsistent in ILIESCU’s defenses and claims in this
and the related action. In light of STEPPAN's obvious failure to serve a right to lien notice, as
required by statute, ILIESCU is entitled to ¢claim that STEPPAN has no valid lien and,
therefore, ILIESCU was not required Kto file a notice of nonresponsibility to avoid it. When
STEPPAN invokes the actual knowledge exception to the statutory obligation to send a right to
lien notice, ILIESCU may assert that such exception does not apply because he had no such
actual knowledge.

ILIESCU is also entitled to claim (1) that HALE LANE should have anticipated that third
party STEPPAN under contract with BSC would file a lien, valid or invalid, against ILIESCU’s
property, and (2) that to avoid having to defend such an action, HALE LANE should have
advised ILIESCU to serve and record notices of nonresponsibility preemptively, and (3) that
HALE LANE was negligent in not doing so.” That claim is entirely consistent with ILIESCU’s
position that he was unaware that he was under a legal obligation to serve and record such
notices and that he received no statutory or actual notice of such an obligation.5

Even if ILIESCU’s positions could be considered inconsistent, the Nevada Rules of Civil
Procedure specifically permit alternative and inconsistent pleadings. NRCP 8(e)(2). Our
Supreme Court has also stated that inconsistent pleadings in separate actions cannot be

regarded as admissions:

4 The statute of limitations begins to run in an attorney maipractice action when the piaintiffs knew or should
have known of damages sustained even though the underlying litigation continued. Kopicko v. Young, 114 Nev.
1333, 1337 n.3, 971 P.2d 789, 791 n.3 (1998). Thus it was both appropriate and prudent for ILIESCU to file his
action against HALE LANE during the pendency of the lien claim.

¥ Bear in mind ILIESCU was still represented by HALE LANE at the time ILIESCU was advised by HALE LANE to
take those legal positions in the initial action HALE LANE filed on ILIESCU’s behalf (CV07-00341).
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An additional contention is that the prior complaint constituted a party admission that
the trial court erroneously excluded from evidence. This contention is without merit
under the circumstances of the instant case. The general rule is that inconsistent
statements made in a prior proceeding are admissible as party admissions or for the
purpose of impeachment. Whittlesea Blue Cab Co. v. Mcintosh, 86 Nev. 608, 472 P.2d
356 (1970). In this case, however, the prior proceeding was an action for damages
arising out of the same accident involved herein against a defendant that Spiegelman
had attempted to join in the instant action. Cf. Spiegelman v. Gold Dust Texaco, supra.

Had joinder been granted, respondent's alternative theories of recovery clearly could
not have been used as admissions, negating each other. HN1 Nevada Rule of Civil
Procedure 8(a) specifically permits a plaintiff to assert inconsistent claims for relief. To
treat such claims as admissions would defeat the purposes of the liberal pleading
provisions of NRCP 8 and render them a trap for the unwary. Parrish v. Atchison,
Topeka and Santa Fe Railway Co., 152 F.Supp. 158, 166 (S.D.Cal. 1957). We
perceive no reason why a different rule should apply when alternative,
inconsistent theories are advanced in separate actions, based on the same
transaction, which the litigant tries unsuccessfully to join.

Auto Fair v. Spiegelman, 92 Nev. 656, 658, 557 P.2d 273, 275 (1976) (emphasis added).

STEPPAN's argument that ILIESCU should be penalized for doing something that is
specifically allowed by the Nevada rules and was advised to do so by HALE LANE is without

merit.

IIl.  CONCLUSION

STEPPAN did not attempt to comply with two major statutory requirements to perfect
his lien, specifically the service of a notice of right to lien and service of a 15-day notice of
intent to lien. His failure should not be condoned, especially where he has failed to produce
any proof that ILIESCU had actual notice of the work he was performing. STEPPAN's
remaining contentions are without merit and therefore ILIESCU respectfully requests that this
Court grant summary judgment in favor of ILIESCU and deny STEPPAN's Cross-motion for

summary judgment.
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The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

DATED thism day of March, 2009.

PREZANT & MOLLATH

By

Stephen C. Mollath, Esq.
Attorney for ILIESCU
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to NRCP Rule 5(b), | certify that | am an employee of PREZANT & MOLLATH

and that on this %ay of March, 2009, | served the foregoing document(s) on the party(s)

set forth below by:

X

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope placed for collection
and mailing in the United States Mail, at Reno, Nevada, postage prepaid,

following ordinary business practices.
Personal delivery.

Facsimile (FAX).

Federal Express or other overnight delivery.

Reno/Carson Messenger Service.

addressed as follows:

Gayle Kern, Esq.
5421 Kietzke Lane, Suite 200
Reno, NV 89511

Judy Otto, Esq.
1610 Montclair Ave., Suite B
Reno, NV 89509

David R. Grundy, Esq.

LEMONS GRUNDY & EISENBERG
6005 Plumas Street, Suite 300
Reno, NV 89519

Steve Harris, Esq.

BELDING HARRIS & PETRONI
417 W. Plumb Lane

Reno, NV 89509

Oypon M rusorn
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JOHN ILIESCU, JR., SONNTA
SANTEE ILIESCU, AND JOHN
ILIESCU JR., AND SONNIA
ILIESCU AS TRUSTEES OF THE
JOHN TLIESCU, JR., AND SONNIA
ILIESCU 1992 FAMILY TRUST,

Plaintiffs,

V3.
MARK B. STEPPAN,

Defendant.

SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

-o0o0-

Case No. CV07-00341
{Consolidated with Case No.
Ccv07-01021)

Dept. No. b

DEPOSITION OF MARK STEPPAN

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2008

RENO, NEVADA

SUNSHINE REPORTING SERVICES
151 COUNTRY ESTATES CIRCLE RENO NEVADA 88511
REPORTED BY: SUSAN CULP CCR #343

CERTIFIED COPY
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Page 4

BE IT REMEMBERED thal on Monday September 29, 2008, at
the hour of 1:58 p.m. of said day, at the offices of Gayle
Kern, Ltd., 5421 Kietzke Lane, Suite 200, Reno, Nevada, before
me, SUSAN CULP, a notary public, persanally appeared MARK B.
STEPPAN, who was by me first duly sworn, and was examined as a
witness in said cause.
-00o-

MARK B. STEPPAN,
called as a witness, having been duly sworn,
testified as follows:

EXAMINATION

BY MR, MOLLATH:

Q Would you please state your name for the record.

A Mark Bantam Steppan.

Q Whal is your cuirent business, profession, or
accupation?

A I'man architect

Q How long have you been an architect?

A I've worked in the profession since | graduated
school, and | was licensad, | beltove, in 1987.

Q  On or about September of 2005, who were you employed
by?

A Figher Friedman and Associates.

Page5 |

Okay. And what is Fisher Friedman and Associates?
#'s an architectural firm.
And where are they located?
Emeryville, California.
And how many architects are in Fisher Friedman?
Currently or at that time?
Atthat time.
And you're referring to two thousand what?
September of 2005,
Okay. Around six or seven licensed architects.
How many were licersed in September 2005 in the state
evada?

One.

Arct who was that?

Me.

Okay. Whao is Mr. Nathan Cgle?

He is the vice-president of Fisher Friedman
Associates.

0 Andis he licensed in Nevada?

A No.

Q On September — In Seplember of 2005, had you had an

cocasion, on behalf of yourselt or Fisher Friedman or Mr. Ogle,

Z O P 0P 0P o P 0D

=]

>0 F o P

1¢ make contact with a company caled Consolidated Pacific
Development?

A Agenttemnan from Consolidated came into our office and

SUNSHINE REPORTING SERVICES
775-323-3411
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met with us, and that was Sam Caniglia.

Q and what was the date of that?

A 1don't remember a specific date. It was in the
September 05 timeframe,

Q  Septernber '05. Now, tet me backup for a litte
housekeeping matter. '

Do you have a file on the transaction that's the
subject matter of this igation? Separate and apart from
your fitigation file, but a file that Fisher Friedman or
yourse maintains conceming this particular project and job.

A We have many folders of documents, whether they are a
contract or coples of drawings at the office. That's standard
practice.

Q Okay. Mow, was this — was this file or a group of
documents created sometime afier Sam Caniglia conlacted your
firm in September of 057 .

A There would have been nothing prior to his
communicating with us.

Q Al rght. So the start of your document record
conceming his Reno project would have stared sometime in
September of '057

A ¥ comect of that being the month, that's right.

Q  Okay. Now. would that - yWould | be comect in
assuming that that file would coniain all the corespondence

conceming the project between you and the deveioper, that

being anaolida!ed Padific?
A | cannat directty apeak Lo ali of the documents that
would be [ the office. | could not tell you if all

peple other than mysaff and Sam would
be there. | would asaume so.

Q Okay. So this fae that starls in September of '05
wauld comain, | assume, any comespondence between your firm
and anybody who you were working with on the project?

A | balieve so,

Q Oway. 1 would contain any comespondence with — or
submitials 10 any governmental agencdies?

A | belleva sa.

O Would it contain the contractual documents between
your firm and the developer, whoever contracted with you?

A fen

Q Al ight. Would it cemtain any contracts with
third-party consultants that you hired, such as audiofvisual
peapie, engineers, electncal engineeds? In other words,
subcateqories in the building pmfeSsiDn?

A They would be there il we had hired somebody.

Q OCkay. Right.

MR. MOLLATH: Counsel, do you have any problem with

arranging for the Bates slarmping of the entire ile of
Fisher Friedman and providing that 1o me?

ME. KERN: I} take a ook at it first. 1 have no
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ME_ MOLLATH: Okay. 1'd like to have that file, in
its entirely, Bates stamped.

MS, KERN: Well, Il take a look at it and see if
there's amything that | need o idemity under privilege lam.
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q Okay. Now, in September of '05, when you had -- your
firm had the meeling with Sam Caniglia, who was present at that
meeting?

A I remember cormectly, i would be Sam, and Tony
lamési, reprasanting Consclidated, and from Fisher Friedman, et
cetora, would have baen Rodney Friedman, Nathan Ogle, myself,
and | don't remember if David Tritt was there or noL

Q And what was discussed a that initial meeting in
September of '05 with Sam Cariglia ard Tony Inozzi?

A lamesl
lamesi, okay.

La-m-a-s-, | think.
What was discussed al that meeting?
The concept of doing a fantastic project in Reno.

Q Did they tell you the stalus of the ownership of the
ghound upon which that project was proposed to be developed?

A | cannot tell you that they menfioned at the time of
that first meating that it was in the process of being
purchased, that that’s wha thay wire working on, or whather

>0 » O

that came in a later conversation.

Q Did you have an understanding at the first meeting
that they did or did not own the property that was going to be
the: subject of this development?

A | do not remember at this ime.

Q  Okay. Atany peint in time subsequent fo the
September 5th - or the Seplember of *05 meeting, did you or
your-firn make a determination whether that property was owned
or nol owned by Consclidated Pacific Development?

A Yes. There was some point thereafter where we knew
that it was not owned at that time or currently by the people
that we were contracied in with,

Q How long after September Sth did yaur fitrm or yourself
make a determination that they did or did not own the property?

A )can'tanswer that, because &3 | just sakd
previously, | can’t remember if that was discussed at the
September meeting or not. 5o had it been discussed in
Septembar, that's when it would have been. Had I been after
that, it could have been later in September or in October, when
we were signing the original letters of starting to design the
project

Q Okay. Butal some point in time after the Seplemnber
inial engagement meeting, i was made aware 10 yau that the
property was not owned by Sam Canigiia’s group, il was owmed by
somebody else.

Page 9 |

Page 8
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1 A Al some polnt in that general imeframa.
2 Q Okay. Did Sam Caniglia or his group make available to
3 you the lransacticnal documents by which they were going ta
4 acquire the properly from the awner?
5 A 1 donot remomber seting anything.
B At any poir in time prior to the execulion of tha
7 contracl, which was, | believe, October of 2005, the
2] archileciural contracy, did Sam Canighia or his group indicate
9 to you whe in fact was the owner of the property?
10 A - Atthis moment ) don't remember any particular
11 time of when that was discussed.
12 Q At some point in time did you find out who the owner
13 of the property was?
14 A Yes.
15 Q Okay. And whal point in ime, after the September
16 meeting, did you find out who the owner was?
17 A | could not tell you.
18 Q  Wha levet of detail did you know about the: owner of
19 the propenty?
20 A limew his name Is Dr. John liascyu, and that he was
21 local to Reno. But as to any more of that, | don't remember
22 what slsa might hava beon discussed fn my presence of not in my
23 presence.
24 Q Okay. How much after Seplember of '05, if you can
25 recall, did you find out thad Cir. Hiescu was the owner of the
Page 11
1 property?
2 A As | naid eanlior, | dont know when oxactly that was,
3 because that still goes back to the same concept of whether or
4 not the people we were working with ownud the property or not
5 Q Okay. Allright. Now, what relationship did you have
[} with Wood Radgers conceming this project?
7 A They were a consultant to Consolidated/BSC, provided
B sarvices for them, ) beliave, for civil and helping — and
9 maybe not for civil, but helping to get the entittement precess
10 donB.
11 Q  And when did you first come inlo information that Wood
12 Ruodgers was going ko be the consultant dealing with the
13 entitements in Reno, Nevada for this praject? In other words,
14 when did they first come up on your radar screen?
15 A ldon't really remember.
16 Q Okay. Now, did you have an occasion, at any time
17 prior 1o the execution of the contract in October of 2005, to
18 meet with any representatives of the City of Reno concerning
19 the project?
20 A Wel, ) don’t know that that contract waa executed in
1 October. | think that contract was executed in April of '06,
22  butwedid have a letter of agreement to start designing in
23 October.
24 I believe at that same time, or similer to that time,
25

wu came up to Reno to meet with representatives from the

=3
[

Page 12

planning department, walk around the she, drive around Reno,
prescnt ideas to the planning department, pet thelr take on
things.

That was a combination of Fisher Friodman and Sam and
Tony, and | don't remember Whom oise was up here. Posaibly Cal
Bosma. And we met with a coupla of people at the planning
department.

Q  Was any representatves of Wood Rodgers present during
those meetings?

A I think David Sneligrove might have been, but | don't
remember for suro.

MR. MOLLATH: Let's have marked as next in order an
AlA document with Bates stamp documem numbers 108 through 132.

(Exhibit 1 was marked.)
BY MR. MOLLATH:

O Let me show you what has been marked as Exhibit No. 1,
which is an AlA documen dated, on the first page, the 315t of
Oclober 2005, but in the body of the document it has an
execution date of April 21, 2006.

Do you see {hat on the very last page?

A Yes. X

Q Okay. Soamf cormect in my assumplion from your
testimony a moment before, that the actual execution of the
Exhibit 1, AlA Standard Form Agreement between Owner and
Architect, was Aprit 21st of 2006, but it was effective October

315t of '057 |s that what 'm hearing?

A Un-huh, uh-huh. :

@ S0 on Golober 31stof 05 -

A I'm somry, yes.

Q@ Soas of October 3st of 'G5, this document was rat
yet in existence?

A As a completed document, that is comect

Q As acompleted document? ’ B

A That's correct

Q And it was nat in existence as an execuied documentL

A Correct

Q Now, was there anather document of letter of
understanding or engagement that you had with the develapers ot
this project prior to the Exhibit 1 being executed an
April 21st, 20067

A Yes.

0O Oray. Tell me aboul that document.

A There was probably at least one single-page letter
discussing the general synopsis of the proposed project and
thal we were going to start designing i, and i was signed by
me, and t belleve it was signed by Sam, and that woutd have r
been in October of '05. ‘

Q Okay. Sothat, or a variant of that decument,
governed the relationship of the parties -- hat being your
firm, yaur architectural firm, and the developers -- between
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’ Page 18
1 Development? | A | stated earlier for the mcord, | came up with
2 A | believe we had counsel. } do not know for sure if 2  ropresentatives of our firm and BSC to meet with the planning
3 the counsels talked to sach other directly, but 'm pretty sure 3 department, discuss the project, look at the site, drive
4  we had counsel. 4 around, check out the, you know, sutrounding areas.
5 Q Would it be fair, then, to state that the Exhibit 1, 5 Q Okay. Okay. And then I'm assuming that other members
] the standard Yorm agreement between owner and architect dated 6§  of your firm came up 1o Reno on varous oceasions during that -
7 as of 31st of October 2005, was the: culmination of a 7 period of ime to familiarize themselves or do work concerning
8  negotiation process between your architeciural firm and its 8  the prject?
9 lawyers and the lawyers in client BSC Financial Consalidated 9 A | don't know how many more visits were made in that
10 Pacific? {10 specific timetrame, but there certainly were probably soma
11 A Yes. M other visits mada In that time, as well as post-April ~
12 Q Okay. Now, during the period of time from 12 Q Okay.
13 Oclober 3ist, 2005, 1o April 2451, 2006, did you ever have any 13 A -y other people, yos.
14 contact with or discuss this project with Dr. or Mrs. lliescu? T Q Okay. So ebviously afier Apnil 21st of 2006 up and
15 A Personally? © 15 through the time of the approval of the project by the City
16 Q You persanally. 118 council, there were visits atso by you and your firm?
17 A No. L7 A There were visits, cofrect
18 ©  When s the firsi time you ever met Dr. or 1 0 Would your bifling records shew who was i town of
19 Mrs. liiescu, or either one of them? 19  what services they provided during the period of fime from
20 A | have seen Dr. lliescu at one of the case meetings 20 October of '05 through the lime of the approval by the City
21 downat court here in Reno, and that was the only time that | £ 21 coundl in November of 1067
22 have seen him. _ ‘72 A They may or may not show spacifica about someone being
23 Q Cxay. Do you knowwhether any member of your firm had 23 ot of town, They would probably jost bo showing a record that
24 any professional contadt, other than medical, with Dr. liescu, 24  the porson was working oh a project. The timecard may or may
25  anthis profect, refative fo - these lawyers, you've got to be 25 notsay they happened to be gone on a side visht that day or
Page 19 Page 21
1 specific - relafive ta this project between the period of 1 just go 1o the planning department. It's possible, but not
2 Qctober 31st, 2005, and April 21st, 20067 2  everybody recorde time sheets that way.
3 A really dont know i there was any. £ 3 Q Does your staff routinely record, in job files, a
4 Q Al right. Do you know of any? 4 diary or a calendar of the time and work spent on a parficular
5 A No. ‘5 day on a projeci? In other words, transpose your daily work
6 Q During this same period of time, October of '05 6 calendar into the job file, so if somebody wanted to determine
7 through April of ‘06, did you have any personal contact D7 what work was done on whalt date by what person by tooking at a
8  concerning this project with Mr. Dick Johnson on behalf of 8  calendar, could they do Lhat?
9  Dr. lliescu? S 9 A Gensrally not
10 A 1did not taik to him at that time, no. 10 Q Okay. Now, | notice on the first page of the
11 Q When is the first ime you talked to Mr. Johnson? ‘1 contract you're the only one that signed this contract and the
12 A It probably was gt the samne. 12 contract is not signed hy the firm; is that cormrect?
13 Q At the court hearing? ‘13 A Itis signed by me, thats correct.
14 A Yeah, yeah. 14 Q Butit's not signed by or an behalf of Fisher Friedman
15 Q Okay, In regards to this project, how many trips did 15  and Assaociates or Nathan Ogle?
16  you make to Reno, concerning this project, between 16 A Comect
F 17 Qctober 31st, 2005, and April 21st, 20067 17 Q Is that a function of the reguirements of the Nevada
18 A Are you questioning how many trips wera made by 18 State Architecturat Board that requires a contractio be with
19 representatives of the firm or me myself personally? 18 an architect that is licepsed in the state?
20 @ I'mgoing to ask first as 1o you and then I'll ask 20 A That's comect
21 about the firm. 21 Q  So the purpose for having you on this contract is the
22 A | was — it was either one or two. 22  requiremenis of the state architectural board -
23 Q  And tell me about, the best of your recollection ik A Comect
|| 24 generally, wha did you do on those one or two trips 1o Reno 24 Q - for your licensing?
;ufs during that period of ime? 25 A Comect
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Page 34
and design work than just the entitlernent process and :
submissions through Wood Rodgers to get the special use permits
and the various approvals, correct?

A Theta's a ot move to SD than design and entidement.

Q Correct. What 'm {rying to determine is, what
portion of the SD is related to or represents the entitlernent
process?

A 1don't think | could break the percentage out.

Q Why couldn't you break the percenage out?

A Because 30 much of it Is looped togather when you're
doing work for entitiements at the same time you're developing
the dosign. How do | make the distinction between part of
thess hours was developing the entilement drawing at the same
time {'m also developing the design? | don't know how to maks
the distinction.

Q Fair enough. Let's assume the emtitlernents were
oblained. Obvigusly additional work has to be done on the
schemalic design atier the entifernent

A Net necessarily.

Q  How about in this case?

A No. We got very complate schematic design package
that the entitlomnents were gramted on and we were ready to move
to the next phase.

Q  Now, at what poinl in time did you stop providing
servicesin the schematic design phase of this project?

Page 35
A 1dan't belleve we stopped in the schematic design :
phasa of the process. Wa stopped after submitting the involces
for a hundred percent achematic design, after recelving
entitlements, and wa've been waiting to get the payment in
order to be able to move into design development.

Q Okay. Seare you teling me, then, that af the point
in tirne that the entilements were obtained your Airm had
completed the SD, or schematic design process?

A That's what | beliave.

Q OCkay.

A Gail will correct me if she knows something to the
contrary from reading these documents.

Q  Would your internal documents allow us to determine
whether or not all schematic design work, as conternplated, was
completed as of the date the enfilement was grarited?

A ) don’t know that there's a direct — that you would
find a direct rulationship to November 15th, or whatever the
exact date Is, but the — the minute that an invoice in sent
off for a hundred percent schematics —

G  Uh-huh.

A - and that the billings are all adjusted, or figured
out, based on that, that kells me we decided that all tha work
was performed.

Q  And wha would that —~ who was that billing sent to?

A I'd have to look on the invoice. | don't remembar who
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spacifically was ligied on the invoice. it might have gone to
Cal Bosma at deCal io try to get pald at that dme. | might
have gone through Sam. | don't really remember. | don't send
aut the involces.
MR, MOLLATH: Let's have marked as next in order
No. 2, three pages called Applicant Affidavit 142, 143 and 144,
(Exhibit 2 was marked.)

BY MR, MOLLATH:

Q Let me show you what has been marked as Exhibit 2.

Have you ever seen the Applicant Afdavils, those

three pages that 've showed you in Exhibit 2, before \oday?

A Yes, I've seen them.

Q Did you 5ee those affidavits on or before February of
20067

A | really don't remember H | saw thesn in looking
through the application package at that time or later than
that.

Q Okay.

A  That's two years ago.

Q Ckay. Butyou don't have any recoliection of
seeing — do you have any recollection of seeing these prior to
the submissicn of the application for any entilernents for the
project?

A | don't remember not seeing it at that time, efther.

Q Okay.

10 (Pages 34 to 37)
A ———

Page 36

A So, no, | couidn't 3ay spectficalty.

G Okay. Fait enough.

Did you or any member of your firm, if you know, have
any specific cortact with Dr. lliescu conceming the execution
of the second and third pages of Extibil 2, that being Bates
stamped Page 143 and 1447

A_ I'm not aware of any direct contact between anyone at
the office and Dr. Niestu — '

Q Okay,

A — over this. |imagine the comact would have been
to Wood Rodgers, and that we would have seen the package
multiple times that it was being produced.,

Q Was the Wood Radgers package: given to you in draft
form before it was submitted?

A | believe 30, yes.

So you had occasion to review —

Yes.

-- thal prior to its submission?

Oh, yes.

All right. So you had occasion, then, to be able (o
see Exhibit 2, the Applicant AMfidavits for the project, prior

O » O » QO

ta the submission for the entitlements for the project?

A | assume so.

Q Allright. And it's your understanding that as pan
of 2 - this application, that these Applicant Affidavits had

Page 37 |
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Page 42
1 A Yeah. | don't remember any conversations about it. 1 that idea ever pop into your head?
2 Q Okay. The other question | have is: Fyou look at 2 A | could not tell you if it popped Into anybody olse’s
3 the drawings that are attached to -- Well, let's ga to - Let 3 head
4 me geta little more specific on this. 4 Q  Would it be fair to say that tha cortract, with all
5 Lel's go to Page No. 173, and I'm assuming this page 5 thefinanciel details of what was going to be done, the
6 s a prgject data summary that is gleaned from your schematie 6  schemalic drawings, the fee schedule and everything else, was
7 design a5 to square footage and tabulation, things like that. 7 never provided to Or. and Mrs. fiescu in connection with this
8 A Yes, 8  project?
9 Q And what I'm trying to reconcile is the application 9 A 1can only answer i whal we may or may not have
10 date is February 7th ot 2006. And we all know that the P10 provided. And| can say we may of may not — Y'm nok swars wo
11 application was submitted, in fact, in two paris: One, | 11 provided It to Dr. llescu. | cannat speak to anybody else.
12 believe, February Tst or 2nd, and one February 7th. 12 Q Fair enough. Now, in regard to Exhibit 3, the
13 Why are the dates on the drawings dated June 1st? W 13 lentative map and special-use permit application, do you know
14 you go and look -- you have a date - 14 whelher that application was ever provided to Dr. and
15 A There's a whole variety of dates on here, 15 Mrs. lliescu at any time in the processing of this application?
16 Q@ They are all subsequent io February? i 16 A | don't-- | do not know specifically what was made
7 A Uh-huh, {17 available to them during the processing of the application or
18 Q Andif you go farther on to tha end of the document, {18 what was in Wood Rodgers' office when thesa things — when the
19 you have April 7th, 2008. And the question | have for you is: i 19 affidavits were signed. | understand that they certainly
20 How come there are dates on all the drawings that accompany an 20 were — thare was 3 product at that time, 5o | cannat sy what
21 application of February 7th that are a number of months later 121 was provided or not by others.
22 than February 7th? ‘22 Q Allngh Butlothe best of your knowledge,
23 A It's quite possible. 23 yourself or Fisher Friedrman Associates did nol provide to
24 Q If you have an explanation. {24 Dr liescu or Mrs. lliescu a copy of the tentative map and
25 A 1don't know for sure other than | have a feeling 25  spacial use applieation an their prapenty.
Page 43 Page 45
1 there was  there were additional submissions, | believe F A No. That - excuse me — that is cofrect, we have
2 there's gther ones after February Tth. 2 nob Fmnot aware that we provided it, nor would it have been
3 But many times you have piaceholders for the floor 3 normal process to do so unjess requested by our client. Qur
4 plans in an application and you can refill in with more 4 direct cllent conlractually was BSC/Consolidated.
5 up-to-date versions of the plans. 5 1 Did BSC/Cansalidated ever require you noj to provide
6 Q  Okay. &  Dr. and Mrs. lliescu with the contract for architectural
7 A It depends on the timing of everything. 5o many times 7 services or the application for tentative map and specialuse
8  you—and many application processes you in-fill and replace 8 permit?
9 outdated sheets. That would be one explanation, in any case. 9 A I'm not aware they asked or didn't ask.
10 MS. KERN: Counsed, can you lell me where you saw 110 Q Okay. Now, inthe -- lef's lurn -- lel's see, where
ER| April 20087 11 are we? Okay. .
12 MR. MOLLATH: Yes. No. April 2006. 12 MR. MOLLATH: Let's have marked as next in order the
13 MS. KERN. Thank you. - 13 Commurity Development Department memorandurn and related
14 MR. MOLLATH: Did | say -B? 14 documents Bates stamped lhescu 2003 through 324. And some of
15 MS. KERN: Yes. 15 these are double-sided.
16 MR. MOLLATH: I'm losing my mind. It's old age 16 MS. KERN: | have to — 1 wrote down the wrong number.
17 creeping up. 17 1 wicie down 2003,
18 MS. KERN: Na. 19 MR. MOLLATH. | mean 203 through 324. There's too
19 MR. MOLLATH: 1 understand that. 19 many zeroes there.
20 BY MR, MOLLATH: P20 {Exhibit 4 was marked.)
21 Q Now, let me ask you this: At any time did you, as the S BY MR. MOLLATH:
22 architect of record, and I'm assuming the supervising architect 22 Q Could you 1ake a look at Exhibit 4 for a moment and
23 with Fisher Friedman, make an effor! to provide a copy of the 23 familiarize yourseif generally what it contains.
24 conlract, that being Exhibit 1, 1o Dr. and Mrs. escu to le © 24 A Ohkay,
25 ihem know what was happening relative to their property? Oid ' 25 Q  Okay 1would represent to you that that contains the
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Page 54

Q  Wauld you agree with me that at some point in :
time between October 31st of 2005, when you first had the
meeting with Sam Caniglia, and April 21st, 2008, the date that
the cantract -- the AlA cantract was executed, that
Fister Friedman, as a group or entity, knew that Dr. and
Mrs. lescu owned the property and it wasn't owned by
Consolidated or deCal or BSC?

A | -yes, I'm sure that we knew that our client did
not curertly own the land.

G And — and did you know whather Wood Rodgers knew that
Dr. liescu and Mrs. liescu owned the property and it wasn't
owned by BSC or Sam Caniglia or Consolidated Pacific?

A tdon't know that | can say how they thought about iL
| would have assumed ao, bat | .

Q Okay.

A -as | had no personal discussion with them about it,
| can't speak for them.

Q Okay. Sothere was nothing that would prohibit your
firmn frem natifying Dr. Hiescu that your firm was daing work
on this project that effected his property during the period of
time: of October of '05 through April of '087

A }suppose you could 8ay no, that there's nothing that
would have prohibited it. | don't know that i would have been
standard practice directly to do so, but 1 don't know that ~ |
haven't heard anything that would have prohibited it

Page 55 |

Q Okay. There was nothing that would have prevented or
been an obstacle for Fisher Friedman to determine, certainly by
April 21st, 2006, that the property was owned by Dr. and
Mrs. lliescu. Would that be a correct statement?

A Uh-huh, yes.

Q And certainly thete wauld be nothing that would
prohibit or impede or otherwise interfere with Fisher Friedman
determining what the address of Dr. and Mrs. lliescu was in
Reno, Nevada.

A | suppose not

Q Allright. And there would be nothing preventing or
inhibiting or otherwise interfering with Fisher Friedman from
notitying Br. and Mrs. liesco that you had entered into a
contract with BSC to provide design services on a piece of
property that they were selling to BSC or some other entity.
That could have been done very easily, couldn't it?

MS. KERN. I'm going to object to the extent that
you're implying, by your question, that it wasn't done. Our
records reflect that they did know about it and they knew
exactly who it was.

MR. MOLLATH: I'm talking about notifying him in
writing in some shape, manner, or form is something that could
have been done, certainly, by Agril 21st, 2006.

MS. KERN: And I'm going to interject the — | don't
think you're implying that, but | just want the recerd to be
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clear there clearly is a writing that evidences their name with
the name of the architects prior to that time. So | dont want
there to be an implication that your question is somehow
ignoring the decumentation that already exists.

MR. MOLLATH: | assume you're talking about the
fiy-aver and the boards with the name of the architacts and alil
that.

MS. KERN: That's some of it. But there's also some
other additional. There's some additional documentation that
Wond Rodgers has. There's additional documentation they
executed with the names of the architects on the application,
those type of things.

MR. MOLLATH: | understand that.

M3S. KERN: Okay.

BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q But separate and apar from documents that are in the
entitlement file, all right, there is nothing that would have
prevented Fisher Friedman from knowing, certainly by
April 21st, 2008, that Dr. and Mys. ltiescu owned the property,
and that your contracting developer did not own it, that you
could ascertain the address in Reno, Nevada, of Dr. and
Mrs. lliescu, and you could have sent them some type of written
document or notice that you were undertaking architectural
services in connection with their property. That is something
certainly you were capable of doing.

Page 57

A Yes lassume so.
MR. MOLLATH: Okay. Let's have marked as next in
order the Notice of Claim of Lien.
{Exhibit 5 was marked.)
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q Okay. I'l show you what has been marked Exhibit 5,
Notice of Claim of Lien. And I'm assuming that this notice was
authorized ko be filed and recorded. | should say recarded,
not filed, by your office to Gail Kemn; is that correct?

A Correct

0  And who authonized Gail Kem to file the Notice of
Claim of Lign from yous office? Vas il you or your accounting
deparymert?

A It was probably a combination of Rodney Friedman and
myself.

0 Okay. And this is a result of a refusal to pay
cerlain agreed-upen invoices by BSC Financial, care of
Consoldated Pacific, pursuand to the centract which s
Exhibit 1, right?

A Iwould change that "Refusing,” to me, implies lack
or conflict with what is owed. They weren't refusing to pay
through the fact of disagreement with fees owed, There was a
lack of payment or an inability to pay. That is different than
refusing.

0 Okay. The distinction is welFtaken.
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Page 66 Page 68 §
1 the two applications at or about the time ' 1 myself ar Mr. Ogle was providing architectural services." '
2 of the receipt of the owner's affidavil” C 2 MS. KERN: To his knbwledge. | mean, | don't want to
3 Do you see that? . 3 bind - | don't want fo limit whal other information is already
4 A lscethat © 4 oulthere as able lo be produced with respect to other paople
5 Q  Deyou have any independent knowledge that Dr. lliescu : 5  andthen you say, oh, look, he testified that there wasn't
g of Wrs. liescu, of anybody associated 23 an agent of 5] anyone.
7 Dr. liescy, saw architectural drawings on or about the time of 7 MR. MOLLATH: No. I'm just talking about this ;
8 the owner alfidavits being evecuted in January? Which is 8 gentieman sitting in this chair today, and what | want to know I
9 Exhibit 2, | think. g is: Does he have any information within his possession or :
10 A 1don't have knowiedge of what other people may or may 10  knowledae, as he sits here today, looking back, you know, going i
11 not have dene. ‘11 back through the archives in the little gray cells, that you ;
12 Q Okay. Do you have any information on anything related :12  know of somebody, anybody, that told Dr. lliescu and
13 towhether Dr. and Mrs. liescu and/or Dick Johnsan, leaving 113 Murs. lliescu or Dick Johnson, "Fisher Friedman Associates,
14 lawyers aside for a moment, had any infarmation canceming the 14 myseif, or Mr. Ogle, or another architect is doing
15 work that Fisher Friedman or yourself was doing on this project 115  architectural work on your property prior to the filing and
16 prior o the time of the filing of the lien? 16 recordation of the mechanic’s lien."
17 A 5o if you're talkdng about the availability to see 17 MS. KERN: Other than what you've already been
18  documents at Wood Rodgers’ office, and the abllity to see the :18  provided. .
19 presemations, or to be al any of the public meetings, or any 19 MR. MOLLATH: Cther than, you know, what he menfioned
20 of the ather imes when the project was exhibited, discussed, 120 aboul public documents and a Power Pgint presentation at public
21 Power Points shown, ot cetera, fiy-throughs, et cetera, | can'i 21 hearings and things Yike that. | want o know whether he knows
22 mpeak o whether or nol they were there or not thare as | 122 of any living, breathing person, that he knows of, that told
23 wasn't al those occurrences. Thera were cerdainly lots of 123 Dr. or Mrs. Wiescu, or any one of their agents, that your finm
24 opporiunitfes 1o see the project and 1o 3ee the names of my 124 was doing architectural work on their project. | don't know
25  name and Fisher Friedman, 25 howclear | can be. A living, breathing person. &
Page 67 : Pagesgii
1 Q So | want to be clear on this because this is an 1 MS. KERN: Other than Mr. Sneligrove, who's given an :
2  important point: As | understand the position that you've 2 affidavit in this case.
3 takenin this litigation, relative to the mechanic’s lien and ;3 MR. MOLLATH: Other than Mr. Sneligrove. :
4 relative to Dr. and Mrs. lliescus' knowledge of the existence |, 4 THE WITNESS: | don't know that | personally know more F
5  of the work that yourself and/or Fisher Friedman were doing 5 about anybody else having specifically told Or, liescu who was
6  architecturally on this project that is related to their : B  the architect, other than David. As - | dont knaw if anyone
7 ability, that being Dr. and Mrs. Hiescus' and their agents’ 7 elsedid or didn't.
B ability, to be able to observe by looking at public documents 8 MR. MOLLATH: Okay.
9 and altending public hearings, that your firm was the firm that B4 DOCTOR ILIESCU: tay faith in human nature.
10 was providing architecturat work to the project. | mean, is 10 MR. MOLLATH: The only --
11 that kind of in a nutshell? a3 THE WITNESS: But, see, you're being very specific,
12 MS. KERN: He can answer -- I'm totally lost by your 12 and you're being specific for 2 reason, and your specificity is
13 question, so | don't know if he is, but — 13 about my knowledge of someane specifically telling him, caming
14 MR. MOLLATH: I'm trying to be really careful here. {14  outand saying, "Hey, these are the architects warking on your
16 THE WITNESS: No. 15  project” or "your site,” sarry. r
16 BY MR MOLLATH: 16 BY MR MOLLATH: :
17 Q You don't have today, as you sit here, any specific P17 Q Yeah. Somebody that you personally know because you
18 knowledge that somebody told Dr. and Mrs. lliescu that 118  were physically there when that person told D, lliescu, or
18 Fisher Friedman or yourself or any other architect was 19 somebody in the course of business in the administration of
20 providing architectural services to this project prior to the 120 this particular job has told you, "l told Dr. liescu about
21 filing of the mechanic's lien. Told. .21 f{his, where they can find these architects,” you know of no
22 In other words, information -- you don't have any .22 otherliving, breathing person who may have done that except
23 information, that you know of as you're sitting here today, 23 for Mr. Sneligrove.
124  that you can teh me that, "Yes, | think Mr. Jones told Dr. and . 24 A Y not aware of any. That's not come to Hight
125 direcly to me, okay? Bitt again, | don't know — | don't hear
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everything. There may be somebody, Bo...

Q@ |want to know what you know today.

What I'm hearing is the only living, breathing person
that you know of that has said in some shape, manner or form
that Dr. liescu personally knew who the architects was or
wers, were Mr. Snefigrove. That's all you know in ihat
regard.

MS. KERN: Without limitation.

MR. MOLLATH: 1just want b know. |s thal a comect
staternent?

THE WITNESS: As far as | know.

BY MR, MOLLATH:

Q  Okay. And would Mr. Ogle know any more than you or
may know mare than you?

A He may or e may not | can't speak for that He
hasn't told me.

Q Okay.

A | don't know that he's met Dr. Dlescu pereonally. He
may have seen him at the meeting. | can't say that they spoke,
and | don't know if he has heard of any other record,

¢ Do you know whether any member of your organizations,
that architectural organization down in
Emeryvile Caltomia —

A Yes. '

Q - has ever spoken, at any time prier to this

litigation, has ever spoken with Dr. ar Mrs. lliescu at any
fime conceming the architecthurad work thal was done on this
property?

A Not that | remember.

Q Okay. And you know of no written letter, notice,
document or otherwise, that was sent by Fisher Friedman of
yourself to Or. lescu, prior to the reconding of the notice
of lien, that Fisher Friedman or yourself was going to lien
their property for nonpaymem by the developer?

In ather words, you didn't send them any notice that
says, "Hey, we are working on your project. We are spending
maney, and if we don't get paid we are going o fen your
property.” That wasn't done, was 17

A Although, | would say we were working on BSC's project
on his property, I'm not aware of a letter.

MR, MOLLATH: Okay. Let's continue this deposition to
a point where | gel all the documents. Dot needto do a
formal document production for all these documents?

MS. KERN: I's my understanding you want whatever
fle we have —~ you don't want all the drawings —

MR, MOLILATH: | don't care aboul architectural
drawings o1 swift from CAD or disks or anything eise. ¥'m
talking about the hard fransmittal letters, contracts, e-maits,
you know, that kind of stuff. | den't care about the drawings.

M5, KERN: And the amended claim of fien.

Page 70 :‘
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litigation, to just give it to me —

Page 72

MR_ MOLLATH: And the amended ciaim of en. The
application, the hard copy of the application for the
entilernents.

MS. KERN: You were provided a disk.

MR. MOLLATH: | was?

MS. KERN: Yes.

MR. MOLLATH: And what's on that disk?

MS. KERN: It's the fly-by, that's been referred lo as
the fiy-by ard the Power Point.

MR. MQLLATH: I've got ali that.

MS. KERN: Okay. Because we've produced all of that.
Okay.

MR. MOLLATH: Yeah. | know about that.

MS. KERN: Qkay.

MR. MOLLATH; What I'm talking about is those little,
you know, paper files that are sitting in file drawers that
have all the stuff in them.

MS. KERN: Okay.

MR, MOLLATH: Okay. That's what | need.

MS. KERN: Okay.

MR. MOLLATH: And if you want to, you can Bates stamp

MS. KERN: Yeah.
MR. MOLLATH: But | think it's probably wise, in this

Page 73
MS. KERN' It makes it a lot easier to Bates stamp

MR. MOLLATH: -- and just Bates stamp everything.

MS. KERN: Yeah, | will.

MR. MOLLATH: And | probably will want to take the
depaosition of Snellgrove.

MS. KERN: Okay.

MR. MOLLATH: And we probably —

MS. KERN: My October is a nightrmare.

MR. MOLLATH: I'm going to be going to Hawaii,
anyway.

MS. KERM: | mean, it really is a nightmare.

MR. MOLLATH: Don't worry, | won't set it in October.
we'll coordinate a date on that.

MS. KERN: I've got eight arbitrations.

MR. MOLLATH: That's all F've got.

DOCTOR ILESCU: | appreciate your honesty. |t makes
me feel better. Nothing to do with me, it's just-people, and |
feet somebady that's an architect has that kind of integrity.

THE WITNESS; You're welcome.

DQCTOR ILIESCUY: You can count on it from me.

MR. MOLLATH: That's alt Yve got for the time
being. | appreciate your time, and get you out of here an
hour early.

THE WITNESS: You're fine.
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MR. MOLLATH: Send the original to Ms. Kern.
MS. KERN: Thank you.
(Whereupon the deposition concluded at 3:54 p.m.)

MARK STEPPAN

STATE OF NEVADA
) ss.
GOUNTY OF WASHOE )

I, SUSAN CULP, a notary public in and for the County
of Washuoe, State of Nevada, do hereby cenrtify:

That on Monday the 29th day of September 2008, at the
hour of 1:58 p.m. of said day, at the offices of Gayle Kern,

Lid., 5421 Kietzke Lane, Suite 200, Reno, Nevada, personally
appeared MARK STEPPAN, who was duly sworn by me to testify the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, and

thereupon was depased in the matter entitled herein;

That said deposition was taken in verbatim stenotype
notes by me, a Cenlified Shorthand Reporter, and thereafter
transcribed into typewriting as herein appears;

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of pages 1
through 75, is a ful), rue, and comect ranscript of my
stenotype notes of said deposition ta the best of my knowledge,
skill, and ability.

DATED: At Reno Nevada this 7th day of October 2008,

SUSAN CULP CSR #343
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
-00o0-
MARK B. STEPPAN, Case No. CV@7-41821
Plaintiff, Dept. No. B6

Vs.

JOHN ILIESCU, JR., SONIA ILIESCU,
as Trustees of the JOHN ILIESCY,
JR., AND SONNIA TLIESCU 1992
FAMILY TRUST AGREEMENT, et al.,

Defendants.
/
JOHN TLIESCU, JR., and SONIA Consolidated with
ILTESCU, as Trustees of the JOHN ' . _
ILIESCU, JR. AND SONNIA ILIESCUY Case No. CV@7-84341

1992 FAMILY TRUST AGREEMENT, et al.,

Department. No. B6
Third-Party Plaintiffs, ‘ o

Vs.

CONSOLIDATED PACIFIC DEVELOPMENT,
INC., a Nevada corporation, et al.,

Third-Party Defendants.
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Tuesday, November 18, 20808
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31
A I wanted to point out to him what the

application itself was, show him as much as I reasonably
could so that he had a general nature of the application
and what was being requested on his property. |

Q Okay. And did Dr. Iliescu ask you any
questions or tell you anything?

A [ seem to recall a comment about the size of
the building. But beyond thét, nothing that I recall in
particular.

Q Did you tell Dr. Iliescu or discuss with
Dr. I1iescu how the architect fit {nto the app]icatiqn

process?

A We didn't have any specific conversations about
the architecf.

Q Now, on paragraph seven of the affidavit, it
says: Both the January 17, 2446 and February 7, 2087
Applications contained building elevations and/or
building floor plans containing the name of the projéct
architect, Mark Steppan,.and the architectura) design
consultant, Fisher Friedman. You see that?

A Uh-huh.

Q It says: It is my recollection that
Dr. Iliescu saw the architectural drawings as pnovided
in the two applications at or about the time of the

receipt of the Owner affidavits.
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A . That's correct.

32

Q Now, what -- tell me what you believe
Dr. Iliescu saw at this five-minute meeting that ybﬁ had
where he came in and signed the Owner's affidavit?

A With a Tentative Map or Special Use Permit
Application that is submitted to the city of Reno, in
addition to the reduced copies, there are full-size
cop{es of maps that are required to go in, and we had
those on the table. I believe some of those were folded
up. And I recall opening some up. Whether they were
engineering or whether they were architectura], I don't
recall in specific. But the maps were there and shown
and present.

Q Okay. But you have no idea whether Dr. Iliescu
specifically saw the name of the project architect or
the architectural design firm and focused on that?

A No, I couldn’'t answer that.

Q Okay. And you didn't tell him or engage in a
dialogue with him concerning on thjs particular page,
this is the architect, and this is his name, and things
like that?

A No, I did not.

a Okay. So essentially all you -- you are really
telling us is that there were architectural drawings on

the table at the time Dr. Iliescu came in to sigm his
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I, KIMBERLY J. WALDIE, a Certified Shorthand
Reporter licensed in the State of California and the
State of Nevada, do hereby certify that on Tuesday,
November 18, 20088, at the offices of Prezant & Mollath,
6560 SW McCarran Blvd., Ste. A, Reno, Nevada, personally
appeared DAVID SNELGROVE, who was duly sworn to testify
and deposed in the matter entitled herein; that said
witness was duly sworn by me; that, before the
proceedings’' completion, the reading and signing of the
deposition was requested by the deponent; that the
foregoing transcript, .consisting of pages 1 through 56,
is @ true and correct transcript of the stenographic
notes of testimony taken by me in the above-captioned
matter to the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.

I further certify that I am not an attorney or
counsel for any of the parties, nor a relative or
employee of any attorney or counsel connected with the
action, nor financially interested in the action.

Dated at Reno, Nevada, this 24th day of
November, 2088.
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SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
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JOHN ILIESCU, JR., SONNIA )
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12 (Pages 42 to 45)
N — R R
Page 42 Page 44
1 Company. i 1 supportive of the projec!.
2 Q  Who at the title company? 2 Wasn't that the purpase of the August 2005 meeting
3 A Marysnn Infantino. E| with the mayar?
4 Q And what was your conversation with Maryann Infantino? 4 A | think that's kind of what | just said. Politically
5 A What she knew about thesa liens and the pre-liens and 5  talked with them and made sure they were in agreement.
6  that Kind of stuff. Because her husband actually was a 8 Q  You say that it was a very —
7 liconsed comtractor and | thought she might know, and she was 7 A There was no votes. You couldn get into a lot of
8  privy to thie information. She's the one that actually got ~ 8 stuff into those meetings, nor could you have a lot of the
9 Lika | sald, ohe's the cne | got the notice from. How sha got 9 counciimen at a lot of the meetings because there's laws
10 it ks bayond me, first. | would have thought the [liescus 10 agalnst that.
11 would have got it first S Q Howwas the project presented by you or Mr. Caniglia?
12 Q  What did you understand, from your conversations with C12 A Oh, by Caniglia. 1didn't know the project to present -
13 Ms. Infantino, regarding the mechanic lien? 13 it
14 A That peopls need to notify you if they have — file an S 14 Q Butyou were there and you heard what Mr. Caniglia
15 intent to llen, and give you a name and address and 8o forth of S5 sad?
16 who itis before they are allowed to file a lien 8o that you 16 A Comect
17 have time to go in and file some kind of paper saying, “Ne, I'm 17 Q Okay. How did he describe it?
18 not responsible, that guy Is responsible.” 18 A They did a fly-over, which was an aerial program, like
19 Q Butyou all knew that work was geing to be done on the 19 a plane was coming through and going over the town and you
20 property, right? That wasn't a surprise, was it? © 20 could see a mock-up of a building as you came up to it, and
21 A Woll, what'a the work? | don't know what thay were © 21 they showed some e pictures showing different angles of the
22 doing. We wers novar privy to what they were doing .22 river, and whet would be seen from the different angles north,
23 specifically. l23 east, south and west.
24 UniZ! we got to the point of the conumission hearings. P24 Q And this was e August 2005 meeting? r
25 and the mesting ;.o 1o that, with the mayor and a couple of .25 A’ fwas oneof the meetings | attended. | don't
Page 43 : Page 45
1t the council members, to - | attonded one or two of those whom = 1 remember B it was the August 2005, e
2 teygavesfyowrand thettype of thing toshowwhicttn; iz Wa probably had four different meetings throughout the
3 wera doing. That's the first that we were given any indication . Tﬁﬂe;ghen they talked with City officials to get approval for
4 ofwhatitis. 4 thebulitia tg gat Bob Cashell to encourage the building
5 Q  Well, you met with the mayor and Mr. Caniglia on 5  department to wis igently with them so they could move
6  Augusi25th of 2005, didn't you? 6 faster. T
7 A That's what | just sald. Those were the first 7 Q You referenced some addé‘ﬁm:-.:‘“ﬁen we were discussing
B meetings where we had any idea of what was going on. 8 the July 28th, 2005, agreement. T
9 Q And who was present during that August meeting with 9 A Uh-huh. - :‘.‘“‘--_‘_‘
10 the mayor and Mr. Caniglia? Anyone else? +10 Q There is one that Fve got identified as 65 and 66 T
1" A Couple of guys that | don't know who they were. | 111 that's dated August 1, 2005, H says Addendum No. 1.
12 assume they were the stafl. Bob Cashell was there, a guy from 12 A Addendum No. 1 was August 1, 2005.
13 Wood Rodgers was there, myself, Sam. 13 Q  Okay. And did you prepare this?
14 Q  What was the substance of that conversation? 14 A 1-"m trying — | did prepare It "'m trying to
15 A Wwas more shake your hand, “Here's what Is going on. 15 think. July, August — Because there was some stuff | got
16 Wa are going to be developing a big project” 16 back.
17 And | asked Dick, because he asked me to call and sed 17 The reason i'm hesltating, there was some stuff where
18 up the meeting with Cashell, | asked Dick to get us down here 18 an attorney would review and send it back and | would stilt
19  just so we can answer any questions. it was pretty broad. ht : 19 write it, but it was at their request. But | wrote this, yes.
20  was, "Here, we aré going to do this big project and Reno is 20 Q Do you recall if this Addendum No. 1 was done at the
21 going to be excited about it” H was a courtesy meeting with i3 request of any counsel, any attorney?
22 the mayor to let him know what it was. 22 A |think it was done at the request of Otto, but m
23 Q  well. in the letter dated July 14, 2005, there was a : 23 nota hundred percent sure of that answer.
24 specific reference by Mr. Canigha that he wanted some period .24 Q Was it Addendum --
25 of time 1o contact the City and make certain they are 25 A Because it was a more defined version of what's in the
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19 (Pages 70 to 73)
Page 70 |
1 A hwas. {1 clrcumstances, be able to get an axtension.
2 Q  Excuse me. And it was - 2 1f you got an extension, you still foll within the
3 A R was an updated of revised — I cut you off. I'm 3 same entitlements that we currsntly have: if you cant, then
4  somy. 4 youlose them. So that's a question mark at this point.
5 Q lwant o make sure you fnish. Wés there anything L Q What is your understanding of what the enfitlernents
6  else? 6  are?
7 A No. 7 A Entitlements are the ability to bufld s certaln-size
8 O And il was an appraisal that was commenced or 8  project on that property, basicalty confining the exieror of
@  commissioned by the buyers, correct? 9 the builings to go on the property, and then the imarior
10 A Comect £ 10 would be the final map, which would be the rest of the detail
11 Q  Did you, on behalt of the lliescus, ever obtain an P11 that goes with It
12 appraisal? 12 {  's my understanding from your testimony thal you
13 A No. 13 knew thal there were architects involved, bat thal you do not
14 Q How did you determine the purchase price? 14 recall when you first met or heard the name Mark Steppan and/or
15 A |guess by the offer and acceptanca. He offersd a {15 Fisher Friedman; is fhal comee!?
| 16 price and Doc sccepted the price. 46 A You said that | knaw architacts. | dont know when
17 Q You didn't evaiuate or identify what you wanted before 17 they wers anybody, any architects were Involved and stuff.
|18 getting that offer? 18 Buti know from a practical standpoint tat they would
19 A Well, you're talking two different things. | think 19 need architects involved. Whan they got involved whataver,
20 this appraisal was based on probably it moving forward. | 20 yeah, | don't know.
21 don't know. I'd have to look ot it again. But it was probably 21 And as far as the knowing who Mark Steppan was and
22 based on the fact that there would be entitlements and moving |22 thera was anather name of a guy out af New Yark, thase names, |
23 forward, whereas our sale was based on the land being sold 23 mean, | heard at some point later in the process but around the
24 imespective of any entitlements. {24 time of the commiaston hearing-type thing.
.§ 25 G Soyou agree with the enfilements #t's worth more E 25 Q  Tid you ever atiend amy of the neighborhood meetings?
Page 71 : Page 73
1 than what the land was before the entitiements were obtained? Z 1 A No,
2 A The entitemants would have increased the value of the 2 Q Were you aware they were taking place?
3 proparty, yes, as long as it was accomplished. The 3 A The day before on the one, and 1 was out of town,
4~ artitoments go away, the land drops in value again, 4 so...
5 Q -ls it your understanding that without the plans as 5 Q Ontheone.
[ have been approved, the number of units that can he constructed g A Wil there was one that | knew. You said did | know
7 on the Counl Street properiies is less because of a zoning 7 of any of them before they were taking place, and the answer is
B change? a yes, | know of ona, but it was like the day before that | found
] A Say that again. 9 put about it and | was nat going to ba an available.
10 Q Are you aware that if the entitements that have 10 Q Ta your recollection, did your clients attend any of
T already béen granted — 11 those neighborhood meetings?
12 A Uh-huh. s 12 A Not that i know of.
13 Q - are notused — 13 Q You never discussed them with them?
14 A Ohay. L 14 A No.
15 Q - that the project that can be built wil be Rt Q  Andihat was — Did you ever discuss the meetings with
16 significantly smaller because there's been a zoning change? 16 your clients?
17 That they would not be able to take advanltage of that increased 17 A No.
18 un — units? 18 0 Did your clienis go Yo any of the meetings with any
19 A Well, I'm aware that there's been a change in the 19 City personnel with respect to the project?
20  zoning. The rest of your staterment may or may not be true, 20 A | don't believe so.
21 And | say that strictly as hearsay through Sam 21 0 Do you have an understanding that your clients were
22 Caniglia and eo forth, which is saying thal you could possibly i 22 at, ai least ane af the presentalions o either the planning
23 get an extension. Thal even though the exiension is running 23 commission of the Ciy ecuncil?
24 ot from what I'm being told it's November 14th, thal you .24 A  They were at the planning commission meeting, yes.
25 could possibly, because of the bankrupity and other mitigating 25 Q Vvere you present?

SUNSHINE REPORTING SERVICES

775-323~-3411

JA0843



Richard Johnson 9/29/2008
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Page 78°
sald if there was any chance to have an outside patio garden ;
for Sonnia, that's — he would really like to have that. And
based on that, I'm assuming it's the Tth floor. That's where Q - inwhich you said that a clarification st some

it cut back on the drawing that he ehowed me. it was just an point was made by the Hale Lane, and 1 just want to make sure

1 testimony —
2
3
4
eight-and-a-half by eleven drawing, but... 5 thatfm in the right imeframe.
C 6
7
8
9

A Yeah.

Q I'm going to show you what was marked as 338, 338, and
340, which is a letter from the Hale Lane law firn.  This was
in your files, as | understand t?

A A problem created a clarification of what started way
back when.
Q Okay. You said that you had a lot of communications

@ ~N & th B oW NS

9 A Hit's in what was copled, t was in my files. Okay. : with Mr. Caniglia over the last several years, correct?
10 Q@ Is that the letter that you referted o earier in P10 A Uh-huh. Uhhuh.

1" your testimony in which if there was a conflict that the 11 Q Isthata"Yes"?

12 Hiescus would be the, quate, primary client, samething to that 12 & A That's a yes.

13 effect? 13 Q And is it yaur testimony that even when he was warking

14 A That would be one of the things It would have brought . 14 lowards getling the project put together you never had a

15  out And the indemnity, | think, also stated that, if ! 15 conversalion with him with respect to the architects that were
16  remember comectly. 16 designing the penthouse hat your clienl wanted as part of the
17 Q Prior fo these two documents, then, in about the time 17 purchase price?

18  period of December of '06, was there any earfier communication - ) A 1did not.

19  or comespondence from Hate Lane with respect to their dual 119 Q s it because the name of the architects didn't matler
20 representation of the buyers and sellers? 20

: to you, just the fact that they were going 1o be putting
M A  Dont know. : 1l

together a design that would have a penthouse that would be
22 Q Do you have any recollection of any other {22 pan of the purchase price?

23 communication, other than what we've been looking at that's 23 A Well, | didn't know if they were in-house or out of
24 dated December of '067 house people that were doing it, and the reallty is it reaily
¥ 25 A OfHale Lane — And say it again. wasn't any of my business. My job was selling their property

Page 81}
1 Q OfHalke Lane identitying that the: liiescus would be 1 to this person and watching out for the best interest of my
2 their primary & — | don't know what other word that you used. 2 clent. And that's what | was trylng to do.
3 The client that they would give preferential treatment to as 3 Beyond that, | was more worried about melines. Are
4 opposed to the buyers of the property? 4 you on track to close within the parameters of the contract
5 A To me, it's - They hired Hale Lane way back in 5§  that we have? Are you going to be prepared? Are you going
6  September of '05. §  through with t7
7 Q "They" being the lliescus? 7 QG  Willyou look back at Addendum No. 1, please. If's —
8 A Yes. a A Whats — .
9 Q But at that lime did — do you have any documeniation 9 Q It's lliescu 67 on the Bates stamp. Jf
10 or are you aware of any documentation fram the Hate Lane faw ;10 A Oh,I'msomy. Uh-huh. .
11 firm with respect to a potential confiict of interes? ‘1 What page was that? I'm sory. ‘
12 A HNotthat!recall 12 Q 87 in the kower right-hand comer.
13 Q  Okay. Whai you recall is the indemnity and this 13 A Okay. Addendum 1. Uh-huh. Rt gays, "See Addendum
14 letler in the late '06 timeframe? 14 2." That's what | said. Addendum 1 and Addendum 3 followed :
15 A Right 115 each other Immediately. I
16 Q  Ckay. T Q want you to look at what appears to be additional
17 A The thing that's confusing me when you're asking Is if 17 terms and conditions, 39{H). Do you see that on the page?
18 an attomey takes on 2 client they are responsible to that " 18 A Yeah. Hard for me to read, but  can see it
1% client. Sc when they started back in September, did | say it 19 Q Me, too. But it says and refers to the fact that the
20 was, of '05, they were their primary cliem for this starting " 20 penthouse that is par of this purchase price that the lliescus
21 then. 21 wanted, that they would have the ability to review lloor plans
22 Q  Well, | don't disagree with you. _ 22 that had besn drawn by the archited, carrect?
23 A Okay. So that's why I'm confused when you were saying l 23 A That — That would be drawn by the architect, yes.
29 that. L 24 Uh-huh,
25 Q  'm referring -- I'm trying to follow up on your - 25 Q And that if they then decided that they didm't like
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Richard Johnson

9/29/2008
23 (Pages 86 to 89)

Page 86 .
Can you look at your tab 14 and tell me what the Bates :
stamp is.

MR. MOLLATH: Bales stamp number is 133,

December 141h, ‘05, Hale Lane.
MS. KERN: Thank you.
BY M5 KERN:

Q Do you recall having any conversation with the
lliescus with respect to this December 2005 letter regarding a
potential conflict of interest or a waiver of confiict, how
it's described in your timeling?

A ¥ihich is the fetter that you're referring io?

Q ¥Fmsorry. It's on your imeiing 12/14/2005, waiver
of conflict letter, and then I'm assuming this is your notes,
"to adt as attorneys for BSC, liescu. DeCal will adt jointly,
however, if conflict with lliescu, then Hale Lane will
represent liescu.”

My question is: Do you have recollection of
discussing this letter with the liescus at or about the date
of that letter Decernber of 20057

A They were Involved with it, weren't they, at the
meeting? Where did you Just read that?

I cant really tell you whether Doc and Sonnia were at
that meeting. They wers at one and they weren't at one, is the
truth of the matter, and | can't remember which is which.

Q My question is -

Page 87 .
A Yeah, :

Q - did you have any conversalion or communicatian with
the lliescus about the waiver of conflict letler that was
prepared by Hale Lane?

A Iwould have.

Q Do you recall the substance of thal conversation?

A No. | just kmow 1 would have talked to them.

Q  Oo you know generally what it would have been about?

A It would have been about we need this, and |
would have told them someplace here, | remember, having
where the call from Doug Flowers referencing the signatures
being done, That was on 12/6. So there was that kind of
canvarsation.

Q Did you have any conversalion with the lliescus in
which you said, "Hey, there's going o be a ot of work dong on
this property and you are — you know, you're subject to
mechanic liens. You warl 1o make sure you talk o Hale Lane
aboul protecting yourself." Did you ever have that
comversation?

A No. Not the way you said it

What | had was the conversation that we need legal
advice throughout this because of the size of the project, and
that was back when they hired Hala Lana and retained them to do
jurst that.

Q Okay. Can]l see your timeline?

o ~ @ oW AW N

o

@ ~ o o b oW oM

19
12
13
s
515
16
Y
L 18
19
S 20

P23
24
L8

file. 1 didn't know that's what | had. So I'm going to show

Page 88

A Tmsorry. Sure.

0 That's okay. Whatis LoopNet?

A LoopNetis a — what shouid | say - s like a
listing secvica for cormmercial properties. And there was
another group in town that had it on LoopNet, the project, and
they didn't have authority to, and | called them to ask them to
cease and desist doing it

Q Okay. Inyour notes it says, "Was offered by DeCal on
LoopMet project for sale, 25 mifion.”

A Yeah. That's what the terma were on what they were
saying. They were doing it through Re/Max Reatty, who they
were tled in with. But again, like | say, they didn't have
acknowtedgment or consent of Doc to do that, which you nesd
both in order to put a listing out there.

Q You have the Sneligrove affidavit in your docurments,
comect?

A |dontknow i | do or not. But f it's there, |
do.

MR. MOLLATH: 578 is the number.
MS. KERN: Thank you.
THE WITNESS: Vvhat documents are those?
MR. MOLLATH: Thisis —
BY MS. KERN: )
Q Well, it's what I've been informed today. | had your

Page 89

you 578, 579, and 580. So that was in your documeants.

A That's something tthink is one — something | was
piven by - I'm aseuming by Sam after the fact.

Q@  Why are you assuming that?

A Because there was no — If | had known that he aven
had a deposition, | would have been wondering what it was, as
to what it is.

Q  Who had a deposition?

A Well, that's some kind of a legal document for what he
said, lsn't 7

Q s an affidavit

A An affidavit, okay. S0 he wrote an affidavit on this
thing. ) don't know when | would have received that, but it
was — | don't know. | didn'i go there. | didn'igetit
Somebody gave it to me.

Q  wWhen did you prepare this timeline?

A On a couple of weeks ago. And then | updated it
probably two days ago just to see.

0  Ware you familiar with or are you aware of the
special-use permit application from January of 2006 that your
clients executed?

A Fm aware that there was a special-use permit that was
part of the entilement process, right.

Qa  Comect?

A b familiar with that there was an entidemett.
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Page 94 Page 96
1 A That's what he represented to me, uh-huh. - 1 STATE OF NEVADA )
2 Q When is the last time you had any communication with 2 ) ss.
3  Stevens? {3 COUNTY OF WASHOE }
4 A Probably Friday. !
5 Q Just this past Friday? 5 I, SUSAN CULP, a notary public in and for the County
6 A Uh-huh. 6  of Washoe, State of Nevada, do hereby certify:
7 Q lIsthatayes? © 7 That on Monday, the 23th day of September 2008, at
8 A That's a yes, uh-huh. . &  the hour of 9:55 a.m. of said day, at the offices of Gayle
9 Q Thank you. §  Kem Lid., 5421 Kietzke Lane Suite 200 Reno, Nevada,
10 A You're stealing my notes. {10 personally appeared RICHARD K. JOHNSON, who was duly sworn by
" Q ¥'m going to make a copy, but I'm going to give it {11 me to teslify the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
12 back o you. | don't steal anything. 12 truth, and thereupon was deposed in the matter entibed herein;
13 MS. KERN: At the present time we'll leave this open 13 That said deposition was taken in verbatim stenotype
14 to be reconvened, if necessary, after being able to review the 14 notes by me, a Certified Shorthand Reporter, and thereafter
15 file, but | do not have any further questions at the present 15 wanscribed into typewriting as herein appears;
16 time. : . S
) i 16 That the foregoing transcript, consisting of pages 1
7 MR. MOLLAT'_-I: | don' ha.ve any questions. 17 through 96, is a full, true and correct transcript of my
18 (The following pruceed!mgs were held out of 148 sten otype notes of said depasition o the best of my knowledge,
the presence of the witness. ) i 19 skill and ability.
;3 MS. KERN: We have a housekeeping matter 1o da with 20 DATED: At Reno Nevada this 7th day of October 2008.
21 respect to Mr. Johnson's depo, o
22 MR. MOLLATH: Uh-huh, j 22
23 MS. KERN: There is no Exhibit 4. We had ;23
24 originally marked it before, but | ended up not talking about 24 SUSAN CULP CSR #343
~§25  itorintroducing it af all. So when you see the exhibils, you 25
Page 95 |
1 will not have an Exhibit 4, and it was intentional there wasn't '
2 one
3 MR. MOLLATH: No problem, ) can live with that.
4 (Whereupon the deposition concluded at 12:31 p.m.)
5
6
7
RICHARD K. JOHNSON
8
9
10
11
12
13
I 14
15
16
17
18
19
20
24
22
23
24
25

EEN—
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FILED
~ Electronically
06-22-2009:11:15:49 AM
Howard W. Conyers
Code 3370 Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 850528

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

JOHN ILIESCU JR,, et al.,
Case No. CV07-00341

Plaintiffs, Dept. No. 6
VS.
MARK B. STEPPAN,

Respondent.
= /

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.
/
ORDER
The action stems from a question of if the Applicants had knowledge the

Respondent and his firm were performing architectural services for the benefit of the project
in question. The Applicants (“Applicants” or “lliescu”) filed a motion for partial summary
judgment on Mark Steppan’s (“‘Respondent”) claim for foreclosure of mechanic’s lien. The
Respondent opposed the motion and filed a cross motion for partial summary judgment to
foreclose on the mechanic’s lien.

The Applicants argue that they were never served with notice of right to lien as
required under NRS 108.245(1). They further argue the Applicants did not have actual
notice of construction on the project or of the identify of the Respondent. Fondren v. K/L
Complex Ltd., 106 Nev. 75, 800 P.2d 719 (1990).

"
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The Respondent argues that lliescu did have actual notice from the land sale
agreement that the buyer would be hiring several design professionals, including architects.
lliescu was also made aware at the public meetings that the Respondent was the architect
for this project. Since the Applicants knew that the construction project was underway, they
should have filed a notice of non-responsibility as required under NRS 108.234. See
Fondren supra at 721. The Respondent also alleges that the Applicants’ counsel reviewed
the contract on the project and therefore had knowledge of the architect’s identity and this
knowledge is imputed to the Applicants. Lange v. Hickman, 92 Nev. 41, 544 P.2d 1208
(1976).

The Applicants respond that the Respondent did not even attempt to comply with the
statutory requirements which results in a lack of substantial compliance. Las Vegas
Convention & Visitors Auth. v. Miller, 124 Nev. Adv. Rep.62, 191 P.3d 1138 (2008). The
Applicants further argue that there has been no evidence to prove that lliescu has actual
knowledge of the Respondent’s architectural services. lliescu also argues that there is a
question whether lliescu’s prior counsel had Respondent’s information in mind when it was
acting on lliescu’s behalf.

“Summary judgment is appropriate under NRCP 56 when the pleadings, depositions,
answers to interrogatories, admissions, and affidavits, if any, that are properly before the
court demonstrate that no genuine issue of material fact exists, and the moving party is
entitied to judgment as a matter of law.” Wood v. Safeway, Inc., 121 P.3d 1026, 1031 (Nev.
2005).

“A factual dispute is genuine when the evidence is such that a rational trier of fact
could return a verdict for the nonmoving party.” /d.

The Applicants, specifically lliescu, viewed the architectural drawings as well as
attended meetings where the design team presented the drawings. The Court finds even
though lliescu alleges he did not know the identity of the architects who were working on
the project, he had actual knowledge that the Respondent and his firm were performing

architectural services on the project.
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Accordingly, the motion for partial summary judgment is denied. The cross motion

for summary judgment is granted.

DATED: This Q day of June, 2009.

A 2

DISTRICT JUDGE

JA0849




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| certify that | am an employee of THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT;
that on the 7//(/day of OW . 2009, | electronically filed the foregoing with the

Clerk of the Court system which will send a notice of electronic filing to the following:

SALLIE ARMSTRONG, ESQ.

GAYLE KERN, ESQ.

Further, | certify that | deposited in the county mailing system for postage and
mailing with the U.S. Postal Service in Reno, Nevada, a true copy of the foregoing
addressed to:

Stephen C. Mollath, Esq.
Prezant & Mollath

6560 SW McCarran Blvd., Ste. A
Reno NV 89509

Heidi Boe
Judicial Assistant
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David R. Grundy, Esq. SBN 864

LEMONS, GRUNDY & EISENBERG 2553 0T -7

6005 Plumas Street, Suite 300 w7

Reno, Nevada 89519 s o
Telephone: (775) 786-6868

Facsimile: (775) 786-9716 BY___\_

Attorneys for Third Party Defendants
Hale Lane, Karen D. Dennison, R. Craig
Howard and Jerry M. Snyder

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

MARK B. STEPPAN,

Plaintiffs, CONSOLIDATED

Vs Case No.: Cv07-00341

JOHN ILIESCU JR. and SONNIA ILIESCU, as Dept. No.:  B6
Trustees of the JOHN ILIESCU, JR. AND SONNIA
ILIESCU 1992 FAMILY TRUST AGREEMENT; JOHN
ILIESCU, individually; DOES IV, inclusive; and ROE
CORPORATIONS VI-X, inclusive,

Defendants.

JOHN ILIESCU, JR. and SONNIA ILIESCU,

as Trustees of the JOHN ILIESCU, JR. AND
SONNIA ILIESCU 1992 FAMILY TRUST
AGREEMENT; JOHN ILIESCU, JR.,
individually; SONNIA ILIESCU, individually,

Third-Party Plaintiffs,
Vs.

CONSOLIDATED PACIFIC DEVELOPMENT,

INC., a Nevada Corporation; DECAL

OREGON, INC., an Oregon Corporation;
CALVIN BATY, individually; JOHN SCHLEINING,
individually; HALE LANE PEEK DENNISON

AND HOWARD PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION,
a Nevada professional corporation, dba HALE
LANE; KAREN D. DENNISON; R. CRAIG
HOWARD; JERRY M. SNYDER; and DOES |

thru X,

Third-Party Defendants.

1 JA0851




LEMONS, GRUNDY
& EISENBERG
6005 PLUMAS ST.
THIRD FLOOR
RENG, NV 89519
(775) 786-6868

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

JOHN SCHLEINING,
Cross-Claimant,
Vs,
HALE LANE PEEK DENNISON AND HOWARD
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION, a Nevada
Professional corporation, dba HALE LANE
and DOES XXl - XXX, inclusive,

Cross-Defendant.

JOHN SCHLEINING,
Third-Party Plaintiff,
Vs,
HOLLAND & HART, LLP, a professional
corporation, R. CRAIG HOWARD and DOES
XXXI - XL, inclusive,

Third-Party Defendants.
/

ANSWER TO THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT

Third party defendants Hale Lane Peek Dennison and Howard Professional
Corporation, Karen D. Dennison, R. Craig Howard and Jerry M. Snyder (collectively, “Hale
Lane”), in answer to the third party complaint of John lliescu, Jr. and Sonnia lliescu, as
Trustees of The John lliescu, Jr. and Sonnia lliescu 1992 Family Trust Agreement; John lliescu,
Jr., individually and Sonnia lliescu, individually {collectively, “lliescu”), on file herein, admit,
deny and allege as follows:

1. Hale Lane are without information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth or
falsity of the allegations contained in paragraphs 1, 4, 5, 6, 7, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 21, 23,
27, and 35.

2. Hale Lane admit the allegations contained in paragraphs 2, 3, 8, 9 19, 25, 29, 34
and 36 of the third party complaint.

3. Hale Lane deny the allegations contained in paragraphs 11, 20, 22 and 28 of the

third party complaint.
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4, In response to Paragraph 18, Hale Lane admit that lliescu retained the Hale
Lane law firm to review, “fine tune”, clarify and advise lliescu relative to the Purchase
Agreement. The remaining allegations of Paragraph 18 are denied.

5. in response to Paragraph 24, Hale Lane admit that on or about November 7,
2006 Mark Steppan, AlA recorded a mechanic’s lien on the property, and that a copy of that
lien is attached as Exhibit “B”. The remaining allegations of Paragraph 24 are denied.

5. In response to Paragraph 26, Hale Lane admit that the mechanic’s lien
recorded by Mark Steppan, AIA on November 7, 2006 made reference, at its Paragraph 2, to
BSC Financial, LLC, as the entity that employed Mark Steppan, AIA and who furnished the
work and services in connection with lliescu’s property. The remaining allegations of
Paragraph 26 are denied.

6. in response to Paragraph 30, Hale Lane admit that the Hale Lane law firm
represented lliescu in regard to a) the Mechanic’s Lien recorded by Mark Steppan, AlA, and b)
closing the Land Purchase Agreement. The remaining allegations of Paragraph 30 are denied.

8. In response to Paragraph 31, Hale Lane admit that on or about December 8,
2006, as a result of the recordation of the Mechanic’s Lien by Mark Steppan, AlA, the Hale
Lane law firm and R. Craig Howard prepared an Indemnity Agreement for their clients referred
to in Paragraph 28 in the third party complaint, a copy of which was attached thereto as
Exhibit “C”. Said Indemnity Agreement was submitted to lliescu on December 12, 2006. The
remaining allegations of Paragraph 31 are denied.

9. In response to Paragraph 32, Hale Lane admit that on or about December 26,
2006, the Hale Lane law firm drafted a Conflict of Interest Waiver Agreement and submitted it
to lliescu and BSC Financial, LLC for signature. The Agreement was executed by the parties. A
copy of said Agreement was attached to the third party complaint as Exhibit “D”. The
remaining allegations of Paragraph 32 are denied.

10. In response to Paragraph 33, Hale Lane admit that thereafter, the Hale Lane

law firm embarked upon a course of advising lliescu and preparing documents so as to allow
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the Purchase Agreement to close with BSC Financial, LLC. The remaining allegations of
Paragraph 33 are denied.
FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
11. No allegations are made in this First Claim for Relief against Hale Lane and thus
no response is required of Hale Lane. In the event that a response is deemed required, each
allegation of this First Claim for Relief is denied.
SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
12.  No allegations are made in this Second Claim for Relief against Hale Lane and
thus no response is required of Hale Lane, In the event that a response is deemed required,
each allegation of this Second Claim for Relief is denied.
THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
13.  No allegations are made in this Third Claim for Relief against Hale Lane and
thus no response is required of Hale Lane. In the event that a response is deemed required,
each allegation of this Third Claim for Relief is denied.
FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
14.  No allegations are made in this Fourth Claim for Relief against Hale Lane and
thus no response is required of Hale Lane. In the event that a response is deemed required,
each allegation of this Fourth Claim for Relief is denied.
FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
15.  In answer to paragraph 55 of the complaint, Hale Lane adopt and incorporate
by reference and makes a part hereof all of their previous answers.
16. Hale Lane admit the allegations contained in paragraph 56 of the third party
complaint.
17. Hale Lane deny the allegations contained in paragraph 57 of the third party
complaint.
SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
18.  In answer to paragraph 58 of the complaint, Hale Lane adopt and incorporate

by reference and makes a part hereof all of their previous answers.
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19, Hale Lane deny the allegations contained in paragraphs 53, 60 and 61 of the
third party complaint.

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

1 lliescu have failed to state a claim against Hale Lane upon which relief can be
granted.
2. lliescu were careless and negligent with respect to the matters alleged in the

complaint, and said carelessness and negligence proximately caused or contributed to the
happening of the incidents complained of and to the damages, loss or damages of which
lliescu complain, if any there were.

3. The damages claimed by lliescu were caused solely by the acts or omissions of
others not named in this action.

4. The claims asserted against Hale Lane have not yet accrued since the
underlying dispute between buyer, seller, developers and developers’ lien claimant has not
yet been concluded by final judgment. Hale Lane are thus entitled to a dismissal of these
claims, or in the alternative, a stay of proceedings until lliescu’s damages, if any, are fixed by
the court.

5. This action is premature since some of the persons responsible for
indemnifying lliescu have claims currently pending in a bankruptcy matter through which all
or part of the damages being sought here may be paid or recompensed, entitling Hale Lane to
a stay or dismissal of the pending claims.

6. lliescu have, with full knowledge of the material facts, and for their own
personal and financial reasons, waived any conflicts of interest in writing.

7. lliescu are estopped from asserting a conflict of interest by virtue of their
execution of written waivers, which these parties relied upon in their continued
representation of other clients.

8. The damages claimed by lliescu were caused solely by the acts or omissions of

others not named in this action.
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9. Hale Lane at all times acted in good faith during their engagement as counsel
for the various parties who chose to retain Hale Lane.

10.  Throughout their engagement as counsel for lliescu Hale Lane disclosed both
orally and in writing and in a timely fashion the scope of their attorney/client relationship with
other parties and sought and received consent from lliescu to represent other parties in light
of the fact that lliescu’s interests would be advanced thereby.

11. Hale Lane at all times acted in good faith at the request of lliescu, in an effort
to further the interests of their clients, whose interests were aligned and consistent with one
another.

WHEREFORE, Hale Lane pray as follows:

1. That lliescu take nothing in this action, and that the action be dismissed with
prejudice;
2. That Hale Lane recover their costs of suit incurred herein and a reasonable

attorneys’ fee from liescu; and,
3. For such other and further relief as the court deems proper.
The undersigned affirms that this document does not contain the social security

number of any person.

DATED: October 7, 2009

Reno, Nevada 89519

Phone No.: {775) 786-6868

Attorneys for Third Party Defendants Hale
Lane, Dennison, Howard and Snyder
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that | am an employee of Lemons, Grundy & Eisenberg
and that on October Z, 2009 | deposited in the United States Mail, with postage fully
prepaid, a true and correct copy of the within ANSWER TO THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT,

addressed to the following:

Gayle A. Kern, Esq.

Gayle A. Kern, Ltd.

5421 Kietzke Lane, Suite 200
Reno, Nevada 89511

Gregory F. Wilson, Esq.
Matthew F. Quint, Esq.
WILSON & QUINT LLP
417 West Plumb Lane
Reno, Nevada 89509

Stephen C. Moliath, Esq.

Prezant & Mollath

6560 SW McCarran Blvd,. Suite A
Reno, Nevada 89509

Steven M. Wilker, Esq.
Tonkon Torp LLP

1600 Pioneer Tower
888 SW Fifth Ave.
Portland, Oregon 97204
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